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What makes you part of Pakistan? This is the
question we asked people to answer through a visual
lens, through perspective, through a vision that is

uniquely theirs. Whether photography was a
profession or a pastime - Pakistan was the passion

that brought them together.

HBL - Pakistan�s largest banking network - shares
this collective vision with you to celebrate the beauty
that is Pakistan. Remind yourself, what do you love

about your country?

�Hum Hain Pakistan�

PHOTOGRAPHY
CONTEST



Hum Hain Pakistan

Rhythm of Light - Faizan Mobeen, Islamabad Chariots of Fire - Razaq Vance, Faisalabad

Wheat Confetti - Khalil ur Rehman, Gujranwala Where Choppers Once Rose - Mayra Junejo, Karachi

Canvas Blossoms - Omar Shaikh, Karachi Ship to Shore - Irtiza Akhtar, Islamabad
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Soul Searcher - Yousaf Fayyaz, Lahore

PHOTOGRAPHY
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Matka Art - Razaq Vance, Faisalabad
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

SSSuuullltttaaannn AAAllliii AAAllllllaaannnaaa RRR... ZZZaaakkkiiirrr MMMaaahhhmmmooooooddd MMMoooeeezzz AAAhhhaaammmeeeddd JJJaaammmaaalll
rotceriDOEC&tnediserPnamriahC

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr CCChhhaaaiiirrrmmmaaannn DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr
Aga Khan Fund for Habib Bank Financial  Marcuard Family Office
Economic Development, S.A. Services (Pvt.) Limited Diamond Trust Bank, Kenya

Jubilee Holdings Limited Habib Allied International  DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr aaannnddd PPPaaarrrtttnnneeerrr
(East Africa) Bank Plc., UK JAAM AG in Switzerland

Jubilee Life Insurance Habib Finance International Bank PPPrrroooppprrriiieeetttooorrr
Company Limited Limited, Hong Kong Global Finanz Agency AG

Tourism Promotion Services  DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr
(Pakistan) Limited First Women Bank Limited

Industrial Promotion Khushhali Bank  
Services (Pakistan) Limited

Jubilee General Insurance

MMMeeemmmbbbeeerrr

Pakistan Business Council
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SSSaaajjjiiiddd ZZZaaahhhiiiddd AAAhhhmmmeeeddd JJJaaawwwaaaddd MMMuuussshhhtttaaaqqq MMMaaallliiikkk SSSiiikkkaaannndddaaarrr MMMuuussstttaaafffaaa KKKhhhaaannn
Director Director Director Director 

 
DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr MMMeeemmmbbbeeerrr CCChhhaaaiiirrrmmmaaannn
Pakistan Petroleum
Limited 

Bizcorp (Pvt.)
Limited

Federal Services
Tribunal

Millat Tractors Limited

detimiLsgnitsaCnaloB
JJJoooiiinnnttt SSSeeennniiiooorrr PPPaaarrrtttnnneeerrr
Orr, Dignam & Co. Millat Equipment Limited 
Advocates

Millat Industrial Product
Limited 

 

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrr
Arabian Sea Country Club
Limited 

licnuoCssenisuBnatsikaP

National Productivity
Organisation

BBBoooaaarrrddd MMMeeemmmbbbeeerr
Pakistan Aeronautical Complex

ARMAKdraoB
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Mehmood Yousuf Mandviwalla  
Bar-at-Law

                                                                                        Mr. Faiq Sadiq Member / Executive

r / ExecutiveebmeMlimaKamiS.sM



A Vision Transformed into Art

A
N

N
U

A
L

R
EP

O
R

T
-2

0
11

5

AAAuuudddiiitttooorrrsss RRReeegggiiisssttteeerrreeeddd OOOffffffiiiccceee

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder Habib Bank Limited
Chartered Accountants 4th Floor, Habib Bank Tower Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area

Islamabad, Pakistan.
Phone : 051-2872203, 051-2821183  

 Fax : 051-2872205 
 

HHHeeeaaaddd OOOffffffiiiccceee RRReeegggiiissstttrrraaarrrsss

Habib Bank Limited THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
,roolFdnuorGazalPknaBbibaH State Life Bldg. No. 3

I. I. Chundrigar Road Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road
Karachi – 75650, Pakistan Karachi
Phone : 021-32418000 [50 lines] Tel. No : +92(21) 111-000-322

Fax. No : +92(21) 35655595

WWWeeebbbsssiiittteeesss

Corporate website:
www.hbl.com
ibank (internet banking) 
www.hblibank.com



MMMrrr... RRR... ZZZaaakkkiiirrr MMMaaahhhmmmooooooddd MMMrrr... SSSooohhhaaaiiilll MMMaaallliiikkk
reciffOksiRfeihCOEC&tnediserP

MMMrrr... AAAbbbiiiddd SSSaaattttttaaarrr MMMsss... SSSiiimmmaaa KKKaaammmiiilll
Head - Global Operations & Learning and Head - Retail and Consumer Banking

tnempoleveD

MMMrrr... NNNaaauuummmaaannn KKK... DDDaaarrr MMMrrr... AAAssslllaaammm GGGaaadddiiittt
Head - International Banking & Corporate & Head - Remedial Assets
Investment Banking  

 

MMMrrr... JJJaaammmiiilll IIIqqqbbbaaalll MMMrrr... MMMuuubbbaaassshhhaaarrr MMMaaaqqqbbboooooolll
gnidneLliateR&laicremmoCaeHreciffOecnailpmoCfeihC

MMMrrr... AAAyyyaaazzz AAAhhhmmmeeeddd MMMrrr... SSSaaallliiimmm AAAmmmlllaaannniii
rotiduAlanretnIfeihCreciffOlaicnaniFfeihC

MMMrrr... SSSaaalllaaahhhuuuddddddiiinnn MMMaaannnzzzoooooorrr MMMrrr... MMMuuudddaaassssssiiirrr HHH... KKKhhhaaannn
reciffOnoitamrofnIfeihCrerusaerTlabolG

MMMiiirrrzzzaaa SSSaaallleeeeeemmm BBBaaaiiiggg MMMrrr... FFFaaaiiiqqq SSSaaadddiiiqqq
secivreStnemyaP–daeHd - Islamic BankingaeH

MMMrrr... RRRiiizzzwwwaaannn HHHaaaiiidddeeerrr

MMMrrr... TTTuuullluuu IIIssslllaaammm

MMMsss... NNNaaauuussshhheeeeeennn AAAhhhmmmaaaddd MMMrrr... SSShhhaaahhhiiiddd FFFaaakkkhhhrrruuuddddddiiinnn
Company Secretary & Head Legal G.M. - International & Market Risk Management

MMMrrr... AAAmmmaaannn AAAzzziiizzz SSSiiiddddddiiiqqquuuiii MMMrrr... MMMuuuhhhaaammmmmmaaaddd AAAllliii
dabamalsI-idniplawaR-feihClanoigeR)EAU,namO(fluG-M.G.R

htroN-gniknaBetaroproCdaeH&

MMMrrr... AAAbbbddduuurr RRRaaassshhhiiiddd AAAwwwaaannn
Business Head - Semi Urban Areas

MMMrrr... AAAlllyyy MMMuuussstttaaannnsiiirrr
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Financial Highlights - Consolidated
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Progress Since 2001 To 2011 – At A Glance - Consolidated
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Directors’ Report
On behalf of the Directors, I am pleased to present the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Auditors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Economic and Market Review 

2011 was another challenging year in the Global and the local economy; devastating floods for the second year along with 
an energy shortage and other adverse conditions impacted Pakistan. As a result, the Pakistan economy grew by 2.4% of 
GDP as against targeted 4.5%; this growth was supported primarily by the agriculture sector (1.2%), which registered an 
impressive increase on the back of a bumper wheat crop as well as the Services sector with a 4.1% growth. Strong growth in 
remittances supported by the Pakistani workforce that reached a record US$ 11.2 billion and a rising trend in exports has 
helped the external reserve position. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has recently cut the discount rates (DR) by 150bps to 
12% (overall 200bps in 2011). The lower discount rate is expected to fuel private sector demand, which is expected to 
provide support to the domestic economy.

Our Performance 

Despite the economic challenges, the Group attained some significant milestones by becoming the first bank in Pakistan to 
reach Rs. 1 trillion in balance sheet size (excluding Interbank borrowings) as well as achieving record profitability with a 
Profit after tax of Rs. 22.3 billion, an increase of 31.1% over 2010. HBL has achieved growth of 23.2% over last year, which is 
an increase of Rs. 214.8 billion and has managed to control its administrative expenses effectively. The balance sheet growth 
and cost control measures have resulted in robust growth of profit after tax of 31.1% over last year.

The Group has made a significant effort over the past few years to address factors necessary for faster growth; this includes 
a focused approach on improving the customer experience, be it in product delivery or customer service. HBL is determined 
in increasing its outreach to the farthest areas of Pakistan and growing its more than 6 million customer relationships to 
progressively include the unbanked population of Pakistan through technology initiatives and innovative products. HBL is 
now positioned to significantly increase its customer outreach. 
 
Risk management continues to be a key focus and in a difficult and challenging environment HBL continues to take a 
conservative approach focusing on controlling NPLs. This is reflected in overall lower provisions for the year.

Financial Highlights 
2011 2010

Rs. In Million

Profit after tax 22,333 17,034

Un-appropriated profit brought forward 47,468 38,498
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 22,190 16,816
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets- net of tax 263 123

22,453 16,939
Profit available for appropriation 69,921 55,437

Appropriations:
Transfer to statutory reserves (2,120) (1,593)
Cash dividend paid in April 11 (6,512) (5,465)
Issued as bonus shares (1,002) (911)
Half year interim dividend, paid in Nov 2011 (3,306) -
Total appropriations (12,940) (7,969)
Un-appropriated Profit carried forward 56,981 47,468



Product Innovation 

The Group continues to improve efficiencies, enhance market competitiveness and deliver customer service at improved 
levels. In this regard, major investments have been made in the last 5 years in upgrading technology, refurbishing branches 
and upgrading the skill set of Human Resources. We continue our strong commitment to provide state of the art banking 
facilities for all segments of society.  
 
In order to provide financial inclusion to the poorest segment of the society, the Bank has provided payment solution 
through its network in collaboration with mobile phone operators to over 60,000 beneficiaries under Government’s poverty 
alleviation Scheme (BISP) and flood relief payments to over 400,000 affectees in Sind through the Pakistan Card. HBL has 
also assisted the Government of Pakistan in its relief efforts for the flood affected people of Sind and Punjab by issuing the 
Watan Cards; these are pre-loaded cards with Government funds that are being issued in collaboration with the National 
Database Authority to the people in the flood affected areas, who then go to an ATM to withdraw the funds that have been
given by the Government – to date your Bank has issued over 700,000 Watan Cards. 
 
The Bank’s product delivery capabilities are now well established in this area and your Bank has been selected as one of the 
major payment agents by the GOP for providing poverty alleviation payments to over 1.3 million women in 16 districts
(under BISP). The Bank successfully launched Pardes Remittance Card (product similar to prepaid card).  
 
EMV Debit cards have also been successfully launched in Bahrain, UAE, Mauritius and Maldives. 
 
International Banking Group 

HBL has completed the acquisition of Habibsons Bank in the UK and the entire operations of Habibsons UK have now been
successfully integrated into HBL UK; this acquisition will significantly enhance the Group’s franchise value. The Habibsons 
acquisition has also provided a platform to effectively launch an integrated wealth management initiative across the 
international network.  
 
Statement under Section XIX of the Code of Corporate Governance  

The Board is committed to ensure that requirements of corporate governance set by Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan are fully met and the Directors are pleased to report that: 
 
a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank present a true and fair view of the state of its affairs, 

operational results, cash flows and changes in equity. 
b) Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been maintained. 
c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting 

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.  
d) The Bank has followed international accounting standards (as applicable to Banks in Pakistan) in the preparation of 

accounts and there is no departure from the said standards. 
e) As a continuous process, efforts have been made to effectively implement the internal control system. HBL is in the 

process of adopting an internationally accepted COSO Internal Control – Integrated Framework as part of compliance 
with SBP Internal Control Guidelines. The Bank has also evaluated its Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) 
using the US PCAOB Auditing Standard (AS – 5). A dedicated Management Testing and Reporting Framework for ICFR is 
being developed as a part of COSO implementation project.

f) There are no doubts about the Banks’ ability to continue as a going concern. 
g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the regulations. 
h) Key operating and financial data for the last ten years is presented in the financial statements under the section 

“Progress since 2001 to 2011 – Consolidated”. 
i) The Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary have confirmed that neither they nor their spouses are engaged in the 

business of stock brokerage. 
j) Risk Management, Human Resource and Audit Committees constituted by the Board are functioning efficiently in 

accordance with their Terms of Reference. The Board has met regularly and held eight meetings in the year.

The Statement of Internal Control, Statement of Compliance with Review Report and the Auditors’ reports are attached to
the Financial Statements. 
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Value of Investments in employee retirement benefits fund 

The following is the value of investments of provident, gratuity, pension and benevolent funds maintained by the Group,
based on the latest audited financial statements. 

Rs. in ‘000
Employee’s Provident Fund 6,457,856
Employee’s Pension Fund 10,228,811
Employee’s Gratuity Fund 551,472
Employee’s Benevolent Fund – Executive and Officers 768,549
Employee’s Benevolent Fund – Clerical and Non-Clerical 259,710

Meetings of the Board 

Eight Board meetings were held during 2011 and were attended by the Directors as follows: 
 

Name Attendance
Mr. Sultan Ali Allana Chairman 8
Mr. R. Zakir Mahmood President and Chief Executive Officer 8
Mr. Moez Ahamed Jamal Director 8
Mr. Sajid Zahid Director 8
Mr. Ahmed Jawad Director 8
Mr. Mushtaq Malik Director 8
Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan Director 7

Credit Ratings 

JCR-VIS, a credit rating company re-affirmed the bank's long-term entity rating at AA+. The short term rating remains at
A-1+, which is the highest rating denoting the greatest certainty of timely payments by a financial institution. All ratings for
HBL have been assigned a ‘Stable’ outlook. 
 
Auditors 

The present auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, retire. As per Code of Corporate Governance they are 
eligible for reappointment. Accordingly, the Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit Committee for
the appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, as the auditors of the bank for
the financial year 2012. 
 
Appreciation and Acknowledgement 

At this time, I would like to appreciate the efforts of the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan and Ministry of Finance for strengthening the banking and financial system of the country by improving regulatory, 
policy and governance framework.  
 
I would like to take this opportunity to also thank on behalf of the Board and Management of the Group, the customers and 
the shareholders for entrusting their confidence in us and assure them that we remain committed to maintaining high 
service standards and a strong culture of good corporate governance and compliance in all our endeavors.  I would also like 
to express our sincere gratitude to the employees of the Group for their dedication and hard work, which enabled delivery of 
these strong results. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board

R. Zakir Mahmood 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Karachi: February 24, 2012 
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Statement of Internal Control

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify the principal risks to the
achievements of the Bank’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. Management assumes the responsibility of establishing 
and maintaining adequate internal controls and procedures under the policies approved by the Board. In this
connection the Bank has documented Procedures and Manuals, which incorporates the internal controls 
applicable while conducting any banking transactions. These procedures are revised and updated as and when
required.  
 
The Internal Audit Group (IAG) of the Bank reviews the adequacy and implementation of internal controls on a 
regular basis and deficiencies if any are followed up until they are rectified. Quarterly updates on unresolved 
significant issues highlighted by the IAG are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors together 
with the recommendations for improvements.

The system of internal control is designed to minimize the risk of failure to achieve the organization’s policies, 
aims and objectives; it can therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or loss. The system of internal controls being followed by the Bank is considered adequate and
sound in design and is being effectively implemented and monitored. 

HBL is duly observing compliance with the requirements and timelines of Staged Roadmap for implementation of
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Internal Control Guidelines. The Bank has adopted internationally accepted
COSO Internal Control – Integrated Framework for overall set of Internal Controls for ensuring compliance with
SBP Guidelines. The external auditors have submitted the “Long-Form Review Report” for the completed stages
as on December 31, 2010 which was submitted to SBP after the Board approval in June 2011. SBP has recently
advised the Bank to complete all stages of ICFR roadmap latest by September 30, 2012.  

JJamil IqbalJamil Iqbal AAyaz AhmedAyaz Ahmed SSalim AmlaniSalim Amlani
Chief Compliance Officer  Chief Financial Officer  Chief Internal Auditor
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Review Report
TTTooo ttthhheee MMeeemmmbbbeeerrrss,s, tttaaattteeemmmeeennnttt ooofff ooommmpppllliiiaaannnccceee wwwiiittthhh ttthhheee bbbeeesssttt ppprrraaaccctttiiiccceeesss ooofff CCCooodddeee ooofff CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee GGGooovvveeerrrnnnaaannnccceee

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of Habib Bank Limited ('the Bank') to comply with Regulation No.
35 of Chapter XI contained in the Listing Regulations issued by the Karachi Stock Exchange, the Lahore Stock 
Exchange and the Islamabad Stock Exchange where the Bank is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the
Bank. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether 
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's compliance with the provisions of the Code of 
Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not
carried out any special review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the 
Board's statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls. 
 
Sub-Regulation (xiii a) of Listing Regulation No. 35 as notified by all the three stock exchanges on which the Bank
is listed requires the Bank to place before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval, related 
party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 
arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price recording proper 
justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also required to be 
separately placed before the audit committee. We are only required and have ensured compliance of the above
requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of Directors and placement of
such transactions before the audit committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the
related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length prices or not. 
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices
contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2011.
 

EEErrrnnnsssttt &&& YYYooouuunnnggg FFFooorrrddd RRRhhhooodddeeesss SSSiiidddaaattt HHHyyydddeeerrr
Chartered Accountants   

Date: February 24, 2012   
Karachi   

CCSS



Statement of Compliance
wwwiiittthhh ttthhheee bbbeeesssttt ppprrraaaccctttiiiccceeesss ooofff CCCooodddeee ooofff CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee GGGooovvveeerrrnnnaaannnccceee
fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr eeennndddeeeddd DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr 333111,,, 222000111111

This Statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) contained in 
the Regulation No. 35 of the Listing Regulations of the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges and Regulation 
No. 37 of the Listing Regulations of Islamabad Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framework of 
good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance.

The Board has adopted the Code of Corporate Governance and applies the principles in the following manner:

• Except for the Chief Executive Officer, all the Directors including the Chairman are Non-Executive 
independent Directors. The Board has three independent Directors i.e. Mr. Moez Jamal, Mr. Sajid Zahid
and Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan.

• The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed
companies.

• All the resident Directors have confirmed that they are registered taxpayers and none of them have 
defaulted in the payment of any loans to a banking company, a development financial institution or non-
banking finance company or stock exchange.

• The Board of Directors of Habib Bank Limited was elected in 2009 for a three year term which will expire
on March 26, 2012. 

 
• No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year. 

 
• The Board adopted a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the

bank. The Bank maintains a complete record/log of all policies along with the dates on which these were 
approved or amended including the dates when these are required to be updated. 

 
• All the major decisions relating to investment and disinvestment of funds are taken in accordance with

the policies laid down by the Board of Directors. 
 

• The Board of Directors has approved the appointment, remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment of the Chief Executive Officer. 

 
• The Board met eight times during the year and continued to closely monitor the Bank’s performance. 

The committees of the Board also met regularly during the year. Written notices of the Board meetings,
along with agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before the meeting. The
minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. The Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary also attended the meetings of the Board. 

 
• The Directors have familiarized themselves with their responsibilities under the Code of Corporate 

Governance and other relevant laws / regulations have received a Directors Manual explaining the
relevant laws and regulations. 

 
• The Board has approved the appointments of the Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and

Company Secretary including their remuneration and terms and conditions of their employment.

• The Director’s Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed. 

 
• The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Bank, 

except as mentioned in the Pattern of Share Holding. 
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• The Bank has circulated the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, which has been approved by the Board
of Directors. 

 
• The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have duly endorsed the financial statements of

the Bank before its approval by the Board. 
 

• The Bank has complied with the applicable corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

• The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and the firm 
and all its partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 
on Code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The auditors have
also confirmed that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
any shares in the Bank.

• The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services other than approved services and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard. 

 
• The Board Audit Committee comprises of three members, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors 

including the Chairman of the Committee. The Board Risk Management Committee and Board HR
Committee comprise of three members each, a majority of whom are Non-Executive Directors. The
Chairman of both the Committees is a Non-Executive Director. The Board has formed a Board IT Steering
Committee which comprises of three members of the Board, a majority of which are Non-Executive
Directors. The Chairman of this Committee is a Non-Executive Director. The IT Steering Committee was 
reconstituted by the Board on July 1, 2011 and also includes two senior managers.

• An effective Internal Audit Group is in place. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Board 
Audit Committee.

• The Audit Committee met five times during the year 2011. On the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board approves the Financial Statements of the bank. The Terms of Reference of the
Audit Committee have been formulated and approved by the Board. 

 
• The other Board Committees met as follows:

i. Board Risk Management Committee  four times in the year 
ii. Board Human Resource Committee  eight times in the year 

iii. Board IT Steering Committee two times in the year 
 

• The Board considers and approves the related party transactions after review of the Audit Committee.

• We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

This Statement of Compliance with best practices of corporate governance is being published and circulated 
along with the annual report of the Bank.

RRR... ZZZaaakkkiiirrr MMMaaahhhmmmooooooddd
President & Chief Executive Officer  
Karachi: February 24, 2012
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CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS



We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated statement of financial
position of Habib Bank Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2011 and the related 
consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow 
statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the 
year then ended. These consolidated financial statements include unaudited certified returns from the branches, 
except for 84 branches, which have been audited by us and 35 branches audited by auditors abroad. We have also 
expressed separate opinions on the financial statements of the Bank and the subsidiary companies HBL Asset 
Management Limited and HBL Currency Exchange Limited. The financial statements of the other subsidiary 
companies were audited / reviewed by other firms of chartered accountants, whose reports have been furnished to 
us and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts included for such companies, is based solely on the report 
of such other auditors. 
 
These consolidated financial statements are responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express our opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of 
Habib Bank Limited as at 31 December 2011 and the results of its operations, the cash flows and changes in equity 
for the year then ended in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2010 were audited by another 
firm of chartered accountants whose report dated 18 February 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon on 
those financial statements. 

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder 
Chartered Accountants 
 
Audit Engagement Partner: Omer Chughtai 
 
Date: February 24, 2012  
Karachi  

Auditors’ Report
To the members - Consolidated
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“All praises for ALLAH SUBHANAHO WA’TA’ALA, Who is the creator & Lord of All Worlds. May Allah reveal all
blessing and prayers on His Messenger Muhammad Sal’ lalah-o-AlaihI Wasalam, His companion and all 
Muslims.”  
 
We have carried out a Shariah Audit to check the overall Shariah compliance of the operations of Islamic
Banking of HBL for the year ended 31 December 2011. In the process, we have conducted the monitoring to
express our opinion as to whether the branches are compatible with the rules and principles of Islamic Shariah
and also with fatwas, specific guidelines issued by the Bank’s Shariah Advisor and SBP regulations.

It is the responsibility of the Bank’s Management to ensure that the branches work in accordance with the
rulings and principles of Islamic Shariah. Our responsibility is to express an independent opinion based on our 
audit.

Our audit included review and examination of the branches’ transactions i.e. Murabaha, Ijarah and Diminishing
Musharaka documentation and procedures on a test basis. We have planned and carried out audit in order to
obtain all information and explanations deemed necessary by us for the purpose of obtaining reasonable 
assurance that the branches did not violate the rulings and principles of Islamic Shariah. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis our opinion. 
 
The allocation of Funds determination of weightages, profit ratio and distribution of profit were in accordance
with the Shariah Principles.

In our opinion: 
 
1. The Management is making necessary efforts to put in place proper system for seeking necessary religious

guidance duly complied. In our opinion, the operations during the year 2011, on the whole is in
compliance with the principles of Shariah, guidelines issued by Shariah Advisor and the State Bank of
Pakistan.  

2. The distribution of profit and loss on the investment accounts is in compliance with the principles of
Shariah guidelines issued by Shariah Advisor.  

Charity:

During the year, charity amounting to Rs. 68,504 was credited to the Charity Account.

May Allah guide us and make us successful in this world and hereafter.  

MMMuuuhhhaaammmmmmaaaddd YYYaaahhhyyyaaa AAAsssiiimmm
Shariah Advisor  
HBL Islamic Banking
Karachi: February 24, 2012     

Shariah Advisor’s Report

19



222000111111 222000111000 NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((UUUSSS $$$ iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS

1,149,577  907,661 Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 103,399,623 81,640,246
581,314,73505,943,746sknabrehtohtiwsecnalaB359,514324,625
443,933,03920,185,147snoitutitsnilaicnanifotsgnidneL703,733092,264
611,909,452741,406,8148stnemtsevnI330,438,2569,356,4
210,057,954656,763,7549secnavdA714,111,5139,480,5
092,551,61456,761,9101stessadexifgnitarepO216,971301,312
302,275,9888,572,711tessaxatderrefeD224,601298,08
700,029,43307,808,4421stessarehtO432,883571,894
304,996,429502,455,931,1936,082,01653,966,21

LLLIIIAAABBBIIILLLIIITTTIIIEEESSS

390,577,9205,498,3131elbayapslliB876,801774,451
068,954,04076,374,9341sgniworroB528,944168,834
997,473,747525,136,33951stnuoccarehtodnastisopeD871,903,8649,973,01
538,182,4001,630,561snaoldetanidro-buS506,74099,55

- - Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
--ytilibailxatderrefeD--

540,755,62024,139,7371seitilibailrehtO552,592317,124
236,844,828712,769,920,1145,012,9789,054,11

1,218,369 1,070,098  NNNEEETTT AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS 109,586,988 96,250,771

RRREEEPPPRRREEESSSEEENNNTTTEEEDDD BBBYYY:::

SSShhhaaarrreeehhhooollldddeeerrrsss''' eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy
008,810,01086,020,1181latipacerahS783,111625,221
555,553,92557,541,23sevreseR073,623193,753
407,764,74796,089,65tiforpdetairporppanU737,725105,336

1,113,418 965,494 Total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 100,147,132 86,842,059

656,212,1092,632,1tseretnignillortnoc-noN284,31547,31

91,206  91,122  Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of deferred tax 19 8,203,566 8,196,056
 

177,052,69889,685,901890,070,1963,812,1

CCCOOONNNTTTIIINNNGGGEEENNNCCCIIIEEESSS AAANNNDDD CCCOOOMMMMMMIIITTTMMMEEENNNTTTSSS 20

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director



A Vision Transformed into Art

A
N

N
U

A
L

R
EP

O
R

T
-2

0
11

21

222000111111 222000111000 NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((UUUSSS $$$ iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

820,523,18324,085,8922denraetseretni/nruter/pu-kraM751,409999,590,1
552,033,43022,281,2432desnepxetseretni/nruter/pu-kraM876,183479,864

627,025 522,479   Net mark-up / in 377,499,64302,893,65emocnitseret

74,462 84,523 Provision against non-performing loans and advances 9.4 / 9.6 6,697,555 7,602,440
(102) 343 (Reversal) / charge against off-balance sheet obligations (9,141) 30,895
2,636 (530)   Charge / (reversal) against diminution in the value of

investments
8.8 237,083 (47,671)

--yltceridffonettirwstbeddaB--
466,585,7794,529,6633,48699,67

550,029 438,143        Net mark-up / interest income after provisions 49,472,706 39,409,109

NNNooonnn mmmaaarrrkkk---uuuppp /// iiinnnttteeerrreeesssttt iiinnncccooommmeee
67,663  60,400 Fee, commission and brokerage income  6,085,970 5,432,706

252,343606,434emocnidnediviD618,3238,4
12,022 7,935 Share of profit of associates and joint venture  1,081,358 713,678

328,613811,24542seitirucesfoelasnoniaG225,3720,6
(409) 71 Unrealised (loss) /  gain on held for sale securities (36,820) 6,409

41,760 35,458   Income from dealing in foreign currencies 3,756,094 3,189,333
032,067,2535,919,252emocnirehtO886,03954,23

164,354 141,890 Total non mark-up / interest income  14,782,861 12,762,431
045,171,25765,552,46330,085383,417

NNNooonnn mmmaaarrrkkk---uuuppp /// iiinnnttteeerrreeesssttt eeexxxpppeeennnssseee
069,252,42169,334,9262sesnepxeevitartsinimdA046,962142,723
841,871)724,242(ten-sffoetirw/snoisivorprehtO189,1)596,2(
007,871885,7772segrahcrehtO789,1368
207,125740,56682dnuferaflewsrekroW008,5493,7

381,580  300,625 34,321,398 27,040,030

29
387,896,9673,954,01tnerruc928,701582,611
809,696462,82sraeyroirp847,7413
)140,093(637,005,1derrefed)733,4(686,61

056,500,01673,889,11042,111582,331

248,295  189,385   22,333,022 17,034,380

971,618,61367,981,22knaBehtfosredlohytiuqE069,681207,642
574,611360,75tseretnignillortnoc-noN592,1436
627,101691,68sdnuFLBHforotsevniytironiM131,1859

248,294  189,386    22,333,022 17,034,380

62.5131.0203erahsrepsgninraedetuliddnacisaB071.0422.0

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
 

PPPrrrooofffiiittt bbbeeefffooorrreee tttaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn

TTTaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn

PPPrrrooofffiiittt aaafffttteeerrr tttaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn

AAAttttttrrriiibbbuuutttaaabbbllleee tttooo:::

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director



222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
(((UUUSSS $$$ iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

248,294  189,385 PPPrrrooofffiiittt fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr 22,333,022 17,034,380
 

OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

(958)  (1,131)    Minority share of HBL funds transferred to other liabilities (86,196) (101,726)

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign
7,751 2,462    branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates 697,203 221,465

255,087  190,716  CCCooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee tttrrraaannnsssfffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttooo eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy 22,944,029 17,154,119

CCCooommmpppooonnneeennntttsss ooofff cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee nnnooottt rrreeefffllleeecccttteeeddd iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

- 1,700 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets    - 152,905
 

- (137)    Deferred tax on revaluation of fixed assets - (12,340)
 

5,342  143    Surplus on revaluation of investments 480,500 12,828
 

(2,484) 862 Deferred tax on revaluation of investments (223,430) 77,573
 

257,945  193,284    23,201,099 17,385,085

AAAttttttrrriiibbbuuutttaaabbbllleee tttooo:::

256,208 190,944   Equity holders of the Bank 23,044,811 17,174,632

779 1,209   Non-controlling interest 70,092 108,727

958  1,131 Minority investor 86,196 101,726

257,945  193,284   23,201,099 17,385,085

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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Balance as at December 31, 2009 9,108,000 8,982,804 221,953 12,248,811 6,073,812 38,498,335 75,133,715 1,143,241 76,276,956

TTToootttaaalll cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2010         - - - - - 16,917,905 16,917,905 116,475 17,034,380

Minority share of HBL funds transferred to other 
-----seitilibail (101,726) (101,726) - (101,726)

--- OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign
branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates         - 234,182           -          - - - 234,182 (12,717) 221,465

- 234,182           -          - - 16,816,179 17,050,361 103,758 17,154,119
TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss wwwiiittthhh ooowwwnnneeerrrsss,,, rrreeecccooorrrdddeeeddd dddiiirrreeeccctttlllyyy iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

Final cash dividend paid at Rs. 6 per share    
for the year ended December 31, 2009          - - - - - (5,464,800) (5,464,800) - (5,464,800)

etacifitrecrep01.1.sRtadiapdnedividhsaC
)213,93()213,93(-------abaradomyb

----008,019serahssunobsadeussI (910,800) - - -
910,800         - - - - (6,375,600) (5,464,800) (39,312) (5,504,112)

fonoitaulavernosulprusmorfderrefsnarT
,221-387,221387,221-----xatfoten-stessadexif 783

 
Transferred to statutory reserve         - - 32,688 1,561,305   - (1,593,993) - - -

fonoitaulavernosulprusfoerahsytironiM
969,4969,4-------seiraidisbusfoseitiruces

Balance as at December 31, 2010 10,018,800 9,216,986 254,641 13,810,116 6,073,812 47,467,704 86,842,059 1,212,656 88,054,715

TTToootttaaalll cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2011 - - - - - 22,275,959      22,275,959          57,063     22,333,022

Minority share of HBL funds transferred to other  
 )691,68()691,68(-----seitilibail - (86,196)

--- OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign
branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and  

869,62532,076----532,076-setaicossa 697,203 
920,449,22130,48899,958,22367,981,22---532,076-

TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss wwwiiittthhh ooowwwnnneeerrrsss,,, rrreeecccooorrrdddeeeddd dddiiirrreeeccctttlllyyy iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

Final cash dividend paid at Rs. 6.5 per share for the
year ended December 31, 2010 - - - - - (6,512,220) (6,512,220) - (6,512,220)

---)088,100,1(serahssunobsadeussI

Half year Interim cash dividend paid at  
603,3(-)402,603,3()402,603,3(-----erahsrep3.sR ,204)

Cash dividend paid at Rs. 1.3 per certificate by  
 -------abaradom (46,458) (46,458)

1,001,880 - - - - (10,820,304) (9,818,424) (46,458) (9,864,882)
fonoitaulavernosulprusmorfderrefsnarT

994,362-994,362994,362-----xatfoten-stessadexif

Transferred to statutory reserve         - - 45,783 2,074,182   - (2,119,965) - - -

Minority share of surp fonoitaulavernosul
39,31(-------seiraidisbusfoseitiruces 9) (13,939)

Balance as at December 31, 2011 11,020,680 9,887,221 300,424 15,884,298 6,073,812 56,980,697 100,147,132 1,236,290 101,383,422

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
 

AAAttttttrrriiibbbuuutttaaabbbllleee tttooo ssshhhaaarrreeehhhooollldddeeerrrsss ooofff ttthhheee GGGrrrooouuuppp

NNNooonnn---
cccooonnntttrrrooolllllliiinnnggg

iiinnnttteeerrreeesssttt
TTToootttaaalllSSShhhaaarrreee

cccaaapppiiitttaaalll

RRReeessseeerrrvvveeesss

SSSuuubbb TTToootttaaalllEEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee
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1 TTTHHHEEE GGGRRROOOUUUPPP AAANNNDDD IIITTTSSS OOOPPPEEERRRAAATTTIIIOOONNNSSS

Habib Bank Limited (the Bank) is incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking, modaraba management and 
asset management related services in Pakistan and overseas. The Bank’s registered office is located at Habib Bank Tower, 4th
Floor, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad. The Bank's shares are listed on the stock exchanges in Pakistan. The Bank operates 1,464 
(2010: 1,459) branches inside Pakistan including 22 (2010: 11) Islamic Banking Branches and 42 branches (2010: 42) outside
the country (including Karachi Export Processing Zone). 

HHHHoooollllddddiiiinnnngggg ccccoooommmmppppaaaannnnyyyy

natsikaP,detimiLknaBbibaH

SSSSuuuubbbbssssiiiiddddiiiiaaaarrrriiiieeeessss

- Habib Finance International Limited, Hong Kong – denwoyllohw
- Habib Bank Financial Services (Private) Limited, Pakistan – wholly owned
- HBL Currency Exchange (Private) Limited, Pakistan – wholly owned
- HBL Asset Management Limited, Pakistan – denwoyllohw
- Habib Allied International Bank Plc., United Kingdom – shareholding at 90.50%

%05.09tagnidloherahs–detimiLknaBsnosbibaH-
natsikaP,abaradoMknaBbibaHtsriF-

%74.28gnidloherahs–dnuFkcotSLBH-
%12.39gnidloherahs-dnuFtessAitluMLBH-

%33.46gnidloherahs-dnuFemocnILBH-

The subsidiary company of the Bank, Habib Bank Financial Services (Private) Limited exercises control over Habib Bank
Modaraba as its management company and also has a direct economic interest in it. The Bank has consolidated the financial
statements of the modaraba as the ultimate holding company.

During the year Habib Allied International Bank Plc., United Kingdom acquired 100% shares in Habibsons Bank Limited. The 
Group has consolidated the results of Habibsons Bank Limited from the date of acquisition April 20, 2011, the date when 
control commences as disclosed in note 3.3 to the financial statements.

2 BBBAAASSSIIISSS OOOFFF PPPRRREEESSSEEENNNTTTAAATTTIIIOOONNN

- In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade related
modes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at
appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are
not reflected in these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the
appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.  

 
- The US Dollar amounts shown in the financial statements are stated solely for information convenience. The statement 

of financial position and profit and loss account for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 have been converted 
using the exchange rate of Rs. 89.9457 per US Dollar. 

 
2.1 BBBaaasssiiisss ooofff mmmeeeaaasssuuurrreeemmmeeennnttt

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain classes of fixed assets 
are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation, trading and available for sale investments, derivative financial
instruments and forward foreign exchange contracts are measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is Bank's functional currency. The amounts are
rounded to nearest thousand. 

 
2.2 UUUssseee ooofff eeessstttiiimmmaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjuuudddgggmmmeeennntttsss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Bank's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2011
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historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's financial statements or where judgment was
exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows: 

 
iiii)))) CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiicccaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

- In classifying investments as "held-for-trading", the Group has determined securities which are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 
days.

- In classifying investments as "held-to-maturity", the Group follows the guidance provided in SBP directives on 
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In making this
judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity. 

 
- The investments which are not classified as held for trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale.

iiiiiiii)))) VVVaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn aaannnddd iiimmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt ooofff aaavvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee fffooorrr sssaaallleee eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In 
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.

iiiiiiiiiiii)))) PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt nnnooonnn pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess amount of non-performing loans and advances and provision required
there-against. While assessing this requirement, various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial 
position of the borrower, the forced sale value of the securities and the requirement of the Prudential Regulations are 
considered. For portfolio impairment provision on consumer advances, the Group follows, the general provision 
requirement set out in Prudential Regulations.  

 
iiiivvvv)))) IIInnncccooommmeee tttaaaxxxeeesss

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Group, the management looks at the current 
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for 
deferred taxes, estimates of the Group's future taxable profits are taken into account.

vvvv)))) FFFaaaiiirrr vvvaaallluuueee ooofff dddeeerrriiivvvaaatttiiivvveeesss

The fair value of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. The
valuation techniques take into account the relevant interest rates in effect at the date of statement of financial
position and the rates contracted.

vvvviiii)))) FFFiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss,,, dddeeeppprrreeeccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn aaannnddd aaammmooorrrtttiiisssaaatttiiiooonnn

The Group carries its land and buildings at their respective fair values. The fair values are determined by independent
valuation experts and such valuations are carried out with sufficient regularity that the valuation at year end is close to
their fair values.  

 
In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses method which reflects the 
pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The method applied is reviewed at
each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change in pattern. Such change is accounted for as
change in accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 8, "Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

vvvviiiiiiii)))) DDDeeefffiiinnneeeddd bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss ppplllaaannnsss aaannnddd ooottthhheeerrr bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method. For actuarial
assumptions, refer note no. 33.

vvvviiiiiiiiiiii)))) IIImmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd sssuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrriiieeesss

The impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value exceeds the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in
use.
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2.2.1 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3 SSSTTTAAATTTEEEMMMEEENNNTTT OOOFFF CCCOOOMMMPPPLLLIIIAAANNNCCCEEE

3.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by State Bank of Pakistan 
(SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In case the requirements of provisions and directives issued 
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by SBP differ, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
directives issued by SBP shall prevail. 

 
The State Bank of Pakistan, vide its BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International 
Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and International Accounting Standard 40,
Investment Property for banking companies till further instructions. Further, SECP has deferred applicability of IFRS - 7 
"Financial Instruments: Disclosures" on banks through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the requirements 
of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However, investments have
been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various 
circulars.  

 
3.2 SSStttaaannndddaaarrrdddsss,,, iiinnnttteeerrrppprrreeetttaaatttiiiooonnnsss aaannnddd aaammmeeennndddmmmeeennntttsss tttooo pppuuubbbllliiissshhheeeddd aaapppppprrrooovvveeeddd aaaccccccooouuunnntttiiinnnggg ssstttaaannndddaaarrrdddsss ttthhhaaattt aaarrreee nnnooottt yyyeeettt eeeffffffeeeccctttiiivvveee

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2012: 

 
- Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recovery of underlying asset (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2012). The 2010 amendment provides an exception to the measurement principle in respect of investment 
property measured using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property. The measurement of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is based on a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment property will be recovered entirely through sale. The presumption can be rebutted only if 
the investment property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially 
all of the asset’s economic benefits over the life of the asset. The amendment also introduces the requirement that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets measured using revaluation model in IAS-16 should always be measured on sale 
basis. The amendment has no impact on financial statements of the Group.

- IAS 27 Consolidated and separate Financial Statements (2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013).  IAS 27 (2011) supersedes IAS 27 (2008). Three new standards IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial
Statements, IFRS 11- Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12- Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities dealing with IAS 27
would be applicable effective 1 January 2013. IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and disclosure
requirements for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications.

- IAS 28 Investments in Associates (2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). IAS 28
(2011) supersedes IAS 28 (2008). IAS 28 (2011) makes the amendments to apply IFRS 5 to an investment, or a portion
of an investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; and on 
cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. This amendment is likely to have impact on financial statements of the Group.

- IAS 19 Employee Benefits (amended 2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). The
amended IAS 19 includes the amendments that require actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income; this change will remove the corridor method and eliminate the ability for entities to recognise
all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan assets in profit or loss, which currently is allowed under IAS 19;
and that the expected return on plan assets recognised in profit or loss is calculated based on the rate used to discount
the defined benefit obligation.   This amendment is likely to have an impact on financial statements of the Bank. 

 
- Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1) - (effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2012). The amendments require that an entity present separately the items of other comprehensive
income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would
never be reclassified to profit or loss. The amendments do not address which items are presented in other
comprehensive income or which items need to be reclassified. The requirements of other IFRSs continue to apply in this
regard. The amendments would result in certain changes in disclosures on financial statements of the Group.
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3.3 BBBUUUSSSIIINNNEEESSSSSS CCCOOOMMMBBBIIINNNAAATTTIIIOOONNN

During the year the Group acquired control of another UK incorporated bank, Habibsons Bank Limited through a 100% equity 
purchase. The transaction was completed on April 20, 2011 through a Sale Purchase Agreement (SPA) signed between the
Group, Valona Finance and the guarantors to the transaction. The carrying amounts and fair values of identifiable assets and
liabilities of Habibsons Bank Limited at the date of acquisition are as follows: 

 
BBBooooookkk vvvaaallluuueee FFFaaaiiirrr vvvaaallluuueee BBBooooookkk vvvaaallluuueee FFFaaaiiirrr vvvaaallluuueee

£££ iiinnn '''000000000 RRRsss iiinnn '''000000000
AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS

490,901490,901787787sknablartnectasecnalabdnahsaC
391,130,1391,130,1934,7934,7sllibelbigilerehtodnasllibyrusaerT
664,556,22664,556,22634,361634,361sknabotsecnavdadnasnaoL
607,796,01105,067,01371,77626,77sremotsucotsecnavdadnasnaoL
630,931630,931300,1300,1stessadexifelbignaT
048,57142,67745055stessarehtO
499,101558,88637146emocnideurccadnastnemyaperP

222255551111,,,,444488882222 222255551111,,,,111122221111 33334444,,,,888866660000,,,,333388886666 33334444,,,,888811110000,,,,333322229999

LLLIIIAAABBBIIILLLIIITTTIIIEEESSS
Deposits by banks 13,697 13,697 1,898,675 1,898,675

932,383,92932,383,92079,112079,112stnuoccaremotsuC
198,741198,741760,1760,1seitilibailrehtO
263,821263,821629629emocniderrefeddnaslaurccA
843,705843,705066,3066,3naol-seitilibaildetanidrobuS

222333111,,,333222000 222333111,,,333222000 333222,,,000666555,,,555111555 333222,,,000666555,,,555111555

776,049,1776,049,1000,41000,41latipacerahspudellaC
)238()238()6()6(evresernoitaulaveR
669,408620,558708,5861,6tnuoccassol&tiforP

NNNEEETTT BBBOOOOOOKKK VVVAAALLLUUUEEE 222000,,,111666222 111999,,,888000111 222,,,777999444,,,888777111 222,,,777444444,,,888111111

LLLeeessssss::: 411,192,4659,03hsacnidiapnoitaredisnocesahcruP

GGGoooooodddwwwiiillllll 111111,,,111555555 111,,,555444666,,,333000333

4 SSSUUUMMMMMMAAARRRYYY OOOFFF SSSIIIGGGNNNIIIFFFIIICCCAAANNNTTT AAACCCCCCOOOUUUNNNTTTIIINNNGGG PPPOOOLLLIIICCCIIIEEESSS

4.1 RRReeevvveeennnuuueee rrreeecccooogggnnniiitttiiiooonnn

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss aaannnddd iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

Income on loans and advances and debt security investments are recognized on a time proportion basis that takes into
account effective yield on the asset. Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, those premiums /
discounts are amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining maturity, using the effective yield method. 

 
Interest or mark-up recoverable on classified loans and advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis. Interest /
mark-up on rescheduled / restructured loans and advances and investments is recognized as permitted by the regulations of
State Bank of Pakistan or overseas regulatory authorities of countries where the branches / companies operate, except where
in the opinion of the management it would not be prudent to do so.

Dividend income from investments (other than those which are accounted for under the equity method) is recognized when
the right to receive it is established. 

 
LLLeeeaaassseee fffiiinnnaaannnccciiinnnggg

Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease income
(excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased assets) is deferred and taken to 
income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net 
investment in lease.

Unrealized lease income is suspensed on classified leases, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations 
of the State Bank of Pakistan. Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts, documentation charges, front-end fees and
other lease income are recognized as income on receipt basis. Repossessed vehicles on account of loan default are recorded
in memorandum account. 
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MMMuuurrraaabbbaaahhhaaa

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the invoiced amount. Actual sale and purchase are not reflected as the
goods are purchased by the customer as agent of the Group and all documents relating to purchase are in customer name.
However, the profit on that sale revenue not due for payment is deferred by recording a credit to the "Deferred Murabaha
Income" account.

LLLeeetttttteeerrrsss ooofff cccrrreeedddiiittt aaannnddd ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeeesss

Commission on letters of credit and guarantees etc. is recognized on time proportion basis. 
 

CCCuuussstttooommmeeerrr LLLoooyyyaaallltttyyy PPPrrrooogggrrraaammmmmmeeesss

The revenue from award credits for loyalty points earned on use of various products of the Group is measured by reference
to their fair value and is recognised when award credits are redeemed. 

 
FFFeeeeee,,, CCCooommmmmmiiissssssiiiooonnn aaannnddd BBBrrroookkkeeerrraaagggeee IIInnncccooommmeee

Fee, Commission and Brokerage income is recognized on accrual basis   
 

4.2 TTTaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss account
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity.

CCCuuurrrrrreeennnttt

Current taxation is the tax payable on taxable income earned from local as well as foreign operations for the year using tax
rates enacted at the date of statement of financial position and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

DDDeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the amounts
attributed to the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the asset can be utilized.

4.3 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

The Group classifies its investment portfolio into the following categories:

HHHeeelllddd---fffooorrr---tttrrraaadddiiinnnggg

These are securities, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, interest 
rate movements, dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term trading exists.

HHHeeelllddd---tttooo---mmmaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent and
ability to hold till maturity. 

 
AAAvvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee---fffooorrr---sssaaallleee

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories. 
 

Investments, including those referred to in para above, are accounted for as follows:   
 

.eulavriaftadeirraceraseitirucesdetouQ-

- Unquoted equity securities are valued at lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is 
calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial
statements.
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- Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost less impairment loss if any.

Investments other than those categorised as held for trading includes transaction costs associated with the investments. In
case of investments classified as held for trading, transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. 

 
All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market
convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the 
investments. 

 
Provision for impairment in the value of equity securities is made after considering objective evidence of impairment.
Provision for diminution in the value of debt securities is made as per the Prudential Regulation issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan.

Any unrealized surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of investments classified as ‘held-for-trading’ are taken to the profit 
and loss account and unrealized surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of investments classified as ‘available-for-sale’ is taken
directly to “surplus / deficit on revaluation of securities” in the balance sheet.  

 
IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

Associates as defined under local statutes but not under IAS are accounted for as ordinary investments.

4.4 BBBaaasssiiisss ooofff cccooonnnsssooollliiidddaaatttiiiooonnn

- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity, so as to obtain economic benefits from its activities. 

 
- The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Habib Bank Limited and the financial

statements of subsidiary companies from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The 
financial statements of such subsidiary companies are incorporated on a line-by-line basis and the investment held by
the Bank is eliminated against the corresponding share capital of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements.

 
- Material intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated.

- Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and 
operating policies. Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control established by
contractual agreement. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated
financial statements include Groups' share of the results of the associates and joint venture. 

 
4.5 LLLeeennndddiiinnngggsss /// bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss

Where securities are sold subject to a commitment to re-purchase them at a pre-determined price, they remain on the
balance sheet and a liability is recorded in respect of the consideration received in “borrowings”. Conversely, securities
purchased under analogous commitments to resell are not recognized on the balance sheet and the consideration paid is
recorded in “lendings to financial institutions". 

 
The difference between the sale and purchase price is recognized as mark-up / return expensed or earned on time proportion 
basis as the case may be.

4.6 SSSuuubbb --- OOOrrrdddiiinnnaaattteeeddd DDDeeebbbttt

Sub-ordinated debt is initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on sub-ordinated debt is
recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account over the period on an accrual 
basis.

4.7 AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss

LLLoooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

Loans and advances and net investment in finance lease are stated net of provision for loan losses. Provision for loan losses of 
Pakistan operations including general provision is made in accordance with the requirements of the prudential regulations
issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. Provision for loan losses of overseas branches and subsidiary companies are made as per 
the requirements of the respective central banks. Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.
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FFFiiinnnaaannnccceee llleeeaaassseee rrreeeccceeeiiivvvaaabbbllleeesss

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee are 
classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payments 
including any guaranteed residual value. Finance lease receivables are included in loans and advances to customers.

IIIjjjaaarrraaahhh

Assets given on lease, after taking into account the estimated residual value, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
using straight line method over the life of the lease. Impairment evaluation of loss on sale expected from the unilateral 
commitment given by the customer to purchase the asset at the expiry of the lease term and the Group's policy to accept
the offer is carried out by comparing the Written Down Value to the Net Present Value of the expected cash flows at the
date of statement of financial position. Impairment losses evaluated, are booked in the Profit and Loss as and when occurred.
The residual value of the lease asset is the estimated amount that Group could obtain from disposal of assets as defined in 
para 6 of IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment. This has been estimated on the basis that all assets given on lease have an
economic life of ten years and if the assets were depreciated over this life the written down value at end of lease term would
represent the residual value.

These leases are shown as financing against lease under advances and further analysis is provided in the note of Islamic 
Banking activities (note 48).

4.8 OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiinnnggg fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss aaannnddd dddeeeppprrreeeccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn

4.8.1 TTTaaannngggiiibbbllleee

Fixed assets and capital work-in-progress, are stated at cost, except for land and buildings which are carried at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation, where applicable, and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Cost of fixed assets of foreign branches and subsidiary companies include exchange differences arising on translation at year-
end rates. Land and buildings are revalued by independent professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure 
that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value. Surplus arising on revaluation is credited to the
‘surplus on revaluation of fixed assets’ account (net of deferred tax). Under the provision of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against the balance in the above surplus account. 

 
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets to the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the related assets is 
transferred by the Group to un-appropriated profits (net of deferred tax).

All operating assets are being depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method from the date the 
assets are available for use. 

 
Depreciation is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their expected useful lives at the rates specified in note 10.3 to
these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking into account residual value, if any.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of 
statement of financial position. 

 
Depreciation on addition and deletion of tangible assets during the year is charged in proportion to the period of use.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred. However, renewals are
capitalized.  

 
Gains or losses arising on the disposal of fixed assets are included in income currently. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 
(net of deferred tax) realized during the year is transferred directly to un-appropriated profit.

4.8.2 IIInnntttaaannngggiiibbbllleee

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortization is charged at the rate stated in note 10.2. Amortization on additions and deletions of intangible assets during
the year is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if 
appropriate at each date of statement of financial position. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at
acquisition cost less impairment, if any. 

 
4.8.3 GGGoooooodddwwwiiillllll

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured, subsequent to initial recognition, at its cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment annually or whenever there
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is an indication of impairment as per the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 36, 'Impairment of Assets'.
Impairment charge in respect of goodwill is recognized in the profit and loss account. 

 Goodwill can be attributed to significant synergies expected to arise from the acquisition and to those intangibles such as
branch network, customer base and geographical presence which are not recognized separately.

4.9 EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeee bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank operates the following post retirement schemes for its employees:   
 

i) For those who did not opt for the pension scheme of 1977 and for new employees, the Bank operates:
 

- Approved funded provident fund (defined contribution scheme)
- Approved funded gratuity scheme (defined benefit scheme)   

 
Liability under the gratuity scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

ii) For those who opted for the pension scheme introduced in 1977, the Bank operates:

- Approved funded pension scheme (defined benefit scheme) for services up to March 31, 2005.
- Contributory gratuity and provident fund schemes in lieu of pension fund for services subsequent 

.)emehcsnoitubirtnocdenifed(5002,13hcraMot

Liability under the pension scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

PPPooosssttt rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank also provides post retirement medical benefits to its clerical employees and pensioners retiring before December 
31, 2005. Provision is made in the financial statements for this benefit based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method. The employees under officers and executives cadre are entitled to receive lump sum payments in lieu of post 
retirement medical facilities as a full and final settlement, effective January 01, 2006 onwards. 

 
OOOttthhheeerrr pppooosssttt rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank provides cash benefits on retirement which are estimated as per the actuarial advice. 
 

EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeeesss’’’ cccooommmpppeeennnsssaaattteeeddd aaabbbssseeennnccceeesss

The Bank also makes provision in the financial statements for its liabilities towards compensated absences. This liability is
estimated on the basis of actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

 
BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt fffuuunnnddd

The Bank operates funded benevolent schemes for its executives / officers and clerical / non-clerical employees. Under this
scheme, the employees of the Bank are entitled to receive defined grants / facilities during their service and after retirement.
The benevolent fund plan covers all the employees of the Bank.

Provision is made in the financial statements for this benefit based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

An option for one time full and final payment of fair value of Pension and Benevolent fund based on actuarial valuation has
been offered on retirement / early settlement at the time  of availing leave prior to retirement (LPR) and / or death of an
employee. Similarly, the existing beneficiaries / or prospective legal heir(s) shall have an option to receive fair value of 
aforesaid benefits including medical in lump sum offered by the Bank, being one time payment in full and final settlement.

SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss /// dddeeefffiiiccciiittt ooonnn rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt fffuuunnndddsss /// sssccchhheeemmmeeesss

Any surplus / deficit arising on actuarial valuation of these schemes (including actuarial gains / losses) available to / payable
by the Bank is recognized in the year in which it arises. 

 
OOOttthhheeerrr sssccchhheeemmmeeesss

:swollofsaeraseinapmocyraidisbusybdereffostifenebeeyolpmE

Habib Allied International Bank Plc., United
Habib Finance International Limited, Hong Kong Provident fund and long service payment scheme
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4.10 FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy

FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy tttrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pakistani rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the date 
of statement of financial position. The fair value of forward cover taken from the State Bank of Pakistan for foreign currency
deposits is added / deducted from value of foreign currency deposits. Forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign bills
purchased are valued at forward rates applicable to their respective maturities. 

 
FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn ooopppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnsss

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Pakistani rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
statement of financial position. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated at average rate of exchange for 
the year. 

 
TTTrrraaannnssslllaaatttiiiooonnn gggaaaiiinnnsss aaannnddd lllooosssssseeesss

Translation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account, except those arising on the translation of net
investment in foreign operations i.e., foreign branches, subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates which are taken to equity
under "Exchange Translation Reserve" and on disposal are recognized in profit or loss account.

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at forward rates applicable to their
respective maturities. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in
foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of statement of financial position.

4.11 CCCaaassshhh aaannnddd cccaaassshhh eeeqqquuuiiivvvaaallleeennntttsss

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts.  
 

4.12 OOOffffff ssseeettttttiiinnnggg

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set-off and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle
the liabilities simultaneously.  

 
4.13 IIImmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt

The carrying amount of the Groups' assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each date of statement of financial
position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the
reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. 

 
4.14 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn fffooorrr ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeee ccclllaaaiiimmm

Provision for guarantee claim is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists that the Group will settle the
obligation. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer’s account. Charge to profit and loss account is stated net
of expected recoveries. 

 
4.15 OOOttthhheeerrr ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss

Other provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. 

 
4.16 FFFiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll AAAsssssseeetttsss aaannnddd LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, lending to financial 
institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, bills payable, borrowings, deposits, sub-ordinated loans and certain
other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed in the relevant policy notes. 
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4.17 DDDeeerrriiivvvaaatttiiivvveee fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnssstttrrruuummmeeennntttsss

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently remeasured at fair value. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognized in profit and loss account. 

 
4.18 DDDiiivvviiidddeeennnddd dddiiissstttrrriiibbbuuutttiiiooonnn

Declarations of dividend to holders of the equity instruments of the Group are recognised as liability in the period in which it
is declared.

4.19 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt rrreeepppooorrrtttiiinnnggg

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing product or services (business segment), 
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to 
risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Group's primary format of reporting is based on 
business segments. 

 
BBBuuusssiiinnneeessssss ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss

- Retail Banking

Consists of retail lending, deposits and banking services to private individuals and small businesses including credit 
cards. 

 
- Corporate / Commercial Banking

Consists of lendings for project finance, trade finance, corporate and commercial customers and investment banking,
includes advices and placements to corporate mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatizations and
securitization. 

 
- Treasury   

Involves the businesses of proprietary trading, fixed income, equity and foreign exchanges.

- International Banking Group

It represents Group's operations in 25 countries and is considered a separate segment for monitoring purposes.

- Head O!ce  

This includes balances held at Head Office level for regulatory requirements or other operational reasons and business
segments not shown separately. This also includes some non performing loans not managed by other business 
segments, statutory liquidity and shareholders equity related balances and their associated cost / income.

GGGeeeooogggrrraaappphhhiiicccaaalll ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss

The group operates in five geographic regions, being:   

- Pakistan  
- Asia Pacific (including South Asia)   
- Europe
- North America
- Middle East   
- Others
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
5. CCCAAASSSHHH AAANNNDDD BBBAAALLLAAANNNCCCEEESSS WWWIIITTTHHH TTTRRREEEAAASSSUUURRRYYY BBBAAANNNKKKSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

sdnoBezirPlanoitaNgnidulcnidnahnI
811,083,01512,548,41ycnerruclacoL
894,001,2795,023,2ycnerrucngieroF

17,165,812 12,480,616

1.5ninatsikaPfoknaBetatShtiW
329,001,72663,935,23tnuoccatnerrucycnerruclacoL

Foreign currency current a 325,073,2355,963,3tnuocc
709,911,7325,831,01tnuoccatisopedycnerrucngieroF

46,047,442 36,591,353

2.5nisknaBlartneCrehtohtiW
730,116,11198,361,51tnuoccatnerrucycnerrucngieroF
146,347,21758,743,01tnuoccatisopedycnerrucngieroF

25,511,748 24,354,678

ninatsikaPfoknaBlanoitaNhtiW
995,312,8126,476,41tnuoccatnerrucycnerruclacoL

103,399,623 81,640,246

The above balances include remunerative accounts amounting to Rs. 15,485.433 million (2010: 15,788.255 million).

5.1 This includes balances held with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to comply with the reserve requirements issued from time to 
time and also represents US dollar settlement account maintained with SBP. This carries, mark-up at the rate of 0% per 
annum (2010: 0% per annum) . 
 

5.2 Balances held with the Central Banks of respective countries in accordance with the requirements of the local statutory / 
Central Bank regulations. Since, the Group operates in different countries, these carry varied mark-up rates as given by the 
Central Banks of respective countries. 

 
NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000

6. BBBAAALLLAAANNNCCCEEESSS WWWIIITTTHHH OOOTTTHHHEEERRR BBBAAANNNKKKSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

In Pakistan
271,763744,908tnuoccatnerrucnO

--tnuoccatisopednO
809,447 367,172

1.6natsikaPedistuO
753,076,3846,374,5tnuoccatnerrucnO
656,573,33014,660,14tnuoccatisopednO

46,540,058 37,046,013
47,349,505 37,413,185

6.1 This includes remunerative current account balance amounting to Rs. 191.576 million (2010: Rs. 547.077 million). Since, the
Group operates in different countries, these carry varied mark-up rates as given by the external banks of respective 
countries. 
 

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
7. LLLEEENNNDDDIIINNNGGGSSS TTTOOO FFFIIINNNAAANNNCCCIIIAAALLL IIINNNSSSTTTIIITTTUUUTTTIIIOOONNNSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

7.1 IIInnn lllooocccaaalll cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy

000,009000,054,11.2.7sgnidnelyenomllaC
443,934,92920,131,042.7)operesrever(sgnidneltnemeergaesahcrupeR

41,581,029 30,339,344



222000111111 222000111000
7.2 SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss hhheeelllddd aaasss cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy FFFuuurrrttthhheeerrr TTToootttaaalll HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy FFFuuurrrttthhheeerrr TTToootttaaalll

aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt llleeennndddiiinnngggsss tttooo fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll GGGrrrooouuuppp gggiiivvveeennn aaasss GGGrrrooouuuppp gggiiivvveeennn aaasss
iiinnnssstttiiitttuuutttiiiooonnnsss cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

443,934,92-443,934,92920,131,04-920,131,04

7.2.1 Market value of securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions as at December 31, 2011 amounted to Rs.
40,253.648 million (2010: Rs. 29,558.401 million).These carry mark-up rates ranging from 12.15% to 13.10% per annum
(2010: 12.50% to 13.40% per annum) and 11.25% to 13.40% per annum (2010: 12.60% to 13.90% per annum) for call money
lendings and repurchase agreement lendings respectively. 

 
8. IIINNNVVVEEESSSTTTMMMEEENNNTTTSSS NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000

HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy GGGiiivvveeennn aaasss TTToootttaaalll HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy GGGiiivvveeennn aaasss TTToootttaaalll
8.1 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss bbbyyy tttyyypppeee GGGrrrooouuuppp cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll GGGrrrooouuuppp cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
HHHeeelllddd fffooorrr TTTrrraaadddiiinnnggg SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss (((HHHFFFTTT)))

344,2-344,2

921,955,8-921,955,834

028,796,1-028,796,117

504,198,4-504,198,404

904,6)0 - 6,409

- (866,954)

-

Net Investment
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8.2 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss bbbyyy ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

seitiruceStnemnrevoGlaredeF
613,126,511728,108,862slliByrusaerTtekraM-
882,868,12514,219,07sdnoBtnemtsevnInatsikaP-
000,524000,524sdnoBdeetnarauGnatsikaPfotnemnrevoG-
921,955,8342,164,61)oruE/ralloDSU(/kukuS/sdnoBnatsikaPfotnemnrevoG-
021,301,11288,596,61seitiruceStnemnrevoGsaesrevO

Fully paid-up Ordinary Shares 
362,007,1175,015,2seinapmocdetsiL-
639,067830,167seinapmocdetsilnU-

Debentures and Corporate stinU/stnemurtsnItbeD
504,198,4047,462,6seitirucesdetsiL-
394,319,48316,121,82seitirucesdetsilnU-

Preference Shares 200,000 200,000
 NIT Units 11,529 11,529

221,102,3481,706,3sdnuflautumfostnemtsevnI
643,636,4328,406,64.8erutneVtnioJdnasetaicossAnitnemtsevnI

421,377,865 257,891,947

Less: Provision for diminution / impairment in the value of investments including
associates 8.8 (2,364,383) (2,122,286)

166,967,552284,310,914tnemtsevniteN
(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of HFT securities 904,6)028,63(
Deficit on revaluation of available fo )459,668()027,663(2.91seitiruceselasr
Deficit on revaluation of investment -)597,5(setaicossafo

418,604,147 254,909,116

8.3 
(2010: Rs. 7,194.986 million).

8.4 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee cccooommmpppaaannnyyy 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

KKKyyyrrrgggyyyzzz IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt aaannnddd CCCrrreeedddiiittt BBBaaannnkkk,,, KKKyyyrrrgggyyyzzz RRReeepppuuubbbllliiiccc --- HHHooollldddiiinnnggg --- 111888%%% (((222000111000::: 111888%%%))) --- UUUnnnllliiisssttteeeddd
223,103635,533ecnalabgninepO

532,611raeyehtgnirudtnemtsevnI -
264,82806,29xatfoten-raeyehtroftiforpfoerahS
257,5851,22raeyehtrofevresernoitalsnartegnahcxE

)426,4(raeyehtgniruddeviecerdnediviD -

561,913 335,536
DDDiiiaaammmooonnnddd TTTrrruuusssttt BBBaaannnkkk LLLiiimmmiiittteeeddd,,, KKKeeennnyyyaaa --- HHHooollldddiiinnnggg --- 111111...222111%%% (((222000111000::: 111000%%%))) --- LLLiiisssttteeeddd

763,882,1142,205,1ecnalabgninepO
645,112raeyehtgnirudtnemtsevnI -

001,572278,392xatfoten-raeyehtroftiforpfoerahS
)024,33(566,02raeyehtrofevresernoitalsnartegnahcxE
)608,72()096,72(raeyehtgniruddeviecerdnediviD

2,000,634 1,502,241
HHHiiimmmaaalllaaayyyaaannn BBBaaannnkkk LLLiiimmmiiittteeeddd,,, NNNeeepppaaalll --- HHHooollldddiiinnnggg --- 222000%%% (((222000111000::: 222000%%%))) --- LLLiiisssttteeeddd

640,918171,500,1ecnalabgninepO
358,251555,442xatfoten-raeyehtroftiforpfoerahS
545,66)660,031(raeyehtrofevresernoitalsnartegnahcxE
)372,33()895,54(raeyehtgniruddeviecerdnediviD

1,074,062 1,005,171
uuubbbiiillleeeeee GGGeeennneeerrraaalll IIInnnsssuuurrraaannnccceee CCCooommmpppaaannnyyy LLLiiimmmiiittteeedd,d, --- HHHooollldddiiinnnggg --- 111444...222777%%% (((222000111000::: 999...666444%%%))) --- LLLiiisssttteeeddd

688,767097,165ecnalabgninepO
227,792raeyehtgnirudtnemtsevnI -

Impairment loss - (238,000)
279,05642,19xatfoten-raeyehtroftiforpfoerahS
)860,91()452,51(raeyehtgniruddeviecerdnediviD

935,504 561,790

JJ

The market value of securities classified as HTM as at December 31, 2011 amounted to Rs. 43,459.276 million
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

482,871  221,124
- 254,772

52,793 12,565 
(16,883)   (5,590)
518,781  482,871

175,477 -
29,000 165,000

76  -
26,762 10,477 

231,315  175,477
8.5.2

- -
250,000 -

11,260 -
(4,911)  -

256,349 -

- -
250,000 -

17,158  -

267,158  -

- -
30,000 -

105 -
(392) -

29,713 -

- -
30,000 -

171  -
(2) -

30,169 -

- -
30,000 -

171  -
(2) -

30,169 -

- -
30,000 -

162 -
(564)  -

29,598 -

- -
30,000 -

200 -

30,200 -

- -
30,000 -

199  -

30,199 -

6,025,764 4,063,086 

Opening balance 
 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year - net of tax

Dividend received during the year

HHBBLL MMoonneeyy MMaarrkkeett FFuunndd,, HHoollddiinngg -- 22..7766%% ((22001100:: 1122..4466%%)) -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Surplus on investment

Share of profit for the year  
 

HHBBLL IIssllaammiicc SSttoocckk FFuunndd,, HHoollddiinngg -- 9966..1144%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 Deficit on investment 
 

HHBBLL IIssllaammiicc MMoonneeyy MMaarrkkeett FFuunndd,, HHoollddiinngg -- 6644..0088%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 

HHBBLL PPeennssiioonn EEqquuiittyy SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9999..2288%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 Surplus / (deficit) on investment 
 

HHBBLL PPeennssiioonn DDeebbtt SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9966..3344%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 Surplus / (deficit) on investment 
 

HHBBLL PPeennssiioonn MMoonneeyy MMaarrkkeett SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9977..2266%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 Surplus / (deficit) on investment 
 

HHBBLL IIssllaammiicc PPeennssiioonn EEqquuiittyy SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9999..9933%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 Surplus / (deficit) on investment 
 

HHBBLL IIssllaammiicc PPeennssiioonn DDeebbtt SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9999..9933%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 

HHBBLL IIssllaammiicc PPeennssiioonn MMoonneeyy MMaarrkkeett SSuubbFFuunndd -- HHoollddiinngg 9999..9977%% -- UUnnlliisstteedd
Opening balance 

 Investment during the year 
 Share of profit for the year  
 

JJuubbiilleeee LLiiffee IInnssuurraannccee CCoommppaannyy LLiimmiitteedd,, HHoollddiinngg -- 1177..9955%% ((22001100:: 1177..9955%%)) -- LLiisstteedd
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8.4.1 The market value of shares of above investments in listed associates at December 31, 2011 amounted to Rs. 4,857.766
million (2010: Rs. 6,861.508 million).

8.5 The Group has significant influence in Diamond Trust Bank Limited, Kyrgyz Investment and Credit Bank, Jubilee General
Insurance Company Limited and Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited because of Aga Khan Fund for Economic
Development's holding (parent of Group). 

 
8.5.1 The investments have been tested for impairment under the policy of the Group as given in note no. 4.13 and provision has

been made where required and disclosed in note no. 8.8. 
 

8.5.2 During the year the Group has subscribed for units of these funds. Currently, the holding of the Group is high due to initial
investments which are expected to go down with sale of units. Accordingly, these investments have been accounted for as 
investment in associates under IAS 28.

8.6 SSSuuummmmmmaaarrryyy ooofff fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnfffooorrrmmmaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee cccooommmpppaaannnyyy

222000111111
BBBaaassseeeddd ooonnn ttthhheee

fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ssstttaaattteeemmmeeennntttsss
aaasss ooonnn

AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss EEEqqquuuiiitttyyy RRReeevvveeennnuuueee PPPrrrooofffiiittt ///
(((lllooossssss)))

---------------------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

222000111000
BBBaaassseeeddd ooonnn ttthhheee

fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ssstttaaattteeemmmeeennntttsss
aaasss ooonnn

AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss EEEqqquuuiiitttyyy RRReeevvveeennnuuueee
PPPrrrooofffiiittt ///
(((lllooossssss)))

---------------------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Diamond Trust Bank Limited, Kenya June 30, 2010 80,687,182 70,884,325 9,802,857  3,864,156 1,310,830
Himalayan Bank Limited, Nepal July 16, 2010 52,858,090 48,474,926 4,383,164 3,673,539 609,916
Kyrgyz Investment and Credit Bank  December 31, 2009 8,991,854 7,075,475 1,916,379 923,933 270,727
 Jubilee Life Insurance Co. Ltd. September 30, 2010 9,986,776 9,432,444 554,332  26,483 70,539
 Jubilee General Insurance Co. Ltd. September 30, 2010 7,959,237 5,316,316 2,642,921  2,174,403 219,659
HBL Money Market Fund September 30, 2010 350,926 5,353 345,573 13,657 3,044

8.7 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeeddd uuunnndddeeerrrtttaaakkkiiinnngggsss --- aaasss pppeeerrr ssstttaaatttuuuttteee

222000111111 222000111000
CCCooosssttt HHHooollldddiiinnnggg CCCooosssttt HHHooollldddiiinnnggg

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) %%% (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) %%%

First Women Bank Limited 63,300 19.34%  63,300 26.78%
 Khushali Bank 300,000 17.60%  300,000 17.60%
 363,300  363,300

8.7.1 The Group does not have significant influence over these entities due to influence of the Government / major shareholders.
Accordingly these investments are accounted for as normal investments.
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8.8 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn hhheeelllddd aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt dddiiimmmiiinnnuuutttiiiooonnn iiinnn vvvaaallluuueee ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

The balances disclosed in note 8.1 are stated net of specific provision held. The analysis of total provision held is as follows:

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

074,275,2682,221,2ecnalabgninepO
)984,681(572,251ten-raeyehtrof)lasrever(/egrahC

Impairment charge / (reversal) on )281,99(808,48ten-seitirucesdetsil
000,832-etaicossanossoltnemriapmI
)176,74(380,732ten-)lasrever(/egrahclatoT

)392,3(-ffonettirwtnuomA
)566,062(-secnavdaotrefsnarT
)555,831(-ytilibailrehtootrefsnarT

-410,5tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
682,221,2383,463,21.8.8ecnalabgnisolC

8.8.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff tttyyypppeee aaannnddd ssseeegggmmmeeennnttt

HHHeeelllddd tttooo MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy ssseeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss
573,91115,05stnemurtsnitbedetaroprocdnaserutnebeD-

AAAvvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee---fffooorrr---sssaaallleee ssseeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss

- Fully paid-up ordinary shares  
665,154715,535seinapmocdetsiL-
941,14142,15seinapmocdetsilnU-
374,733377,044stnemurtsnitbedetaroprocdnaserutnebeD-

- Preference shares  100,000  100,000
- Units 256,629 276,040
- Investments of mutual funds 356,451  323,422
AAAssssssoooccciiiaaattteee 573,261 573,261

682,221,2383,463,2

8.9 Investments held for maintaining the liquidity requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan amounted to Rs. 111,394 million as 
at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 100,739 million).

8.10 Investments include Rs. 519.958 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 544.701 million) pledged with State Bank of 
Pakistan and National Bank of Pakistan against TT/DD discounting facilities and demand loan facilities.

Investments include Rs. 9.567 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 10.610 million) pledged with the Controller of
Military Accounts in lieu of Regimental Fund Accounts being maintained at various branches of the bank.

8.12 Investments include strategic investments amounting to Rs. 2,850 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 2,897 million)
under BPD circular letter no. 16 of 2006 dated August 1, 2006.

8.13 During August 2011, the assets and liabilities of Bank PHB have been transferred by Central Bank of Nigeria to a newly formed
Bank, Keystone Bank Limited under new management and the Board. The banking license of Bank PHB has been revoked,
therefore, the Bank has written off its investment in Bank PHB.

8.14 Information relating to investments including credit ratings in shares of listed and unlisted companies, redeemable capital
and bonds, required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements by the State Bank of Pakistan, is given in Annexure "I" 
and is an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
8.15 The comparative figures have been re-arranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.   

 

8.11
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
9. AAADDDVVVAAANNNCCCEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

.cte,secnanifgninnur,stiderchsac,snaoL
946,069,383795,886,163natsikaPnI
301,697,47197,131,09natsikaPedistuO
257,657,854883,028,154

254,758,3068,258,33.1.9natsikaPni-esaelecnanifnitnemtsevniteN

desahcrupdnadetnuocsidslliB
)sllibyrusaerttnemnrevoGgnidulcxe(

382,021,9280,024,01natsikaPnielbayaP
051,117,03473,063,73natsikaPedistuoelbayaP
334,138,93654,087,74
)526,596,24()840,680,64(4.9secnavdagnimrofrep-nontsniaganoisivorP
210,057,954656,763,754

FFFuuullllllyyy ppprrrooovvviiidddeeeddd nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ccclllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd aaasss
lllooossssss fffooorrr mmmooorrreee ttthhhaaannn fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss

386,725,21158,046,31natsikaPnI
)386,725,21()158,046,31(6.9noisivorP

--

9.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

933,189,553598,292,433ycnerruclacolnI1.1.9
gnicnanifycnerrucngierofgnidulcniycnerrucngierofnI

by domestic branches amountin  noillim845.540,02.sRotg
376,867,301167,470,321)noillim004.424,62.sR:0102(

210,057,954656,763,754

946,313,023274,109,842)raeyenootpurof(mrettrohS2.1.9
363,634,931481,664,802)raeyenorevorof(mretgnoL

210,057,954656,763,754

9.1.3 NNNeeettt iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn fffiiinnnaaannnccceee llleeeaaassseee

222000111111 222000111000
NNNooottt lllaaattteeerrr LLLaaattteeerrr ttthhhaaannn NNNooottt lllaaattteeerrr LLLaaattteeerrr ttthhhaaannn
ttthhhaaannn ooonnneee ooonnneee aaannnddd TTToootttaaalll ttthhhaaannn ooonnneee ooonnneee aaannnddd TTToootttaaalll

yyyeeeaaarrr llleeessssss ttthhhaaannn yyyeeeaaarrr llleeessssss ttthhhaaannn
fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Lease rentals receivable  1,313,132 3,043,965 4,357,097 1,314,697 3,047,593 4,362,290
Residual value 2,738 35,876 38,614 7,970  104,438 112,408

 Gross investment in finance lease 1,315,870 3,079,841 4,395,711 1,322,667 3,152,031 4,474,698
Unearned finance income (20,411) (522,440) (542,851) (23,209)  (594,037) (617,246)

Net investment in finance lease 1,295,459 2,557,401 3,852,860 1,299,458 2,557,994 3,857,452

9.2 Advances include Rs. 56,549.062 million (2010: Rs. 53,607.643 million) which have been placed under non-performing
status, other than those accounts classified as loss and fully provided for more than five years which have been placed in 
separate category as referred to in note 9.3, as detailed below: 
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9.5 AAAmmmeeennndddmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn PPPrrruuudddeeennntttiiiaaalll RRReeeggguuulllaaatttiiiooonnnsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnniiinnnggg aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 2 dated January 27, 2009 and BSD Circular No.10 dated October 20, 2009 issued by the 
State Bank of Pakistan, the Bank has availed the benefit of FSV against the non-performing advances (excluding consumer
housing finance portfolio). Had this benefit of FSV not been taken by the Bank, the specific provision against non-performing
advances as at December 31, 2011 would have been higher by Rs. 687.726 million and profit before taxation for the year ended
December 31, 2011 would have been lower by approximately Rs. 90.910 million (after taking into account the effect of 
discounting of FSV taken in previous year). Increase in retained earnings net of tax amounting to Rs. 447.022 million would
not be available for the distribution of cash and stock dividend to share holders.

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

9.6 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt fffuuullllllyyy ppprrrooovvviiidddeeeddd nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ccclllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd aaasss lllooossssss fffooorrr mmmooorrreee ttthhhaaannn fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss

Opening balance      12,527,683 12,914,798
Reversal      (816,117) (966,991)
Transferred during the year  9.4 1,972,321 915,567
 Write offs   9.7 (43,036) (335,691)

13,640,851 12,527,683

9.7 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff wwwrrriiittteee---oooffffffsss

202,918136,697snoisivorptsniagA1.7.9

9.7.2 AAAnnnaaalllyyysssiiisss ooofff wwwrrriiittteee---oooffffffsss

780,523830,35)8.9etoN(natsikaPnievobadna000,005sR
511,494395,347saesrevodnanatsikaPni000,005sRwoleB
202,918136,697

9.8 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff llloooaaannn wwwrrriiittteee---oooffffff ooofff RRRsss 555000000,,,000000000 aaannnddd aaabbbooovvveee

The statement required under sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 in respect of 
written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred thousand rupees or above allowed to a person(s) during the year
ended December 31, 2011 is given in Annexure II.

9.9 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss 222000111111 222000111000
tttooo dddiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss,,, aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeeddd cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss,,,
eeetttccc...

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee
ooouuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg

MMMaaaxxxiiimmmuuummm
tttoootttaaalll aaammmooouuunnnttt
ooofff llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd

aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss
iiinnncccllluuudddiiinnnggg

ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

ooouuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg
******

LLLiiimmmiiittt
sssaaannnccctttiiiooonnneeeddd
ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee

yyyeeeaaarrr

LLLoooaaannn rrreeepppaaaiiiddd
ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee

yyyeeeaaarrr

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee
ooouuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg

MMMaaaxxxiiimmmuuummm
tttoootttaaalll aaammmooouuunnnttt
ooofff llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd

aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss
iiinnncccllluuudddiiinnnggg

ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

ooouuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg
******

LLLiiimmmiiittt
sssaaannnccctttiiiooonnneeeddd
ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee

yyyeeeaaarrr

LLLoooaaannn
rrreeepppaaaiiiddd

ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee
yyyeeeaaarrr

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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10.6 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff dddiiissspppooosssaaalll ooofff fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss

The information relating to disposal of fixed assets in aggregate having book value exceeding Rs. 250,000 or cost exceeding
Rs. 1 million (whichever is lower), is required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements by the State Bank of Pakistan is
given in Annexure III and is an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
10.7 At December 31, 2011 carrying value of properties and equipment retired from active service and held for disposal purposes 

amounted to Rs. 142.998 million (2010: Rs. 154.291 million). The cost / Valuation of fully depreciated properties and
equipment that are still in the Group's use, as at the above date, amounted to Rs. 4,450.289 million (2010: Rs. 4,023.830 
million).

11. DDDEEEFFFEEERRRRRREEEDDD TTTAAAXXX AAASSSSSSEEETTT NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

DDDDeeeedddduuuuccccttttiiiibbbblllleeee tttteeeemmmmppppoooorrrraaaarrrryyyy ddddiiiiffffffffeeeerrrreeeennnncccceeeessss oooonnnn
975,027945,165sessolxatdesingocer-
722,311,1574,69stnemtsevnitsniaganoisivorp-
665,759,6699,441,6teehsecnalab-ffO&stbedluftbuodtsniaganoisivorp-
492,530,1894,279OTIehtfo)5(43.cesrednukcabnettirwseitilibail-
203,102018,611srehtotsniaganoisivorp-
921,754996,3322.91stnemtsevnifonoitaulaver-
790,584,01720,621,8

TTTaaaxxxaaabbbllleee ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ooonnn
)498,219()931,058(stessadexif-

NNNeeettt dddeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttaaaxxx aaasssssseeettt rrreeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd bbbyyy ttthhheee GGGrrrooouuuppp 7,275,888 9,572,203

11.1 MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt iiinnn ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee AAAsss RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd BBBaaalllaaannnccceee AAAsss RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd OOOttthhheeerrr BBBaaalllaaannnccceee aaasss
aaattt JJJaaannnuuuaaarrryyy iiinnn ppprrrooofffiiittt iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy aaattt DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr iiinnn ppprrrooofffiiittt iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt*** aaattt DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr

111,,, 222000111000 ooorrr lllooossssss 333111,,, 222000111000 ooorrr lllooossssss 333111,,, 222000111111
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DDDDeeeedddduuuuccccttttiiiibbbblllleeee tttteeeemmmmppppoooorrrraaaarrrryyyy ddddiiiiffffffffeeeerrrreeeennnncccceeeessss oooonnnn
- recognised tax losses  851,147 (108,740) (21,828) 720,579 (176,009) 24,012  (7,033) 561,549
- provision against investments 1,103,633 9,594      - 1,113,227 (1,016,752) - 96,475
- provision against doubtful debts &  
 Off-balance sheet 6,542,642 414,924       - 6,957,566 (812,570)  - 6,144,996
- provision against others  201,997 (695)      - 201,302 (84,492) - 116,810
 - liabilities written back under sec.

34(5) of the ITO 1,103,187 (67,893) 1,035,294 (62,796) 972,498
 - revaluation of investments 379,556      - 77,573 457,129      - (223,430)  233,699
TTTTaaaaxxxxaaaabbbblllleeee tttteeeemmmmppppoooorrrraaaarrrryyyy ddddiiiiffffffffeeeerrrreeeennnncccceeeessss oooonnnn
- fixed assets   (976,218) 75,664 (12,340) (912,894) 62,755  - - (850,139)
 9,205,944 322,854 43,405 9,572,203 (2,089,864) (199,418)  (7,033) 7,275,888

* This adjustment include movement due to consolidation of Habibsons Bank limited.



12. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS 222000111111 222000111000
NNNooottteee (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency   14,721,650 15,697,468
Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currency   1,215,755 838,033
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments   1,452,380 1,452,229
Advances against murabaha   - 57,686
Advance taxation (payments less provisions)   10,462,407 8,041,881
 Receivable from defined benefit plans   63,080  -
Stationery and stamps on hand   41,684 37,986
 Accrued income     161,954 155,303
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contract 12.2 1,154,950 869,966
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims  [market

582,965,2031,118,1])noillim122.808,2.sR:0102(noillim734.800,2.sReulav
Receivable from National Savings Centre / Clearing in transit   11,300,092 4,561,473
Receivable from SBP 1,358,841  -
Other non banking assets *    427,873 427,463
Dividend receivable    31,118 30,407
Others       920,126 636,715
 45,123,040 35,375,895
Provision held against other assets   12.1 (314,337) (455,888)

44,808,703 34,920,007

* Non banking assets on which buy back option period has not yet expired.

12.1 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt ooottthhheeerrr aaasssssseeetttsss

725,825888,554ecnalabgninepO
224,501)378,111(raeyehtrofegrahc/)lasreveR(
)748,802()105,92(ffoetirW

005,92)005,4(tnemevomrehtO
682,1323,4tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
888,554733,413ecnalabgnisolC

12.2 Unrealised loss on foreign exchange contracts amounting to Rs. 870.376 (2010: Rs. 385.633 million) has been grossed up from 
unrealised gain on foreign exchange contracts and shown as part of other liability. 

 
13. BBBIIILLLLLLSSS PPPAAAYYYAAABBBLLLEEE

In Pakistan 13,087,411 9,326,503
Outside Pakistan  807,091 448,590
 

13,894,502 9,775,093

222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
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14. BBBOOORRRRRROOOWWWIIINNNGGGSSS NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

In Pakistan 27,761,453 32,416,997
368,240,8712,217,11natsikaPedistuO

39,473,670 40,459,860

14.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss

799,614,23354,167,72ycnerruclacolnI
368,240,8712,217,11ycnerrucngierofnI

39,473,670 40,459,860
14.2 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss

SSSeeecccuuurrreeeddd
:rednunatsikaPfoknaBetatSmorfsgniworroB

- Export refinance scheme 18,182,197  20,515,415
- Long term financing facility - locally manufactured and  

4,204,722 
 

4,212,938
506,422,3435,477,1stcejorpdetneirotropxe-ecnanifmretgnoL-
930,417-sgniworrobtnemeergaesahcrupeR

24,161,453 28,666,997
UUUnnnssseeecccuuurrreeeddd
In Pakistan  

000,057,3000,006,34.41gniworrobyenomllacknabretnI-

Outside Pakistan  

106,162484,5545.41stnuoccaortsonnwardrevO-
262,187,7337,652,11seiraidisbusdnasehcnarbsaesrevofosgniworroB-

11,712,217 8,042,863
15,312,217  11,792,863

39,473,670 40,459,860

14.3 Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under the export and export oriented projects refinance schemes of SBP are
secured by the bank's cash and security balances held by SBP. These carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.7% to 11% per 
annum (2010: 8.2% to 9.5% per annum). 
 

14.4 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.7% to 13.05% per annum (2010: 12.7% to 12.83% per annum).

14.5 Since, the Group operates in different countries, these carry varied mark-up rates as given by the external banks of 
respective countries. 

 
222000111111 222000111000

15. DDDEEEPPPOOOSSSIIITTTSSS AAANNNDDD OOOTTTHHHEEERRR AAACCCCCCOOOUUUNNNTTTSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

CCCuuussstttooommmeeerrrsss
699,810,302950,871,182stisopeddexiF
784,680,143155,352,293tnuoccagniuqehcsgnivaS
479,527,1850,496,1evitarenumer-stnuoccatnerruC
532,432,681714,786,042evitarenumer-non-stnuoccatnerruC

915,813,085 732,065,692
FFFiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnssstttiiitttuuutttiiiooonnnsss

682,203,9465,681,11stisopedevitarenumeR
128,600,6678,136,6stisopedevitarenumer-noN

17,818,440   15,309,107
933,631,525 747,374,799

15.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff dddeeepppooosssiiitttsss

624,496,395989,882,817ycnerruclacolnI
In foreign currency {including fore   citsemodfostisopedycnerrucngi

933,631,525 747,374,799 49



16 SSSUUUBBB---OOORRRDDDIIINNNAAATTTEEEDDD LLLOOOAAANNN

16.1 The Group has obtained loan from "International Finance Corporation" (IFC) amounting to US $ 50 million (2010: US $ 50
million) equivalent to pak rupees 4,497.285 million (2010: 4,281.835 million). The principal amount is repayable in four
equal half yearly installments commencing from the year 2013 to 2014. Interest is payable on bi - annual basis commencing
from December 2007 at LIBOR + 1.75%. The loan is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of principal and interest to 
all other indebtness of the group (including deposits). The loan may not be prepaid or repaid before maturity without the
prior written approval of the State Bank of Pakistan. The Bank is not exposed to significant exchange risk as the loan forms 
part of the Bank's foreign currency net open position.

16.2 During the year 2010, Habibsons Bank Limited has issued a subordinated loan of US $ 6 million equivalent to pak rupees
538.815 million. This is repayable in the year 2020 and carries interest at LIBOR + 2.00%. The loan is subordinated to the 
claims of depositors and other creditors.  

 
NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000

17. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR LLLIIIAAABBBIIILLLIIITTTIIIEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

726,400,11777,041,51ycnerruclacolnielbayaptseretni/nruter/pu-kraM
760,183771,486ycnerrucngierofnielbayaptseretni/nruter/pu-kraM
534,443254,683stisopedytiruceS
594,225,3641,740,7sesnepxedeurccA
336,583773,0782.21stcartnocegnahcxengierofdrawrofnossoldesilaernU
483,62969,55sdnedividdemialcnU
108,22055,35elbayapdnediviD

.2.33secnesbadetasnepmoc'seeyolpmerofnoisivorP 8 1,720,577  1,591,125
.33stifeneblacidemtnemeritertsoprofnoisivorP 2.3  2,399,600     2,162,309

183,972,1389,902,11.71snoitagilboteehsecnalab-ffotsniaganoisivorP
165,901,1755,588,2tnuoccatnemtsujdahcnarB
425,584252,516stifenebtnemeriterffatsrofnoisivorP
288,071368,44nalptifenebdenifedotelbayaP
558,730,1184,429LBHybdetadilosnocsdnufnisrotsevniytironimoteudstnuomA
154,047175,402,1dnuferaflewsrekrowrofnoisivorP
616,353013,074emocnidenraenU
601,943319,643dnuFansaH-e-azraQ
929,897105,638elbayapsexatdnaseituD
689,42415,55elbayapecnarusnI
760,32253,04elbayaptniopdraweR
000,5277,662seitirucesfognidarttsniagaytilibaiL
118,737627,176srehtO
540,755,62024,139,73

17.1 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt oooffffff---bbbaaalllaaannnccceee ssshhheeeeeettt ooobbbllliiigggaaatttiiiooonnnsss

452,223,1183,972,1ecnalabgninepO
564,91)393,77(raeyehtrofegrahc/)lasreveR(
)107,66()681,8(ffoetirW
363,4181,61tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
183,972,1389,902,1ecnalabgnisolC

18. SSSHHHAAARRREEE CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL

18.1 AAAuuuttthhhooorrriiissseeeddd cccaaapppiiitttaaalll

222000111111 222000111000
NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr ooofff ssshhhaaarrreeesss iiinnn '''000000000

1,380,000 1,380,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10  000,008,31000,008,31hcae

18.2 IIIssssssuuueeeddd,,, sssuuubbbssscccrrriiibbbeeeddd aaannnddd pppaaaiiiddd---uuuppp cccaaapppiiitttaaalll

222000111111 222000111000
NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr ooofff ssshhhaaarrreeesss iiinnn '''000000000

hcae01.sRfoserahsyranidrO
000,009,6000,009,6hsacnidiapylluF000,096000,096
008,811,3086,021,4serahssunobsadeussI088,113860,214
008,810,01086,020,11088,100,1860,201,1
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18.3 EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee tttrrraaannnssslllaaatttiiiooonnn rrreeessseeerrrvvveee

This comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
 
18.4 SSStttaaatttuuutttooorrryyy rrreeessseeerrrvvveeesss

Every banking company incorporated in Pakistan is required to transfer 20% of their profits to a statutory reserve until the 
reserve equals share capital, thereafter 10% of the profits of the holding company are to be transferred to this reserve.

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
18.5 DDDiiivvviiidddeeennndddsss (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

The following cash dividends and bonus shares were declared and paid / issued by the Bank: 
 

008,464,5022,215,6)erahsrep6.sR:0102(erahsrep5.6.sR:dnedividhsaC

Bonus share: 1 shares for every 10 shares held (2010: 1 share for every 10 shares held) 1,001,880 910,800
 

402,603,3erahsrep3.sRtadiapdnedividhsacmiretnI

After December 31, 2011 the following dividends were proposed by the Directors for 2011.
The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

272,804,4erahsrep4.sR:dnedividhsaC

860,201,1dlehserahs01yreveroferahs1:erahssunoB

19. SSSUUURRRPPPLLLUUUSSS OOONNN RRREEEVVVAAALLLUUUAAATTTIIIOOONNN OOOFFF AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS --- nnneeettt ooofff dddeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttaaaxxx

:fonoitaulavernognisirasulpruS
188,506,8283,243,81.91stessadexif-
)528,904()618,831(2.91stnemtsevni-
650,691,8665,302,8xatderrefedfoten-stessafonoitaulavernosulpruS

19.1 SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss ooonnn rrreeevvvaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss

135,215,9935,674,91yraunaJtasastessadexiffonoitaulavernosulpruS
desingocerseitreporps'knabfonoitaulavernosulpruS

509,251-raeyehtgnirud
-)133,931(raeyehtgnirudseitreporpdeulaverfolasopsidnodesilaersulpruS

latnemercnifotcepsernitiforpdetairporppanuotderrefsnarT
)387,221()861,421(xatderrefedfoten-raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerped

latnemercnifoytilibailxatderrefeddetaleR
)411,66()068,66(raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerped

-)144,2(seitreporpdeulaverfolasopsidnoytilibailxatderrefeddetaleR
935,674,9937,341,913rebmeceDtasastessadexiffonoitaulavernosulpruS

noytilibailxatderrefeddetaler:sseL
234,429856,0781yraunaJtasanoitaulaver-
043,21-raeyehtgniruddesingocerseitreporps'knabfonoitaulaver-

-)144,2(raeyehtgnirudseitreporpdeulaverfolasopsidnodesilaersulprus-
raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerpedlatnemercni-

)411,66()068,66(tnuoccassoldnatiforpotderrefsnart
801,357 870,658

188,506,8283,243,8

19.2 SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss /// (((dddeeefffiiiccciiittt))) ooonnn rrreeevvvaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

)710,651(428,116slliByrusaerTtekraM
)706,061,1()182,791(sdnoBtnemtsevnInatsikaP
)813,142()086,438(sdnoBoruEdnakukuS
555,385794,751seitiruceSdetsiL

NIT Units  7,089 10,963
074,69)961,111(stnemtsevnIrehtO
)459,668()027,663(

-)597,5(setaicossafotnemtsevnifonoitaulavernoticifeD
921,754996,332tessaxatderrefeddetaleR
)528,904()618,831(
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222000111111 222000111000
20. CCCOOONNNTTTIIINNNGGGEEENNNCCCIIIEEESSS AAANNNDDD CCCOOOMMMMMMIIITTTMMMEEENNNTTTSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

20.1 DDDiiirrreeecccttt cccrrreeedddiiittt sssuuubbbssstttiiitttuuuttteeesss --- fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeeesss

:foruovafniseetnarauG
- Government 

677,32695,813snoitutitsnilaicnaniF-
- Others   22,236,973 37,786,477

22,909,647 38,169,681

20.2 TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnn---rrreeelllaaattteeeddd cccooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnttt llliiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss

:foruovafniseetnarauG
- Government  1,604,813 1,644,786

541,49292,636snoitutitsnilaicnaniF-
- Others  33,562,792 28,455,811

247,491,03798,308,53

20.3 TTTrrraaadddeee---rrreeelllaaattteeeddd cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

Credit cash 70,799,073 80,891,494
762,840,8007,607,32secnatpeccayratnemucodtiderC
474,240,61721,610,42secnatpeccatiderC
532,289,401009,125,811

20.4 OOOttthhheeerrr cccooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss

339,176,48stbedsadegdelwonkcatonpuorGehttsniagasmialC 82,648,725

20.5 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrrwwwaaarrrddd llleeennndddiiinnnggg

The Group makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but none of these commitments are 
irrevocable and do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

20.6 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrrwwwaaarrrddd fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn aaannnddd lllooocccaaalll eeexxxccchhhaaannngggeee cccooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Purchase 
Sale

.raeyenonihtiwgnillafseitirutamevahstnemtimmocevobaehT

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy oooppptttiiiooonnnsss

Purchase 
Sale

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff cccrrrooossssss cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy ssswwwaaapppsss

Purchase 
Sale

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn aaannnddd lllooocccaaalll cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy iiinnnttteeerrreeesssttt rrraaattteee ssswwwaaapppsss

Purchase 
Sale

20.7 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss fffooorrr aaacccqqquuuiiisssiiitttiiiooonnn ooofff ooopppeeerrraaatttiiinnnggg fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss /// iiinnntttaaannngggiiibbbllleeesss
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21 DDDEEERRRIIIVVVAAATTTIIIVVVEEE IIINNNSSSTTTRRRUUUMMMEEENNNTTTSSS

21.1 PPPrrroooddduuucccttt AAAnnnaaalllyyysssiiisss 222000111111
CCCooouuunnnttteeerrrpppaaarrrtttiiieeesss IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee SSSwwwaaapppsss FFFXXX OOOppptttiiiooonnnsss CCCrrrooossssss CCCuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy SSSwwwaaapppsss

NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll ***

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

WWWiiittthhh BBBaaannnkkksss fffooorrr

WWWiiittthhh ooottthhheeerrr eeennntttiiitttiiieeesss fffooorrr

TTToootttaaalll

222000111000
CCCooouuunnnttteeerrrpppaaarrrtttiiieeesss IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee SSSwwwaaapppsss FFFXXX OOOppptttiiiooonnnsss CCCrrrooossssss CCCuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy SSSwwwaaapppsss

NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll ***

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn
'''000000000)))

WWWiiittthhh BBBaaannnkkksss fffooorrr
------gnigdeH

Market Making 1 371,092 - -  - -

WWWiiittthhh ooottthhheeerrr eeennntttiiitttiiieeesss fffooorrr
------gnigdeH

Market Making 1 371,092 - -  - -

TTToootttaaalll
------gnigdeH

Market Making 2 742,184 - -  - -

.raeygnitroperehtfodneehttagniliaverpetaregnahcxeehttA*

21.2 MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy AAAnnnaaalllyyysssiiisss

222000111111
RRReeemmmaaaiiinnniiinnnggg MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy NNNooo... ooofff

CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss
NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll

MMMaaarrrkkk tttooo MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt

NNNeeegggaaatttiiivvveee PPPooosssiiitttiiivvveee NNNeeettt
------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------

222000111000
RRReeemmmaaaiiinnniiinnnggg MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy NNNooo... ooofff

CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss
NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll

MMMaaarrrkkk tttooo MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt

NNNeeegggaaatttiiivvveee PPPooosssiiitttiiivvveee NNNeeettt
------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------

5 to 10 years  2 742,184 (9,496) 10,396 900
 2 742,184 (9,496) 10,396 900
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21.3 During the year HBL has been granted the ADD status by SBP. Hence, it is now permissible for the Group to undertake
market-making activities, which may include taking proprietary positions. The Group has strengthened its Derivative
platform through acquisition of a leading international derivatives solution and skilled human resources. The derivative
products include Foreign Currency Options (FXCO), Forward Rate Agreements (FRA), Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) and Cross 
Currency Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS), as permitted by SBP. The Group fully understands the complexities involved and 
market depth for derivatives products. Therefore, these products are offered in line with the strict criteria set in the
derivatives policy document.  

 
22. MMMAAARRRKKK---UUUPPP /// RRREEETTTUUURRRNNN /// IIINNNTTTEEERRREEESSSTTT EEEAAARRRNNNEEEDDD 222000111111 222000111000

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

738,583,45148,223,55sremotsuC-
561,173981,533snoitutitsnilaicnaniF-

OOOOnnnn llllooooaaaannnnssss aaaannnndddd aaaaddddvvvvaaaannnncccceeeessss ttttoooo

OOOOnnnn iiiinnnnvvvveeeessssttttmmmmeeeennnnttttssss

164,977,22796,104,73elas-rof-elbaliavA-
291,06999,225gnidart-rof-dleH-
018,374274,881,1ytirutam-ot-dleH-

782,096951,787snoitutitsnilaicnanifhtiwstisopednO
672,465,2660,220,3snoitutitsnilaicnanifotsgnidnelnO
820,523,18324,085,89

23. MMMAAARRRKKK---UUUPPP /// RRREEETTTUUURRRNNN /// IIINNNTTTEEERRREEESSSTTT EEEXXXPPPEEENNNSSSEEEDDD

Deposits  37,971,786 30,793,996
748,423805,987sgniworrobtnemeergaesahcruperrednudlosseitiruceS
196,276,2760,588,2sgniworrobmrettrohsrehtO
127,835958,535sgniworrobmretgnoL
552,033,43022,281,24

24. GGGAAAIIINNN /// (((LLLOOOSSSSSS))) OOONNN SSSAAALLLEEE OOOFFF SSSEEECCCUUURRRIIITTTIIIEEESSS ---NNNEEETTT

Federal Government Securi!es  
490,701986,003sllibyrusaerttekraM-
628,52)901,19(sdnobtnemtsevninatsikaP-
051,1665seitirucesrehtO-

357,281179,133serahsdetsiL
328,613711,245

25. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR IIINNNCCCOOOMMMEEE

707,501,2775,470,2segrahclatnedicnI
742,072508,373srekcolnotneR
568,71897,7stessadexifgnitarepofoelasnoniaG
390,27045,89ytreporpnotneR
298,151274,43derevocerstbeddaB
624,241343,033sgninraesuoenallecsiM
032,067,2535,919,2
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26. AAADDDMMMIIINNNIIISSSTTTRRRAAATTTIIIVVVEEE EEEXXXPPPEEENNNSSSEEESSS NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

505,979,21978,192,513.62.cte,secnawolla,seiralaS
Charge for defined benefit / contribution 688,187502,036,1stifenebrehtodnanalp

005,41007,31seef'srotceridevitucexe-noN
716,41278,02noissimmocdnaegarekorB
573,103,2990,778,2cte,yticirtcele,ecnarusni,sexat,tneR
059,887501,066,1segrahclanoisseforpdnalageL
106,754487,026snoitacinummoC
973,380,1557,371,1ecnanetniamdnasriapeR
547,554251,335gnitnirpdnayrenoitatS
896,901876,4111.62noitarenumer'srotiduA
095,338229,030,1yticilbupdnatnemesitrevdA
356,991420,442.01noitasitromA
758,025,1092,424,13.01noitaicerpeD
983,99861,721tnemniatretnE
998,192704,963gnillevarT
398,301030,111racrotomdnaecnayevnoC
742,861643,931gniniarT
990,496438,467segrahcytiruceS
931,28326,461segrahcecnattimeR
351,593820,3524.62snoitanoD
168,404887,904segrahcgnissecorpdnanoitatnemucoD
429,174272,956srehtO
069,252,42169,334,92

26.1 AAAuuudddiiitttooorrrsss''' rrreeemmmuuunnneeerrraaatttiiiooonnn

286,3286,3eeftiduA
053,3053,3weivermiretnirofeeF
951,8951,8detimiLknaBbibaHfosehcnarblacolfotiduarofeeF

Special certifications / examinations an 465,5256,1secivresyrosivdayrdnusd
220,3202,3sesnepxetekcopfotuO
777,32540,02

Overseas subsidiaries / branches an 129,58336,49seiraidisbuscitsemodd
896,901876,411

26.2 The Bank operates a short term employee benefit scheme which includes cash award / special bonus for all employees. 
Under this scheme, the bonus for all Executives, including the Chief Executive Officer is determined on the basis of
employees' evaluation and the Bank's performance during the year. The aggregate amount determined for the eligible 
employees in respect of the above scheme relating to all Executives and for the Key Management Personnel of the Bank
amounted to Rs. 607.803 million (2010: Rs. 524.883  million) and Rs. 424.793 million (2010: Rs. 376.988 million)
respectively.  

 
26.3

(2010: Rs. 210.782 million) to the staff retrenched during the year and in previous years. 
 

26.4 Details of the donations in excess of Rs. 100,000 and above are given in Annexure IV.

26.5 BBBeeennnaaazzziiirrr EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeeesss’’’ SSStttoooccckkk OOOppptttiiiooonnn SSSccchhheeemmmeee

There is no liability of the bank to grant shares under this scheme and no impact on current or future cash flows of the 
Bank. The details of schemes are as under: 

 
On August 14, 2009, the Government of Pakistan (GOP) launched Benazir Employees’ Stock Option Scheme [`the 
Scheme’] for employees of certain State Owned Enterprises (SOEs) and non-State Owned Enterprises where GOP holds 
significant investments (non-SOEs). The scheme is applicable to permanent and contractual employees who were in 
employment of these entities on the date of launch of the Scheme, subject to completion of five years vesting period by
all contractual employees and by permanent employees in certain instances. 

The Scheme provides for a cash payment to employees on retirement or termination based on the price of shares of 
respective entities. To administer this scheme, GOP shall transfer 12% of its investment in such SOEs and non-SOEs to a
Trust Fund created for the purpose by each of such entities. The eligible employees would be allotted units by each Trust
Fund in proportion to their respective length of service and on retirement or termination, such employees would be

The bank has paid in addition to payments under the staff retirement funds, an amount of Rs. 170.181 million
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entitled to receive such amounts from Trust Funds in exchange for the surrendered units as would be determined based
on market price for listed entities or break-up value for non-listed entities. The shares relating to the surrendered units 
would be transferred back to GOP.

The Scheme also provides that 50% of dividend related to shares transferred to the respective Trust Fund would be
distributed amongst the unit-holder employees. The balance 50% dividend would be transferred by the respective Trust
Fund to the Central Revolving Fund managed by the Privatization Commission of Pakistan for payment to employees
against surrendered units. The deficit, if any, in Trust Funds to meet the re-purchase commitment would be met by GOP.

An employees trust to administer the scheme for Bank’s employees was formed on October 26, 2010. However, the
shares have not yet been transferred to the Trust. 

 
The Scheme, developed in compliance with the stated GOP policy of empowerment of employees of State Owned 
Enterprises, need to be accounted for by the covered entities, including the Bank, under the provisions of amended
International Financial Reporting Standard 2 Share Based Payments (IFRS 2). However, keeping in view the difficulties that 
may be faced by the entities covered under the Scheme, the SECP has granted exemption to such entities from the
application of IFRS 2 to the Scheme. Had the exemption not been granted the staff costs of the Bank for the period would
have been higher by Rs. 1,384 million, profit before taxation would have been lower by Rs. 1,384 million (earnings per 
share would have been lower by Rs. 1.26 per share) and, as the Scheme is fully funded by GOP, there would have been no 
impact on retained earnings / equity of the Group.

222000111111 222000111000
27. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR CCCHHHAAARRRGGGEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

007,871885,77natsikaPfoknaBetatSybdesopmiseitlaneP

28 WWWOOORRRKKKEEERRRSSS WWWEEELLLFFFAAARRREEE FFFUUUNNNDDD

The Worker’s Welfare Ordinance, 1971 has been amended vide Finance Act, 2008 by virtue of which the bank is now liable 
to pay WWF @ 2% of profit before tax as per accounts or declared income as per income tax return, whichever is higher.

222000111111 222000111000
29. TTTAAAXXXAAATTTIIIOOONNN (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

601,164,8554,652,9tnerruc-raeyehtrof-natsikaProF
)060,144(637,005,1derrefed-

898,496)699,214(tnerruc-raeyroirp-natsikaProF
396,8821,985derrefed-

776,732,1129,202,1tnerruc-raeyehtrof-saesrevOroF
910,15-derrefed-

)771,56()868,741(tnerruc-raeyroirp-saesrevOroF
494,85-derrefed-

For the purpose of taxation overseas include Habib Bank Limited's branches in Azad Jammu & Kashmir region.

29.1 RRReeelllaaatttiiiooonnnssshhhiiippp bbbeeetttwwweeeeeennn tttaaaxxx eeexxxpppeeennnssseee aaannnddd aaaccccccooouuunnntttiiinnnggg ppprrrooofffiiittt

030,040,72893,123,43raeytnerrucehtroftiforpgnitnuoccA

110,464,9984,210,21)%53:0102(%53@emocninoxaT

)794,422()172,442(emocnietardecudeR-
545,26551,72PBSybdesopmiytlaneP-

- Prior y 195,307300,391egrahcrae
056,500,01673,889,11raeytnerrucehtrofegrahcxaT
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29.2 The income tax returns of Habib Bank Limited have been submitted upto and including the bank’s financial year 2010. The 
tax authorities have concluded the audit of years 2002 through 2010. 
 
While amending the assessment under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2006 the tax
authorities have disallowed double income tax relief relating to Azad Jammu & Kashmir (AJK) branches amounting to Rs.
2,923 million. 
 
Management’s view is that the settlement reached, after deliberations by the technical committee formed by the Prime
Minister and Chairman AJ&K Council, relates to the long outstanding issue of basis of computation of income in AJK. The
foreign tax credit claimed by the bank is in accordance with accounting practice and the law.

Appeal against this issue is pending at appellate stage. Although the bank has made payment of tax assessed, under
protest, no provision has been made in the financial statements for the above liability, as the management is confident 
that the eventual outcome of this issue will be in the favor of the bank. 
 
Through Finance Act, 2010 certain amendments were introduced in Seventh Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The provision for advances & off balance sheet items will now be allowed at 5% of total gross advances for consumer and 
SMEs (as defined in SBP Prudential Regulation). The provision for advances and off balance sheet items other than those 
falling in definition of consumer & SMEs will be allowed upto 1% of such total gross advances.

As per Rule 8(A) of the Seventh Schedule, amounts provided for in tax year 2008 (December 2007) and prior to said tax 
year for doubtful debts, which were neither claimed nor allowed as tax deductible in any year shall be allowed as
deduction in tax year in which such doubtful debts are written off.

With reference to allowability of provision, the management has carried out an exercise at period end and concluded that
full deduction of provision in succeeding years would be allowed and accordingly recognized deferred tax asset on such
provision amounting to Rs. 2.127 billion. 

 
30. BBBAAASSSIIICCC AAANNNDDD DDDIIILLLUUUTTTEEEDDD EEEAAARRRNNNIIINNNGGGSSS PPPEEERRR SSSHHHAAARRREEE 222000111111 222000111000

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

971,618,61367,981,22knaBehtfosredlohytiuqeotelbatubirttaraeyehtroftiforP

(((NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr)))

000,860,201,1000,860,201,1serahsyranidroforebmunegarevadethgieW

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss)))

62.5131.02erahsrepsgninraedetuliddnacisaB

222000111111 222000111000
31. CCCAAASSSHHH AAANNNDDD CCCAAASSSHHH EEEQQQUUUIIIVVVAAALLLEEENNNTTTSSS NNNooottteee (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

642,046,18326,993,3015sknabyrusaerthtiwecnalabdnahsaC
581,314,73505,943,746sknabrehtohtiwecnalaB
134,350,911821,947,051

32. SSSTTTAAAFFFFFF SSSTTTRRREEENNNGGGTTTHHH (((NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr)))

152,31146,31tnenamreP
8102srehtO
962,31166,31htgnertsffatslatoT

33. DDDEEEFFFIIINNNEEEDDD BBBEEENNNEEEFFFIIITTT PPPLLLAAANNNSSS AAANNNDDD OOOTTTHHHEEERRR BBBEEENNNEEEFFFIIITTTSSS

33.1 PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll aaaccctttuuuaaarrriiiaaalll aaassssssuuummmppptttiiiooonnnsss

The latest actuarial valuation for pension and gratuity schemes was carried out as at December 31, 2011 using the 
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method and assuming that no indexation of pension will take place. The following
significant assumptions were used for the valuation of these schemes: 

 57
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Habib Bank Limited



34.2 SSSuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrryyy cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss

34.3 HHHaaabbbiiibbb FFFiiinnnaaannnccceee IIInnnttteeerrrnnnaaatttiiiooonnnaaalll LLLiiimmmiiittteeeddd,,, HHHooonnngggkkkooonnnggg

Habib Finance International Limited, Hong Kong is maintaining the following two schemes for its employees.
 

The company is required to contribute at 5% of salary of all of its employees, subject to a maximum contribution of HK $ 
1,000. Employees who earn HK $ 5,000 or more per month are also required to contribute the same amount. Those who
earn less than HK $ 5,000 per month have an option to contribute to the fund.

The company is required to pay long service payment at 2/3rd of employee’s last month’s full wages or 2/3rd of HK $
22,500 whichever is lower, for every year of service. The maximum payment is the total amount of wages earned during
the last 12 months or HK $ 390,000 whichever is lower. 

 
34.4 HHHaaabbbiiibbb AAAlllllliiieeeddd IIInnnttteeerrrnnnaaatttiiiooonnnaaalll BBBaaannnkkk PPPlllccc...,,, UUUnnniiittteeeddd KKKiiinnngggdddooommm

Habib Allied International Bank Plc (HAIB) is maintaining a defined contribution pension scheme for its employees.
Employer’s contribution is 6% of basic salary, whereas contribution from the employee is voluntary. HAIB also makes 
defined contribution towards personal pension plans of some of the staff members as per their terms of employment. 
 

34.5 HHHaaabbbiiibbbsssooonnnsss BBBaaannnkkk LLLiiimmmiiittteeeddd

Habibsons Bank Limited is maintaining a defined contribution pension scheme for its employees. Employer’s contribution
for employees of Habibsons Bank Limited is 5% of basic salary with a matching contribution from the scheme members.

35. RRREEEMMMUUUNNNEEERRRAAATTTIIIOOONNN OOOFFF DDDIIIRRREEECCCTTTOOORRRSSS AAANNNDDD EEEXXXEEECCCUUUTTTIIIVVVEEESSS
GGGrrrooouuuppp PPPrrreeesssiiidddeeennnttt ///

CCChhhiiieeefff EEExxxeeecccuuutttiiivvveee
DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss EEExxxeeecccuuutttiiivvveeesss

222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------

The Chief Executive Officer and certain Executives are provided with free club memberships and the Chairman / Chief 
Executive Officer are also provided with free use of the Group's maintained cars in accordance with their entitlement.

In addition to the above, all executives, including Chief Executive Officer of the Bank are also entitled to certain short term 
employee benefits which are disclosed in note 26.2 to these financial statements.

36. RRREEELLLAAATTTEEEDDD PPPAAARRRTTTYYY TTTRRRAAANNNSSSAAACCCTTTIIIOOONNNSSS

Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development, S.A, Switzerland holds 51% shares of the Bank. The Group has related party 
relationship with its associated undertakings, joint venture company (refer note 8.4), associates of AKFED Group entities, 
employee benefit schemes (refer note 4.9) of the Group / related party, and members of the Key Management Personnel 
of the Group / related party, including both Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Banking transactions with the related parties are executed substantially on the same terms, including mark-up rates and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and do not involve more than
normal risk (i.e. under the comparable uncontrolled price method) other then those under terms of employment. Details
of loans and advances to related parties are given in note 9.9 to these financial statements.

Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement and other benefit schemes are made in accordance with the
actuarial valuation / terms of the contribution plan.

PPrroovviiddeenntt FFuunndd

LLoonngg SSeerrvviiccee PPaayymmeenntt
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Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them as at the year-end were as follows: 
 

222000111111
IIInnndddiiivvviiiddduuuaaalll aaannnddd cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss rrreeelllaaattteeeddd ttthhhrrrooouuuggghhh

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss KKKeeeyyy
MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

PPPaaarrreeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp
EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss

SSSuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrryyy
cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss

JJJoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee
aaannnddd aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------RRRsss... iiinnn 000000000---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee SSShhheeeeeettt
781,088,4-720,859,2254,601902,476stisopeD

--404,636--sgniworroB
467,520,6--311,43300,915stnemtsevnI
922,871--604,174196,66elbavieceRrehtO/pukraM
349,901-499,361421,2823,41elbayaPrehtO/pu-kraM

--829,263-010,003sgnidneL/stnemecalP
655,974-433,226-029,71ortsoNnwardrevO
162,375--noisivorptnemriapmI

PPPrrrooofffiiittt aaannnddd LLLooossssss
138,766,1-663,02463,685529,822emocnIrehtO/tseretnI
845,182-901,751055,7560,293esnepxErehtO/tseretnI

---397,42050,3emocnidnediviD

OOOttthhheeerrrsss
--440,301224,26832,461seicnegnitnocrehtO

008,231,92000,549055,517,3037,29007,35naidotsucsadleHseitiruceS

222000111000
IIInnndddiiivvviiiddduuuaaalll aaannnddd cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss rrreeelllaaattteeeddd ttthhhrrrooouuuggghhh

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss KKKeeeyyy
MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

PPPaaarrreeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp
EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss

SSSuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrryyy
cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss

JJJoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee
aaannnddd aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------RRRsss... iiinnn 000000000---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee SSShhheeeeeettt
232,588,3-633,158,1744,521184,799,2stisopeD

--002,075--sgniworroB
680,360,4--316,82270,816stnemtsevnI

---535,9380,62elbavieceRrehtO/pukraM
911,802-308,47307140,23elbayaPrehtO/pu-kraM
315,832-372,171-588,188sgnidneL/stnemecalP
595,009-409,582--ortsoNnwardrevO
162,375----noisivorptnemriapmI

PPPrrrooofffiiittt aaannnddd LLLooossssss
557,970,1-32953,501,1865,851emocnIrehtO/tseretnI
676,915-734,531156,3215,382esnepxErehtO/tseretnI

---922,92005,5emocnidnediviD

OOOttthhheeerrrsss
--012,85-693,486seicnegnitnocrehtO

014,860,41000,547004,592,3056,46007,35naidotsucsadleHseitiruceS

36.1 The donations given in note 26 of these financial statements include donations to HBL Foundation. The Foundation was formed to 
promote development and advance the welfare and well being of the people with the object of improving their quality of life. 

36.2 KKKeeeyyy MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

Key Management Personnel comprises Members of Management Forum, Regional Management, Country Managers and Senior Executives:
 

222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Managerial remuneration (including allowances)  1,225,839 1,034,657
 Contribution to provident and benevolent fund 20,261 18,689
 Medical   30,309 26,384
 1,276,409 1,079,730

Number of persons 166 153

In addition Key Management Personnel are paid short-term employee benefits which are disclosed in note 26.2. 
 
36.3 The comparative figures have been re-arranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.   

--



37. RRRIIISSSKKK MMMAAANNNAAAGGGEEEMMMEEENNNTTT FFFRRRAAAMMMEEEWWWOOORRRKKK

Risk taking is central to banking activity. Success in any venture in general and the banking business in particular is dependent on how well 
an institution manages its risk. The main goal is to minimize risk and be proactive in efficiently identifying, assessing, measuring (as far as 
possible), monitoring and controlling risks to an organisation’s strategic advantage.

As Group plans to continue diversifying its business and ensuring sustained growth and profitability amidst increasing competitiveness
and challenges in the banking industry and works to implement the comprehensive risk management, capital adequacy and internal
control standards enforced by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). To this end, the Bank has a well defined Risk Management Framework 
comprising of an effective risk management strategy, risk management structure and a policy framework.

RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt SSStttrrruuuccctttuuurrreee

The Bank’s risk management approach is underpinned by an appropriate risk management structure. This structure is represented by 
various lines of defence in order to ensure that the risks are managed effectively on an entity level: 

 
Supervisory Level Board of Directors Board Risk Management Committee and Board Audit Committee

Management ALCO, Management Risk Committee, Credit Policy Committee, Operational
Risk Management Committee etc.  

Risk Initiation - Operating Units/ Risk Owners 
All Business and Support Groups i.e. Corporate, Investment Banking,
Commercial, Retail, Treasury, IT, HR, etc.

Risk Control Risk Management Group, Compliance
Risk Assurance  Internal Audit and Business Risk Review

BBBoooaaarrrddd ooofff DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss (((BBBoooDDD)))

The Board provides strategic direction for effective risk management and has the ultimate responsibility for managing all material risks 
that the Bank is/ may be exposed to, and for ensuring that the required human resources, culture, practices and systems are in place to
address such risks. In discharging these responsibilities for overall risk management, the Board has established the Board Risk 
Management Committee. 

 
BBBoooaaarrrddd RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((BBBRRRMMMCCC)))

BRMC is a Board level oversight committee and is the highest risk related policy making and oversight body for all types of risks faced by 
the Bank, notably credit, market, liquidity and operational risks. It comprises of four directors of the Board (majority being non-executive) 
including the Chairman of the Board. The Committee is supported by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and other executives as required. BRMC 
assists the Board in determining the strategic direction of the Bank by providing them the risk perspective.

AAAsssssseeettt &&& LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttyyy CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((AAALLLCCCOOO)))

ALCO is the focal point for defining and leading the entire asset liability management process within the Bank. In this regard, ALCO also 
has responsibility for oversight of all market and liquidity risks. It is chaired by the President/CEO and has representation from all business 
groups, CRO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and Head of Market Risk.

MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt RRRiiissskkk CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((MMMRRRCCC)))

Management Risk Committee is a senior management body headed by the CRO that mainly covers risks on integrated basis from an 
overall perspective of strategy, policy/ framework development, assessment/ measurement tools, MIS framework and Basel II 
implementation, whereas routine aspects in relation to such risks are managed by designated risk departments. In addition, the Bank has 
other senior management committees i.e., CPC, ALCO and ORMC to manage more specifically the credit, market and liquidity and 
operational risks respectively. 

 
CCCrrreeedddiiittt PPPooollliiicccyyy CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((CCCPPPCCC)))

Credit Policy Committee, at the functional level, has the responsibility to translate the decisions about strategy into framework, policies
and standards for the origination, approval, disbursement, monitoring and reporting of credits and also to participate with the business 
line management in setting up the Bank's target portfolio profile and limits and in monitoring alignment with the risk strategies, appetite
and limits etc. approved by the competent authorities. The CPC is chaired by the CRO with the members comprising of at least one Senior
Credit Officer from Corporate Banking, Investment Banking, Commercial and Retail Lending and at least one representative each from the
Credit Policy and Credit Administration Divisions within RMG.  - The risk management function is independent of business group /
divisions.

OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnaaalll RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((OOORRRMMMCCC)))

Operational Risk Management Committee is a senior management body responsible for operational risk management within the Bank
both from the strategic as well as tactical perspectives. The Committee has representation from Risk Management Group, Operations,
Global Compliance Group and Finance, being headed by the CRO as its Chairman.  
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RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp (((RRRMMMGGG)))

For effective implementation of the risk management framework, a dedicated function i.e. Risk Management Group operates within the 
Bank, independent from the other business units, support functions as well as the Internal Audit function. RMG is responsible to perform
the functions pertaining to development and oversight of risk strategy, policy, framework, methodology and MIS. The Group is headed by 
a designated Group Executive i.e. CRO reporting to the President but with an independent reporting line to BRMC so as to enable
reporting of all material risk issues and matters, particularly in relation to exceptional circumstances where there may be a conflict/
disagreement with the President.

RMG has designated separate personnel/departments to cater to the following significant areas with each of them reporting to the CRO:

- Credit Policy
- Credit Approvals
- Credit Administration
- Portfolio Management 
- Consumer Risk Management 
- Market & Liquidity Risk Management 

 
The Operational Risk Management Division (ORMD) operates within Global Compliance Group (GCG) independent from the other 
business units, support functions as well as the Internal Audit function. The Head ORMD is one of the members of the Operational Risk
Committee which is chaired by the CRO. In this manner, issues and matters concerning operational risk are independently communicated
to CRO so as to enable knowledge of the Bank-wide risks. The key issues are reported to BRMC through the forum of the Operational Risk
Committee and/ or MRC, where applicable. In addition, the Head ORMD has a dotted reporting relationship with the CRO.

)RRB(weiveRksiRssenisuB&tiduAlanretnI

BRR and Internal Audit provide independent assessment to the Board and the senior management of the Bank’s risk management 
framework that includes policies, procedures, methodologies, reporting, and systems. 

 
CCCrrreeedddiiittt RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a borrower to meet its credit obligations in accordance with the agreed contract terms.
Credit risk makes up the largest part of the Bank’s risk exposures. The Bank’s credit process is guided by centrally established credit 
policies, rules and guidelines continuing a close-to-the market approach with an aim to maintain a well-diversified portfolio of credit risk, 
which produces a reliable and consistent return. 
 
Credit risk policies are established by the Credit Policy Committee/ CRO and approved by the Board through the Board Risk Management 
Committee. The Bank has a system of checks and balances in place around the extension of credit that are: 
 - An independent risk management function.  
 - Approval rules based on three-initial system and co-guarantor approach.

- An independent audit and risk review function.

The Credit Risk Strategy reflects Bank’s tolerance for risk i.e. credit risk appetite and the level of expected profitability. This, as a 
minimum, reflects Bank’s strategy to grant credit based on various products, economic sectors, client segments etc., target markets giving 
due consideration to risks specific to each target market.

Salient features of our credit approval process are delineated below:
- Every extension of credit to any counterparty requires approval by the personnel having credit approval authorities. 

 - All Business groups must apply consistent standards in arriving at their credit decisions. 
 - Every material change to a credit facility requires approval at the appropriate/ pre-defined level.

- Credit approval authority is assigned to individuals according to their qualifications and experience. 
 

Certain groups of exposures/ facilities are managed under product programs, which are approved by various levels of approving
authorities as defined in the Credit Policy Manual. Each product program contains detailed credit criteria, regulatory, compliance and
documentation requirements.

The Bank uses internal risk rating system to supplement the credit risk measurement procedure for all Corporate and Commercial, and
most of the Retail exposures. All in all, over 90% of all exposures are rated. All obligor risk ratings are validated and approved by
authorized personnel belonging to both the business units and risk management function. The Bank is currently involved with external 
consultants to introduce more effective internal risk rating framework that will be aligned with the Foundation Internal Ratings Based 
(FIRB) approach of the Basel II accord.

Stress testing on the credit portfolio is performed according to the guidelines issued by SBP at defined frequency 
 

The disbursement, administration and monitoring of credit facilities are managed by Credit Administration Departments (CAD) linked to 
various business units and operates under the CRO as part of the Risk Management Group. CAD is also responsible for collateral/
documents management. 

 
The Bank monitors its credit portfolio on continuing basis. Procedures are in place to identify, at an early stage, credit exposures for which
there may be a risk of loss. The objective of an early warning system is to address potential problems while various options may still be 
available. Early detection of problem loans is a tenet of the Bank’s credit culture and is intended to ensure that greater attention is paid to 
such exposure. The Bank has an established Remedial Assets function to focus on expediting recoveries from problem credits. The function

63



negotiates with problem borrowers and recommends restructuring and/ or rescheduling of stuck up loans to the senior management. 
Cases where the possibilities of economically viable means of recovery are exhausted, legal proceedings are initiated. The Bank follows
the guidelines of SBP or the Regulators under which it is operating in other countries for classification/ provisioning/ write-off of problem 
loans.

CCCooouuunnntttrrryyy RRRiiissskkk

The Bank has in place a comprehensive Country Risk Policy. Limits are established for Cross Border Transfer Risk (CBTR) based on the 
ratings assigned by the internationally recognized rating agencies. The limit utilization is controlled at Head office level and country risk
exposures are reported to Board Risk Management Committee at defined frequency. CBTR arises from exposure to counterparties in 
Countries other than the country where exposure is located. The Bank defines transfer risk as arising where an otherwise solvent and 
willing debtor is unable to meet it’s obligation due to the imposition of governmental or regulatory controls restricting its ability to 
perform under its obligation towards its foreign liabilities. 

 
MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

It is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in market rates or prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. It 
emanates from the trading activities mainly carried out by Treasury and investments/ structural positions housed in banking book. 
 
Market risk at the Bank level is managed by the Risk Management Group under the supervision of ALCO supported by the Treasury Middle
Office (TMO). The Bank carries a limited amount of market risk the bulk of which is located in the banking book stemming from the 
mismatches in structural assets and liabilities positions. 

 
IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee RRRiiissskkk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment's value will change due to a change in the absolute level of interest rates i.e. the 
spread between two rates, in the shape of the yield curve, or in any other interest rate relationship. Substantial part of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities are subject to floating rates hence are re-priced simultaneously. However, the Bank is exposed to interest rate 
risk as a result of mismatches on a relatively small part of its assets and liabilities. The major portion related to this risk is reflected
in the banking book owing to the retail activities and investments qualifying for statutory reserve requirements. The overall
potential impact of the mismatches on the earnings in short term and economic value of the portfolio in the long term is not
material and is being managed with in the tolerance limits approved by the Board. The Bank uses simulation and duration gap 
models to measure and monitor the interest rate sensitivity on the potential earnings and the Bank’s economic value of equity.

FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee RRRiiissskkk

The Bank’s assets are typically funded in the same currency as that of the business transacted to eliminate foreign exchange
exposure. However, the Bank is obliged to maintain a reasonable open position in various currencies resulting from the sizeable 
trade related transactions handled across the Bank. Foreign exchange risks are controlled and monitored through the limits
approved by ALCO within the overall limit advised by SBP. The regulatory limit for foreign exchange is relatively small compared to 
the size of the Bank; hence, the risk generated through foreign exchange activities is insignificant.

End-of-the-day positions are marked to market daily according to the guidelines of SBP and sensitivity is conducted in line with the
internal market risk policy of the Bank. The intra- day positions are managed by treasury through stop loss/ dealers limits.  

 
LLLiiiqqquuuiiidddiiitttyyy RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its cash flow obligations as they become due, because of an inability to 
liquidate assets, or to obtain adequate funding. ALCO has the responsibility for the formulation of overall strategy and oversight of the 
asset liability management. The Bank follows a comprehensive liquidity risk management policy duly approved by ALCO and the Board. 
The policy stipulates maintenance of various ratios, funding preferences, and evaluation of Bank’s liquidity under normal and crisis 
situation (stress testing). To comply with the policy, the Bank has also conducted a behavioral study on its demand deposits to evaluate 
their stickiness, which may not reflect in their maturity profile. Such evaluation forms part of the liquidity management process to 
realistically project the reliance on such funding sources. As a result of close monitoring and strict policy towards reliance on core deposit, 
the Bank has been able to avoid concentration/ reliance on volatile deposit in its books. A comprehensive contingency plan to deal with 
crisis situation is also in place.

OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnaaalll RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt (((OOORRRMMM)))

In line with the approved Operational Risk Management Policy, Bank has instituted an Operational Risk Management Division (ORMD).
Operational Risk Management Policy and a detailed ORM Framework has been prepared and implemented. Operational Risk Coordinators 
(ORCs) have been assigned from more than 20 departments of the Bank being responsible for implementation of the ORM Framework in 
coordination with ORMD. The Bank has been granted permission/certification by SBP to move to the more advanced approach i.e, 
Alternative Standardised Approach (ASA) under Basel II with a capital floor i.e., operational risk charge under ASA should not fall below a
certain percentage of operational risk capital charge calculated under BIA for initial 3 years . Capital floors are 2011-2012 90%, 2013 80%, 
and 2014 70%. HBL is the first Pakistani bank to achieve this milestone.  

 



A Vision Transformed into Art

A
N

N
U

A
L

R
EP

O
R

T
-2

0
11

The Bank’s ORM framework and practices address all the significant areas of ORM within the Bank including Risk Control Self Assessment
(RCSA), Key Risk Indicators, Operational Loss Data Management, Operational Risk Reporting, Capital Calculation etc. Detailed RCSA 
exercises are conducted at regular intervals across the Bank, the results of which are continually evaluated against the losses. Operational
loss data collection and evaluation has been underway since 2009. The Bank has also established Key Risk Indicators (KRI) and is 
monitoring them at regular intervals. Operational risk reports are regularly submitted to the senior management.

RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt aaallliiigggnnnmmmeeennnttt wwwiiittthhh BBBaaassseeelll IIIIII ppprrrooojjjeeecccttt

The Bank is one of the few financial institutions in Pakistan planning to adopt the Foundation Internal Ratings Based (FIRB) Approach for
credit risk and Internal Models Approach (IMA) for Market Risk (Alternate Standardized Approach for operational risk has already been
adopted) under the Basel II Framework and consequently enhancing the quality of risk management processes, methodologies, systems 
and reporting. In order to undertake the Basel II initiatives in a systematic manner and in full compliance with the related requirements, 
the Bank has sought the services of an international firm. Bank's Basel II Program includes a number of aspects involving organizational
alignments, enhancements in the existing policies, procedures, processes and controls, development of new risk frameworks, existing
system upgrades, selection and deployment of various risk applications, development of advanced risk management tools and
methodologies and introduction of improved risk reporting MIS. A lot of effort has already gone into aligning Bank’s risk management
structure, policies, procedures and systems with the requirements of Basel II while the remaining initiatives are currently being undertaken 
in an integrated manner with plans for completion in due course. The Bank also realizes the criticality of quality human resource and is
already in the process of augmenting the skill set by necessary induction and training measures to enable undertaking of planned
initiatives and consistently implementing the new risk management framework in line with Basel II. Once completed, the Bank expects to
achieve a number of significant business benefits from its Basel II program with more robust risk management and internal control 
environment in line with international best practices. 
 
During the year, the Bank has embarked upon deployment of a comprehensive suite of advanced systems for Loan Origination, Credit 
Administration/ Collateral Management, and Internal Risk Ratings as part of FIRB related initiatives for credit risk.

38. CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL AAADDDEEEQQQUUUAAACCCYYY

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio is calculated in accordance with the State Bank's guidelines on capital adequacy.
 
38.1 RRReeeggguuulllaaatttooorrryyy CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll BBBaaassseee 222000111111 222000111000

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
TTTiiieeerrr 111 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll

111...111 008,810,01086,020,11latipacpu-diaPylluF
111...222 General Reserves as disclosed on th 965,831,02435,852,22teehSecnalaBe
111...333 407,764,74796,089,65)ynafi,sessoldetalumuccafoten(stiforpdettimer-nu/detairporppa-nU
111...444 Non-controlling interest 656,212,1092,632,1

927,738,87102,694,19
DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnnsss:::

111...555 662,64509,428,1selbignatnifoeulavkooB
111...666 )tnuomaehtfo%05(snoitcudedrehtO

Investments in equity and other regulatory capital of majority owned securities
632,435130,735teehsecnalabehtnidetadilosnoctonseiraidisbuslaicnanifrehtoro
205,085639,163,2

TTToootttaaalll eeellliiigggiiibbbllleee TTTiiieeerrr 111 cccaaapppiiitttaaalll 722,752,87562,431,98

SSSuuuppppppllleeemmmeeennntttaaarrryyy CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll
TTTiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll

222...111 mumixamotpu-sessolnaolrofsevreserlarenegrosnoisivorPlareneG
679,715,1429,300,1stessAdethgieWksiRfo%52.1fo

222...222 313,478,3050,749,3%54otpusevreseRnoitaulaveR
222...333 689,612,9122,788,9sevreseRnoitalsnarTegnahcxEngieroF
222...444 101,965,2927,733,2latipac1reiTelbigilelatoTfo%05fomumixamotpu-tbeddetanidrobuS

TTToootttaaalll tttiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll 673,871,71429,571,71

DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnnsss:::
222...555 )2PACnodetaluclacsatnuomaehtfo%05(snoitcudedrehtO

Investments in equity and other regulatory capital of majority owned securities
632,435130,735teehsecnalabehtnidetadilosnoctonseiraidisbuslaicnanifrehtoro
632,435130,735

TTToootttaaalll eeellliiigggiiibbbllleee TTTiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll 041,446,61398,836,61

TTToootttaaalll EEEllliiigggiiibbbllleee CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll (((111+++222))) 763,109,49851,377,501
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38.2 RRRiiissskkk---WWWeeeiiiggghhhttteeeddd EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll RRReeeqqquuuiiirrreeemmmeeennntttsss RRRiiissskkk WWWeeeiiiggghhhttteeeddd AAAsssssseeetttsss
222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000

------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))------------------------------------------------------
CCCrrreeedddiiittt RRRiiissskkk

:nosmialC
937,288,92586,257,23472,889,2962,572,3RKPnahtrehtoPBS,GP,POG,sngierevosrehtO
837,265,41135,288,11472,654,1352,881,1s'ESP
682,652,42513,998,52926,524,2239,985,2sknaB
415,922,323015,428,623159,223,23154,286,23setaroproC
955,920,74205,858,54659,207,4058,585,4oiloftroPliateR

Secured by residential property 231,560 213,245 2,315,598 2,132,447
438,794,21171,212,21387,942,1712,122,1snaoleudtsaP
511,261,6179,203,7212,616792,037stnemtsevniytiuqEdetsiL
000,521,2397,784,3005,212977,843stnemtsevniytiuqedetsilnU
420,901,61947,243,71209,016,1572,437,1stessadexifnistnemtsevnI
258,673,51064,210,31586,735,1642,103,1stessarehtO
801,463,394582,198,894114,633,94921,988,94

MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt RRRiiissskkk
084,276,01447,531,62897,358068,090,2ksiRetaRtseretnI
329,606,3405,689,3455,882029,813ksiRnoitisoPytiuqE
727,948,04934,765,44879,762,3593,565,3ksiRegnahcxEngieroF
031,921,55786,986,47033,014,4571,579,5

OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnaaalll RRRiiissskkk ---
898,563,946264,681,776455,618,16347,251,46

CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll AAAdddeeeqqquuuaaacccyyy RRRaaatttiiiooo NNNooottteee RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000

763,109,49851,377,5011.83dlehlatipacyrotalugerelbigilelatoT

898,563,946264,681,7762.83stessadethgiewksirlatoT

%16.41%26.51oitarycauqedalatipaC

38.3 TTTyyypppeeesss ooofff EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss aaannnddd EEECCCAAAIII'''sss uuussseeeddd

EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss JJJCCCRRR---VVVIIISSS PPPAAACCCRRRAAA MMMOOOOOODDDYYYsss SSSTTTAAANNNDDDAAARRRDDD &&&
PPPOOOOOORRR

EEECCCAAA
SSSCCCOOORRREEESSS

s'ESP
sknaB

setaroproC
RKPnahtrehtoPOGdnasngierevoS

38.4 CCCrrreeedddiiittt EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss sssuuubbbjjjeeecccttt tttooo SSStttaaannndddaaarrrdddiiissseeeddd aaapppppprrroooaaaccchhh

222000111111 222000111000
EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss RRRaaatttiiinnnggg AAAmmmooouuunnnttt DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnn NNNeeettt eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee AAAmmmooouuunnnttt DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnn NNNeeettt

CCCaaattteeegggooorrryyy OOOuuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg CCCRRRMMM OOOuuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg CCCRRRMMM eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee
------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------
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38.5 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll mmmaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

The Group’s lead regulator State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank and the Group as a whole. In
addition the Group's branches and subsidiaries outside Pakistan are also required to follow capital requirements applicable in respective
countries.  

 
In implementing current capital requirements, SBP requires the Group to maintain a prescribed ratio of 10% total capital to total risk-
weighted assets. The Group calculates requirements for market risk in its trading portfolios based upon the methodology provided by SBP 
which takes account of specific and general market risk, capital charge for interest rate risk and equity price risk using the maturity method.

:sreiteerhtotnidesylanasilatipacyrotalugers’puorGehT

- Tier I capital, which includes ordinary share capital, capital and other reserves except exchange translation reserve, non-controlling 
interest, and retained profit.

- Tier II capital includes revaluation surplus, exchange translation reserve, subordinated debt and impairment allowances not kept against 
identified debts. The revaluation surplus is allowable as tier II capital upto 45% of the reserve. Subordinated debt is limited to 50% of 
Tier I capital. 

 
- Tier III supplementary capital consists of short term subordinated debt solely for the purpose of meeting a proportion of the Capital

requirements for market risks. The bank currently does not have any Tier III capital. 
 

.latipacIreiTotdetimilsilatipacIIIdnaIIreiTfolatoT

Banking operations are categorised as either trading book or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified
requirements that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. 

 
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business.  

 
The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the period.

On and off-balance sheet assets in the banking book are broken down to various asset classes for calculation of credit risk. Ratings for assets 
are applied using various ECAI's and aligned with appropriate risk buckets. Collaterals if any, are used as an outflow adjustment. Risk weights 
notified, are applied at net adjusted exposure. Collaterals used include: Government of Pakistan guarantees for advances and investments in
PSE / GOP, deposits / margins, lien on deposits, saving certificates and lending of securities (repo & reverse repo).

39. CCCUUURRRRRREEENNNCCCYYY RRRIIISSSKKK

222000111000
AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss OOOffffff---bbbaaalllaaannnccceee NNNeeettt

ssshhheeeeeettt iiittteeemmmsss cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy
eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee

------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------
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222000111000
AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

Chemical and pharmaceuticals       - - 408,599 0.38   - -
67.3554,989,115.1311,346,178.16591,101,55ssenisubirgA

---79--tnemeC
----61.0585,141raguS

Automobile and transportation equipment 9,543,557 10.72 2,824,538 2.60  889,548 1.68
--90.2163,962,270.5819,015,4laicnaniF

10.0391,343.7238,869,7--ecnarusnI
Production and transmission of energy 9,869,277 11.08 21,714,052 20.01  5,814,293 10.97

50.0027,5215.22172,624,4231.0143,911lacidem&noitacudE
10.0974,305.2421,017,260.0156,55noitacinummoceleT

--20.0058,12--gnihsilbup&gnitnirP
--50.0769,8530.0000,03noitcurtsnoC

Foods, tobacco & beverages - - 342         -   - -
--37.0399,49762.1647,911,1deilladnalateM

Farming, cattle and dairy - - 92         -   - -
58.87365,277,1478.2037,311,386.1000,005,1ecnefeD
12.1653,14692.3278,375,3--gnippihsdnastroP
64.3695,938,101.43168,199,6349.7121,660,7srehtO
00.001302,979,2500.001496,025,80100.001193,750,98

222000111111
AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
43.2.2 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt bbbyyy ssseeeccctttooorrr (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

47.13665,742,6563.51042,904,34187.41242,693,47tnemnrevoG/cilbuP
,09722.58164,750,924etavirP 222,285 84.64 120,987,878 68.26

00.001444,532,77100.001525,136,33900.001307,354,305

222000111000
AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

65.03302,979,2525.41496,025,80127.71193,750,98tnemnrevoG/cilbuP
,83682.28642,883,314etavirP 854,105 85.48 120,367,455 69.44

00.001856,643,37100.001997,473,74700.001736,544,205

43.3 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss aaannnddd ssspppeeeccciiifffiiiccc ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss bbbyyy ccclllaaassssss ooofff bbbuuusssiiinnneeessssss ssseeegggmmmeeennnttt

222000111111 222000111000
CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss

hhheeelllddd hhheeelllddd
------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------

949,115699,546741,565739,885slacituecamrahpdnalacimehC
7,1492,405,3ssenisubirgA

627,334,41831,905,81367,854,71374,833,02elitxeT
750,007750,007192,190,1662,462,2tnemeC
583,883406,234748,323686,953raguS
091,652011,213250,941363,371stnemragrehtaeldnaseohS
157,892,1637,813,1814,745,1349,409,1tnempiuqenoitatropsnartdnaelibomotuA
942,615,4942,615,4815,015,1890,428,1laicnaniF
127,944,2046,108,2442,646,2217,008,2secnailppalacirtcelednascinortcelE
716,097,1279,808,1379,840,2544,150,2ygrenefonoissimsnartdnanoitcudorP
957957--lacidem&noitacudE
754,162754,162953,162953,162noitacinummoceleT
461,551705,991662,991991,402gnihsilbup&gnitnirP
538,266901,814,1089,799408,683,1noitcurtsnoC
328,324200,524858,534412,725gniyrrauq&gniniM
013,243594,344121,184133,825segarevebdnaoccabot,dooF
073,212,4449,678,4924,723,5247,987,5edartliater&elaselohW
102,406604,876815,498614,219deilladnalateM
679,783,1368,148,2126,100,1601,344,1laudividnI
426,101028,542007,101882,803yriaddnaelttac,gnimraF
471,5471,5005,2005,2noitazinagrotiforpnondnasdnuftsurT
158,977,4968,800,8870,025,5688,473,9srehtO
946,771,14346,706,35421,703,44260,945,65
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The commitment in respect of letters of credit of Islamic Banking branch of Habib Bank Limited amounted to Rs. 69.376 million
(2010: Rs. 50.966 million). 
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R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director



Details of Domestic Investments - Consolidated Annexure I
For the year ended December 31, 2011
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366,714
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81

Annexure II - Details of Loans Written Off
For the year ended December 31, 2011 (referred on Page 147) which also form part
of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements



Furniture & Fixtures

Land & Building

Motor Vehicles

Details of Disposal of Operating Annexure III
Fixed Assets - Consolidated
As at December 31, 2011
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Domestic Network
Branches

Name of Region Number of Branches
Karachi South 64
Karachi North 76
Hyderabad 53
Sukkur 48
Quetta 36
Multan 95
Bahawalpur 52
Sahiwal 76
Faisalabad 94
Lahore 91
Sialkot 69
Gujranwala 63
Gujrat 65
Sargodha 74
Jhelum 74
Rawalpindi/Islamabad 111
Mardan 87
D.I.Khan/Peshawar 99
Muzaffarabad 34
Mirpur 50
Islamic Banking 23
Commercial 19
Corporate (Including K.E.P.Z.) 12

1,465

Subsidiaries Affiliates

Habib Bank Financial Services (Private) Limited Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited
HBL Currency Exchange (Private) Limited Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited
HBL Asset Management Limited HBL Money Market Fund
First Habib Bank Modaraba HBL Islamic Stock Fund
HBL Stock Fund HBL Islamic Money Market Fund
HBL Multi Asset Fund HBL Pension Equity Sub Fund
HBL Income Fund HBL Pension Debt Sub Fund

HBL Pension Money Market Sub Fund
HBL Islamic Pension Equity Sub Fund
HBL Islamic Pension Debt Sub Fund
HBL Islamic Pension Money Market Sub Fund

Annexure IV - Details of Donations
For the year ended December 31, 2011 (referred on Page 154) which also form part
of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements



BBranchesBranches SSubsidiariesSubsidiaries

CCountryCountry CCityCity CCountryCountry CCityCity

AAAfffggghhhaaannniiissstttaaannn Kabul Main Branch UUUnnniiittteeeddd KKKiiinnngggdddooommm
Serena Hotel

 knaBlanoitanretnIdeillAbibaH
BBBaaahhhrrraaaiiinnn Manama Main FCB Branch / OBU London Commercial Road Branch

Muharraq  Green Street Branch
Edgware Road

BBBaaannnggglllaaadddeeessshhh Dhaka Gulshan Branch Manchester
Motijheel Branch Birmingham
Uttara Branch Glasgow

Chittagong
Sylhet Habibsons Bank Limited
 teertSnamtroPnodnoL

BBBeeelllgggiiiuuummm lepahcetihWslessurB
llahtuoS

FFFrrraaannnccceee retsecieLsiraP
hciruZ

KKKeeennnyyyaaa Nairobi  
 Mombasa  HHHooonnnggg KKKooonnnggg Habib Finance International Limited
 Malindi

LLLeeebbbaaannnooonnn Beirut

MMMaaallldddiiivvveeesss Male  
 AAffiliatesAffiliates

MMMaaauuurrriiitttiiiuuusss Port Louis
Curepipe NNNeeepppaaalll Himalayan Bank Ltd.
 Rose Hill  
 

NNNeeettthhheeerrrlllaaannndddsss Rotterdam  
 

OOOmmmaaannn Ruwi 
 Muttrah  
 Al-Khuwair  
 Nizwa
Seeb
Sohar  
 Salalah
Walja  
 

SSSeeeyyyccchhheeelllllleeesss Mahe  
 

SSSiiinnngggaaapppooorrreee Singapore

SSSrrriiilllaaannnkkkaaa Colombo Main Branch / F.C.B.U.
 Lake View
 Kalmunai   
 

TTTuuurrrkkkeeeyyy Istanbul

UUU...AAA...EEE... Abu Dhabi  
 Al Ain
Dubai

Sharjah  
 

UUU...SSS...AAA... New York City  

Deira
Bur Dubai
Naif Road  

Representative OfficesRepresentative Offices

International Franchise
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Directors’ Report
On behalf of the Directors, I am pleased to present the Unconsolidated Financial 
Statements and the Auditors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Economic and Market Review 

2011 was another challenging year in the Global and the local economy; devastating floods for the second year along with 
an energy shortage and other adverse conditions impacted Pakistan. As a result, the Pakistan economy grew by 2.4% of 
GDP as against targeted 4.5%; this growth was supported primarily by the agriculture sector (1.2%), which registered an 
impressive increase on the back of a bumper wheat crop as well as the Services sector with a 4.1% growth. Strong growth in 
remittances supported by the Pakistani workforce that reached a record US$ 11.2 billion and a rising trend in exports has 
helped the external reserve position. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has recently cut the discount rates (DR) by 150bps to 
12% (overall 200bps in 2011). The lower discount rate is expected to fuel private sector demand, which is expected to 
provide support to the domestic economy.

Our Performance 

Despite the economic challenges, the Bank attained some significant milestones by becoming the first bank in Pakistan to
reach Rs. 1 trillion in balance sheet size (excluding Interbank borrowings) as well as achieving record profitability with a 
Profit after tax of Rs. 20.7 billion, an increase of 32.8% over 2010. HBL has achieved growth of 19.9% over last year, which is 
an increase of Rs. 176.8 billion and has managed to control its administrative expenses effectively. The balance sheet growth 
and cost control measures have resulted in robust growth of profit after tax of 32.8% over last year.

The Bank has made a significant effort over the past few years to address factors necessary for faster growth; this includes a 
focused approach on improving the customer experience, be it in product delivery or customer service. HBL is determined in 
increasing its outreach to the farthest areas of Pakistan and growing its more than 6 million customer relationships to
progressively include the unbanked population of Pakistan through technology initiatives and innovative products. HBL is 
now positioned to significantly increase its customer outreach. 
 
Risk management continues to be a key focus and in a difficult and challenging environment HBL continues to take a 
conservative approach focusing on controlling NPLs. This is reflected in overall lower provisions for the year.

Financial Highlights 
2011 2010 

Rs. In Million 

Profit after tax 20,742 15,613 
 
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 44,121 36,325 
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 20,742 15,613 
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets- net of tax 260 119 

21,002 15,732 
Profit available for appropriation 65,123 52,058 

Appropriations: 
Transfer to statutory reserves  (2,074) (1,561) 
Cash dividend paid in April 11 (6,512) (5,465) 
Issued as bonus shares (1,002) (911) 
Half year interim dividend, paid in Nov 2011 (3,306) -
Total appropriations (12,894) (7,937) 
Un-appropriated Profit carried forward 52,229 44,121 
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Product Innovation 

The Bank continues to improve efficiencies, enhance market competitiveness and deliver customer service at improved 
levels. In this regard, major investments have been made in the last 5 years in upgrading technology, refurbishing branches 
and upgrading the skill set of Human Resources. We continue our strong commitment to provide state of the art banking 
facilities for all segments of society.  
 
In order to provide financial inclusion to the poorest segment of the society, the Bank has provided payment solution 
through its network in collaboration with mobile phone operators to over 60,000 beneficiaries under Government’s poverty 
alleviation Scheme (BISP) and flood relief payments to over 400,000 affectees in Sind through the Pakistan Card. HBL has 
also assisted the Government of Pakistan in its relief efforts for the flood affected people of Sind and Punjab by issuing the 
Watan Cards; these are pre-loaded cards with Government funds that are being issued in collaboration with the National 
Database Authority to the people in the flood affected areas, who then go to an ATM to withdraw the funds that have been
given by the Government – to date your Bank has issued over 700,000 Watan Cards. 
 
The Bank’s product delivery capabilities are now well established in this area and your Bank has been selected as one of the 
major payment agents by the GOP for providing poverty alleviation payments to over 1.3 million women in 16 districts
(under BISP). The Bank successfully launched Pardes Remittance Card (product similar to prepaid card).  
 
EMV Debit cards have also been successfully launched in Bahrain, UAE, Mauritius and Maldives. 
 
International Banking Group 

HBL has completed the acquisition of Habibsons Bank in the UK and the entire operations of Habibsons UK have now been
successfully integrated into HBL UK; this acquisition will significantly enhance the Group’s franchise value. The Habibsons 
acquisition has also provided a platform to effectively launch an integrated wealth management initiative across the 
international network.  
 
Statement under Section XIX of the Code of Corporate Governance  

The Board is committed to ensure that requirements of corporate governance set by Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan are fully met and the Directors are pleased to report that: 
 
a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank present a true and fair view of the state of its affairs, 

operational results, cash flows and changes in equity. 
b) Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been maintained. 
c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting 

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.  
d) The Bank has followed international accounting standards (as applicable to Banks in Pakistan) in the preparation of 

accounts and there is no departure from the said standards. 
e) As a continuous process, efforts have been made to effectively implement the internal control system. HBL is in the 

process of adopting an internationally accepted COSO Internal Control – Integrated Framework as part of compliance 
with SBP Internal Control Guidelines. The Bank has also evaluated its Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) 
using the US PCAOB Auditing Standard (AS – 5). A dedicated Management Testing and Reporting Framework for ICFR is 
being developed as a part of COSO implementation project.

f) There are no doubts about the Banks’ ability to continue as a going concern. 
g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the regulations. 
h) Key operating and financial data for the last ten years is presented in the financial statements under the section 

“Progress since 2001 to 2011 – Consolidated”. 
i) The Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary have confirmed that neither they nor their spouses are engaged in the 

business of stock brokerage. 
j) Risk Management, Human Resource and Audit Committees constituted by the Board are functioning efficiently in 

accordance with their Terms of Reference. The Board has met regularly and held eight meetings in the year.

The Statement of Internal Control, Statement of Compliance with Review Report and the Auditors’ reports are attached to
the Financial Statements. 
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Value of Investments in employee retirement benefits fund 

The following is the value of investments of provident, gratuity, pension and benevolent funds maintained by the Bank, 
based on the latest audited financial statements. 

Rs. in ‘000
Employee’s Provident Fund 6,457,856
Employee’s Pension Fund 10,228,811
Employee’s Gratuity Fund 551,472
Employee’s Benevolent Fund – Executive and Officers 768,549
Employee’s Benevolent Fund – Clerical and Non-Clerical 259,710

Meetings of the Board 

Eight Board meetings were held during 2011 and were attended by the Directors as follows: 
 

Name Attendance
Mr. Sultan Ali Allana Chairman 8
Mr. R. Zakir Mahmood President and Chief Executive Officer 8
Mr. Moez Ahamed Jamal Director 8
Mr. Sajid Zahid Director 8
Mr. Ahmed Jawad Director 8
Mr. Mushtaq Malik Director 8
Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan Director 7

Credit Ratings 

JCR-VIS, a credit rating company re-affirmed the bank's long-term entity rating at AA+. The short term rating remains at
A-1+, which is the highest rating denoting the greatest certainty of timely payments by a financial institution. All ratings for
HBL have been assigned a ‘Stable’ outlook. 
 
Auditors 

The present auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, retire. As per Code of Corporate Governance they are 
eligible for reappointment. Accordingly, the Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit Committee for
the appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, as the auditors of the bank for
the financial year 2012. 
 
Appreciation and Acknowledgement 

At this time, I would like to appreciate the efforts of the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan and Ministry of Finance for strengthening the banking and financial system of the country by improving regulatory, 
policy and governance framework.  
 
I would like to take this opportunity to also thank on behalf of the Board and Management of the Bank, the customers and 
the shareholders for entrusting their confidence in us and assure them that we remain committed to maintaining high 
service standards and a strong culture of good corporate governance and compliance in all our endeavors.  I would also like 
to express our sincere gratitude to the employees of the Bank for their dedication and hard work, which enabled delivery of 
these strong results. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board

R. Zakir Mahmood 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Karachi: February 24, 2012 



We have audited the annexed unconsolidated statement of financial position of Habib Bank Limited (the Bank) as at 31 
December 2011 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, unconsolidated cash flow statement, and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, together with the 
notes forming part thereof (here-in-after referred to as the ‘financial statements’) for the year then ended, in which are
incorporated the unaudited certified returns from the branches except for 84 branches which have been audited by us 
and 35 branches audited by auditors abroad and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Bank’s Board of Directors to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards and the requirements of the 
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due verification, which in case of loans and 
advances covered more than sixty percent of the total domestic loans and advances of the Bank, we report that: 

 
(a) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Ordinance,

1984 (XLVII of 1984), and the returns referred to above received from the branches have been found adequate 
for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  in our opinion: 
 

(i) the unconsolidated statement of financial position and unconsolidated profit and loss account together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
(LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and are in agreement with the books 
of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; 

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Bank’s business; and
(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 

accordance with the objects of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice
have been within the powers of the Bank;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the unconsolidated
statement of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), in the manner so required and give a true and fair view of the state of 
the Bank’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and its true balance of the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash 
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and 

(d) in our opinion zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted
by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2010 were audited by another firm of Chartered 
Accountants whose report dated 18 February 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 
 

EEErrrnnnsssttt &&& YYYooouuunnnggg FFFooorrrddd RRRhhhooodddeeesss SSSiiidddaaattt HHHyyydddeeerrr
Chartered Accountants 
 
Audit Engagement Partner: Omer Chughtai

Date: February 24, 2012   
Karachi   

Auditors’ Report
To the members - Unconsolidated
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
(((UUUSSS $$$ iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

PPPrrrooofffiiittt fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

Effect of translation of net investme

CCCooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee tttrrraaannnsssfffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttooo eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

CCCooommmpppooonnneeennntttsss ooofff cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee nnnooottt rrreeefffllleeecccttteeeddd iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets  

Deferred tax on revaluation of fixed assets  

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments  

Deferred tax on revaluation of investments  

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
 

Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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RRREEESSSEEERRRVVVEEESSS

SSShhhaaarrreee
CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll

EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee
tttrrraaannnssslllaaatttiiiooonnn

rrreeessseeerrrvvveee
SSStttaaatttuuutttooorrryyy GGGeeennneeerrraaalll UUUnnnaaapppppprrroooppprrriiiaaattteeeddd

ppprrrooofffiiittt TTToootttaaalll

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------------------

743,532,17854,523,63218,370,6118,842,21662,974,7000,801,99002,13rebmeceDtasaecnalaB

TTTToooottttaaaallll ccccoooommmmpppprrrreeeehhhheeeennnnssssiiiivvvveeee iiiinnnnccccoooommmmeeee ffffoooorrrr tttthhhheeee yyyyeeeeaaaarrrr

450,316,51450,316,51----0102,13rebmeceDdedneraeyehtroftiforP

--- OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches     - 308,619      - - - 308,619

- 308,619      - - 15,613,054 15,921,673
TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss wwwiiittthhh ooowwwnnneeerrrsss,,, rrreeecccooorrrdddeeeddd dddiiirrreeeccctttlllyyy iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

raeyehtroferahsrep6.sRtadiapdnedividhsaclaniF
)008,464,5()008,464,5(----9002,13rebmeceDdedne

-)008,019(---008,019serahssunobsadeussI
910,800      - - - (6,375,600) (5,464,800)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of tax     - - - - 119,496 119,496

-)503,165,1(-503,165,1--sevreseryrotutatsotderrefsnarT

617,118,18301,121,44218,370,6611,018,31588,787,7008,810,010102,13rebmeceDtasaecnalaB

TTToootttaaalll cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee fffooorrr ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

618,147,02618,147,02----1102,13rebmeceDdedneraeyehtroftiforP

--- OOOttthhheeerrr cccooommmppprrreeehhheeennnsssiiivvveee iiinnncccooommmeee

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches     - 457,701      - - - 457,701

- 457,701      - - 20,741,816 21,199,517
TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss wwwiiittthhh ooowwwnnneeerrrsss,,, rrreeecccooorrrdddeeeddd dddiiirrreeeccctttlllyyy iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy

raeyehtroferahsrep5.6.sRtadiapdnedividhsaclaniF
)022,215,6()022,215,6(----0102,13rebmeceDdedne

-)088,100,1(---088,100,1serahssunobsadeussI

Half year Interim cash dividend paid at Rs. 3 per share - - - - (3,306,204) (3,306,204)
1,001,880 - - - (10,820,304) (9,818,424)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of tax     - - - - 260,213 260,213
 

-)281,470,2(-281,470,2--evreseryrotutatsotderrefsnarT

220,354,39646,822,25218,370,6892,488,51685,542,8086,020,111102,13rebmeceDtasaecnalaB

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I to IV form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
 

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director



1 SSSTTTAAATTTUUUSSS AAANNNDDD NNNAAATTTUUURRREEE OOOFFF BBBUUUSSSIIINNNEEESSSSSS

Habib Bank Limited (the Bank) is incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking, modaraba management
and asset management related services in Pakistan and overseas. The Bank’s registered office is located at Habib Bank 
Tower, 4th Floor, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad. The Bank's shares are listed on the stock exchanges in Pakistan. The Bank
operates 1,464 (2010: 1,459) branches inside Pakistan including 22 (2010: 11) Islamic Banking Branches and 42 branches 
(2010: 42) outside the country (including Karachi Export Processing Zone).

2 BBBAAASSSIIISSS OOOFFF PPPRRREEESSSEEENNNTTTAAATTTIIIOOONNN

- These financial statements represents separate financial statements of Habib Bank Limited. The consolidated financial 
statements of the Group are being issued separately. 

- In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade related
modes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at 
appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements
are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and
the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.

- The US Dollar amounts shown in the financial statements are stated solely for information convenience. The
statement of financial position and profit and loss account for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 have been
converted using the exchange rate of Rs. 89.9457 per US Dollar.

2.1 BBBaaasssiiisss ooofff mmmeeeaaasssuuurrreeemmmeeennnttt

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain classes of fixed
assets are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation, trading and available for sale investments, derivative
financial instruments and forward foreign exchange contracts are measured at fair value.

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is Bank's functional currency. The 
amounts are rounded to nearest thousand.

2.2 UUUssseee ooofff eeessstttiiimmmaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjuuudddgggmmmeeennntttsss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Bank's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Bank's financial statements or where judgment
was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

iii))) CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiicccaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

- In classifying investments as "held-for-trading", the Bank has determined securities which are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 
days.

- In classifying investments as "held-to-maturity", the Bank follows the guidance provided in SBP directives on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In making this
judgment, the Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity.

- The investments which are not classified as held for trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale.

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2011
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iiiiii))) VVVaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn aaannnddd iiimmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt ooofff aaavvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee fffooorrr sssaaallleee eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the
investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows. 

 
iiiiiiiii))) PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt nnnooonnn pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess amount of non-performing loans and advances and provision required 
there-against. While assessing this requirement, various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial
position of the borrower, the forced sale value of the securities and the requirement of the Prudential Regulations are 
considered. For portfolio impairment provision on consumer advances, the Bank follows, the general provision 
requirement set out in Prudential Regulations.  

 
iiivvv))) IIInnncccooommmeee tttaaaxxxeeesss

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Bank, the management looks, at the current
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for
deferred taxes, estimates of the Bank's future taxable profits are taken into account. 

 
vvv))) FFFaaaiiirrr vvvaaallluuueee ooofff dddeeerrriiivvvaaatttiiivvveeesss

The fair value of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. The
valuation techniques take into account the relevant interest rates in effect at the date of statement of financial
position and the rates contracted.

vvviii))) FFFiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss,,, dddeeeppprrreeeccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn aaannnddd aaammmooorrrtttiiisssaaatttiiiooonnn

The bank carries its land and buildings at their respective fair values. The fair values are determined by independent 
valuation experts and such valuations are carried out with sufficient regularity that the valuation at year end is close
to their fair values.  

 
In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses method which reflects the 
pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at each
financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change in pattern. Such change is accounted for 
as change in accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 8, "Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

vvviiiiii))) DDDeeefffiiinnneeeddd bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss ppplllaaannnsss aaannnddd ooottthhheeerrr bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method. For actuarial 
assumptions, refer note no. 33.

vvviiiiiiiii))) IIImmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd sssuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrriiieeesss

The impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value exceeds the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in
use.

2.2.1 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3 SSSTTTAAATTTEEEMMMEEENNNTTT OOOFFF CCCOOOMMMPPPLLLIIIAAANNNCCCEEE

3.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In case the requirements differ, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by SBP
shall prevail. 



The State Bank of Pakistan, vide its BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of 
International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and International Accounting
Standard 40, Investment Property for banking companies till further instructions. Further, SECP has deferred applicability
of IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" on banks through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However,
investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan 
through various circulars.  

 
3.2 SSStttaaannndddaaarrrdddsss,,, iiinnnttteeerrrppprrreeetttaaatttiiiooonnnsss aaannnddd aaammmeeennndddmmmeeennntttsss tttooo pppuuubbbllliiissshhheeeddd aaapppppprrrooovvveeeddd aaaccccccooouuunnntttiiinnnggg ssstttaaannndddaaarrrdddsss ttthhhaaattt aaarrreee nnnooottt yyyeeettt eeeffffffeeeccctttiiivvveee

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2012:

- Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recovery of underlying asset (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2012). The 2010 amendment provides an exception to the measurement principle in respect of investment 
property measured using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property. The measurement of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is based on a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment property will be recovered entirely through sale. The presumption can be rebutted only if 
the investment property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the asset’s economic benefits over the life of the asset. The amendment also introduces the requirement that 
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets measured using revaluation model in IAS-16 should always be measured on
sale basis. The amendment has no impact on financial statements of the Bank.

- IAS 27 Consolidated and separate Financial Statements (2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013). IAS 27 (2011) supersedes IAS 27 (2008). Three new standards IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial
Statements, IFRS 11- Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12- Disclosure of Interest  in Other Entities dealing with IAS 27
would be applicable effective 1 January 2013. IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and disclosure 
requirements for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications.

- IAS 28 Investments in Associates (2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). IAS 28
(2011) supersedes IAS 28 (2008). IAS 28 (2011) makes the amendments to apply IFRS 5 to an investment, or a portion
of an investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; and on
cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. This amendment is likely to have an impact on financial statements of the Bank.

- IAS 19 Employee Benefits (amended 2011) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). The
amended IAS 19 includes the amendments that require actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income; this change will remove the corridor method and eliminate the ability for entities to 
recognise all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan assets in profit or loss, which currently is allowed 
under IAS 19; and that the expected return on plan assets recognised in profit or loss is calculated based on the rate 
used to discount the defined benefit obligation. This amendment is likely to have an impact on financial statements of 
the Bank. 

 
- Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1) - (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 July 2012). The amendments require that an entity present separately the items of other
comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from 
those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The amendments do not address which items are presented in
other comprehensive income or which items need to be reclassified. The requirements of other IFRSs continue to 
apply in this regard. The amendments would result in certain changes in disclosures on financial statements of the 
Bank. 

4 SSSUUUMMMMMMAAARRRYYY OOOFFF SSSIIIGGGNNNIIIFFFIIICCCAAANNNTTT AAACCCCCCOOOUUUNNNTTTIIINNNGGG PPPOOOLLLIIICCCIIIEEESSS

4.1 RRReeevvveeennnuuueee rrreeecccooogggnnniiitttiiiooonnn

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss aaannnddd iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

Income on loans and advances and debt security investments are recognized on a time proportion basis that takes into 
account effective yield on the asset. Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, those premiums /
discounts are amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining maturity, using the effective yield method.

 
Interest or mark-up recoverable on classified loans and advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis. Interest / 
mark-up on rescheduled / restructured loans and advances and investments is recognized as permitted by the regulations 
of State Bank of Pakistan or overseas regulatory authorities of countries where the branches operate, except where in the
opinion of the management it would not be prudent to do so.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive is established.
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LLLeeeaaassseee fffiiinnnaaannnccciiinnnggg

Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease income
(excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased assets) is deferred and taken
to income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net 
investment in lease. Repossessed vehicles on account of loan default are recorded in memorandum account. 

 
Unrealized lease income is suspensed on classified leases, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential 
Regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan. Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts, documentation charges, front-
end fees and other lease income are recognized as income on receipt basis.

MMMuuurrraaabbbaaahhhaaa

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the invoiced amount. Actual sale and purchase are not reflected as the
goods are purchased by the customer as agent of the Bank and all documents relating to purchase are in customer name.
However, the profit on that sale revenue not due for payment is deferred by recording a credit to the "Deferred Murabaha
Income" account. 

 
LLLeeetttttteeerrrsss ooofff cccrrreeedddiiittt aaannnddd ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeeesss

Commission on letters of credit and guarantees etc. is recognized on time proportion basis. 
 

CCCuuussstttooommmeeerrr LLLoooyyyaaallltttyyy PPPrrrooogggrrraaammmmmmeeesss

The revenue from award credits for loyalty points earned on use of various products of the Bank is measured by reference 
to their fair value and is recognised when award credits are redeemed.

FFFeeeeee,,, CCCooommmmmmiiissssssiiiooonnn aaannnddd BBBrrroookkkeeerrraaagggeee IIInnncccooommmeee

Fee, Commission and Brokerage income is recognized on accrual basis

4.2 TTTaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss account 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity.

CCCuuurrrrrreeennnttt

Current taxation is the tax payable on taxable income earned from local as well as foreign operations for the year using tax
rates enacted at the date of statement of financial position and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years. 
 
DDDeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the amounts 
attributed to the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 
tax is not recognized on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilized. 

4.3 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

The Bank classifies its investment portfolio into the following categories:

HHHeeelllddd---fffooorrr---tttrrraaadddiiinnnggg

These are securities, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, interest 
rate movements, dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term trading exists. 

 
HHHeeelllddd---tttooo---mmmaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intent and
ability to hold till maturity. 
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AAAvvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee---fffooorrr---sssaaallleee

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories.

Investments, including those referred to in para above, are accounted for as follows:

- Quoted securities are ca   .eulavriaftadeirr

- Unquoted equity securities are valued at lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is
calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial 
statements.

- Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost less impairment loss if any. 
 

Investments other than those categorised as held for trading include transaction costs associated with the investments. In
case of investments classified as held for trading, transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account.

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market 
convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the
investments. 

 
Provision for impairment in the value of equity securities is made after considering objective evidence of impairment.
Provision for diminution in the value of debt securities is made as per the Prudential Regulation issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan.

Any unrealized surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of investments classified as ‘Held-for-Trading’ is taken to the profit 
and loss account and unrealized surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of investments classified as ‘Available-for-sale’ is 
taken directly to “surplus / deficit on revaluation of securities” in the statement of financial position.  

 
IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are recorded at cost less impairment if any.

4.4 LLLeeennndddiiinnngggsss /// bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss

Where securities are sold subject to a commitment to re-purchase them at a pre-determined price, they remain on the
statement of financial position and a liability is recorded in respect of the consideration received in "borrowings". 
Conversely, securities purchased under analogous commitments to resell are not recognized on the statement of financial 
position and the consideration paid is recorded in “lendings to financial institutions". 

 
The difference between the sale and purchase price is recognized as mark-up / return expensed or earned on time
proportion basis as the case may be.  
 

4.5 SSSuuubbb --- OOOrrrdddiiinnnaaattteeeddd DDDeeebbbttt

Sub-ordinated debt is initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on sub-ordinated debt is
recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account over the period on an accrual
basis. 
 

4.6 AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss

LLLoooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

Loans and advances and net investment in finance lease are stated net of provision for loan losses. Provision for loan losses
of Pakistan operations including general provision is made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential 
Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. Provision for loan losses of overseas branches is made as per the
requirements of the respective central banks. Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.

FFFiiinnnaaannnccceee llleeeaaassseee rrreeeccceeeiiivvvaaabbbllleeesss

Leases where the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee are
classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payments
including any guaranteed residual value. Finance lease receivables are included in loans and advances to customers.
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IIIjjjaaarrraaahhh

Assets given on lease, after taking into account the estimated residual value, are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation using straight line method over the life of the lease. Impairment evaluation of loss on sale expected from the 
unilateral commitment given by the customer to purchase the asset at the expiry of the lease term and the Bank's policy to
accept the offer is carried out by comparing the Written Down Value to the Net Present Value of the expected cash flows 
at the date of statement of financial position. Impairment losses evaluated, are booked in the Profit and Loss as and when
occurred. The residual value of the lease asset is the estimated amount that Bank could obtain from disposal of assets as
defined in para 6 of IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment. This has been estimated on the basis that all assets given on 
lease have an economic life of ten years and if the assets were depreciated over this life the written down value at end of 
lease term would represent the residual value.  
 
These leases are shown as financing against lease under advances and further analysis is provided in the note of Islamic
Banking activities (note 47).

4.7 OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiinnnggg fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss aaannnddd dddeeeppprrreeeccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn

4.7.1 TTTaaannngggiiibbbllleee

Fixed assets and capital work-in-progress, are stated at cost, except for land and buildings which are carried at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation, where applicable, and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Cost of fixed assets of foreign branches include exchange differences arising on translation at year-end rates. Land and
buildings are revalued by independent professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the net
carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value. Surplus arising on revaluation is credited to the ‘surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets’ account (net of deferred tax). Under the provision of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, deficit
arising on revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against the balance in the above surplus account. 

 
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets to the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the related assets is 
transferred by the Bank to un-appropriated profits (net of deferred tax). 

 
All operating assets are being depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method from the date the 
assets are available for use. 

 
Depreciation is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their expected useful lives at the rates specified in note 10.3 to 
these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking into account residual value, if any.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of 
statement of financial position. 

Depreciation on addition and deletion of tangible assets during the year is charged in proportion to the period of use.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred. However, renewals are
capitalized.  

 
Gains or losses arising on the disposal of fixed assets are included in income currently. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 
(net of deferred tax) realized during the year is transferred directly to un-appropriated profit. 

4.7.2 IIInnntttaaannngggiiibbbllleee

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortization is charged at the rate stated in note 10.2. Amortization on additions and deletions of intangible assets during 
the year is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate at each date of statement of financial position. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at
acquisition cost less impairment, if any. 

 
4.8 EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeee bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank operates the following post retirement schemes for its employees:   
 

i) For those who did not opt for the pension scheme of 1977 and for new employees, the Bank operates: 
 

- Approved funded provident fund (defined contribution scheme)
- Approved funded gratuity scheme (defined benefit scheme)    

 
Liability under the gratuity scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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ii) For those who opted for the pension scheme introduced in 1977, the Bank operates:

- Approved funded pension scheme (defined benefit scheme) for services up to March 31, 2005
- Contributory gratuity and provident fund schemes in lieu of pension fund for services subsequent 

.)emehcsnoitubirtnocdenifed(5002,13hcraMot

Liability under the pension scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

PPPooosssttt rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank also provides post retirement medical benefits to its clerical employees and pensioners retiring before December 
31, 2005. Provision is made in the financial statements for this benefit based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method. The employees under officers and executives cadre are entitled to receive lump sum payments in lieu of 
post retirement medical facilities as a full and final settlement, effective January 01, 2006 onwards.

OOOttthhheeerrr pppooosssttt rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

The Bank provides cash benefits on retirement which are estimated as per the actuarial advice.

EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeeesss’’’ cccooommmpppeeennnsssaaattteeeddd aaabbbssseeennnccceeesss

The Bank also makes provision in the financial statements for its liabilities towards compensated absences. This liability is
estimated on the basis of actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

 
BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt fffuuunnnddd

The Bank operates funded benevolent schemes for its executives / officers and clerical / non-clerical employees. Under this
scheme, the employees of the Bank are entitled to receive defined grants / facilities during their service and after
retirement. The benevolent fund plan covers all the employees of the Bank. 

 
Provision is made in the financial statements for this benefit based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

An option for one time full and final payment of fair value of Pension and Benevolent fund based on actuarial valuation has 
been offered on retirement / early settlement at the time of availing leave prior to retirement (LPR) and / or death of an 
employee. Similarly, the existing beneficiaries / or prospective legal heir(s) shall have an option to receive fair value of 
aforesaid benefits including medical in lump sum offered by the Bank, being one time payment in full and final settlement.

SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss /// dddeeefffiiiccciiittt ooonnn rrreeetttiiirrreeemmmeeennnttt fffuuunnndddsss /// sssccchhheeemmmeeesss

Any surplus / deficit arising on actuarial valuation of these schemes (including actuarial gains / losses) available to / payable
by the Bank is recognized in the year in which it arises. 
 

4.9 FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy

FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy tttrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnnsss

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pakistani rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the date 
of statement of financial position. The fair value of forward cover taken from the State Bank of Pakistan for foreign
currency deposits is added / deducted from value of foreign currency deposits. Forward foreign exchange contracts and
foreign bills purchased are valued at forward rates applicable to their respective maturities. 

 
FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn ooopppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnsss

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Pakistani rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
statement of financial position. The income and expense of foreign operations are translated at average rate of exchange
for the year. 

 
TTTrrraaannnssslllaaatttiiiooonnn gggaaaiiinnnsss aaannnddd lllooosssssseeesss

Translation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account, except those arising on the translation of net
investment in foreign operations i.e., foreign branches which are taken to equity under "Exchange Translation Reserve" and
on disposal are recognized in profit or loss account. 
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CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at forward rates applicable to their
respective maturities. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in 
foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of statement of financial
position.

4.10 CCCaaassshhh aaannnddd cccaaassshhh eeeqqquuuiiivvvaaallleeennntttsss

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts.

4.11 OOOffffff ssseeettttttiiinnnggg

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is 
a legally enforceable right to set-off and the Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.12 IIImmmpppaaaiiirrrmmmeeennnttt

The carrying amount of the Bank’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each date of statement of
financial position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed 
if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

4.13 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn fffooorrr ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeee ccclllaaaiiimmm

Provision for guarantee claim is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists that the Bank will settle the
obligation. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer’s account. Charge to profit and loss account is stated
net of expected recoveries. 

 
4.14 OOOttthhheeerrr ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss

Other provisions are recognized when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is 
probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. 

 
4.15 FFFiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll AAAsssssseeetttsss aaannnddd LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, lending to financial
institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, bills payable, borrowings, deposits, sub-ordinated loans and certain 
other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed in the relevant policy notes. 

 
4.16 DDDeeerrriiivvvaaatttiiivvveee fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnssstttrrruuummmeeennntttsss

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently remeasured at fair value. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognized in profit and loss account. 

 
4.17 DDDiiivvviiidddeeennnddd dddiiissstttrrriiibbbuuutttiiiooonnn

Declarations of dividend to holders of the equity instruments of the Bank are recognised as liability in the period in which it 
is declared.

4.18 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt rrreeepppooorrrtttiiinnnggg

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing product or services (business segment), 
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to 
risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on 
business segments. 
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BBBuuusssiiinnneeessssss ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss

- Retail Banking  

Consists of retail lending, deposits and banking services to private individuals and small businesses including credit 
cards. 

 - Corporate / Commercial Banking

Consists of lendings for project finance, trade finance, corporate and commercial customers and investment banking, 
includes advices and placements to corporate mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatizations and securitization.

- Treasury   

Involves the businesses of proprietary trading, fixed income, equity and foreign exchanges.

- Interna!onal Banking Group

It represents Bank's operations in 25 countries and is considered a separate segment for monitoring purposes.
 

- Head Office  

This includes balances held at Head Office level for regulatory requirements or other operational reasons and business
segments not shown separately. This also includes some non performing loans not managed by other business
segments, statutory liquidity and shareholders equity related balances and their associated cost  / income.

GGGeeeooogggrrraaappphhhiiicccaaalll ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss

:gnieb,snoigercihpargoegevifnisetarepoknaBehT

- Pakistan  

)aisAhtuoSgnidulcni(cificaPaisA-

- Europe

aciremAhtroN-

tsaEelddiM-

- Others  

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

The above balances include remunerative accounts amounting to Rs. 15,485.433 million (2010: 15,788.255 million).
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
8. IIINNNVVVEEESSSTTTMMMEEENNNTTTSSS HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy GGGiiivvveeennn aaasss TTToootttaaalll HHHeeelllddd bbbyyy GGGiiivvveeennn aaasss TTToootttaaalll

bbbaaannnkkk cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll bbbaaannnkkk cccooollllllaaattteeerrraaalll
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

8.1 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss bbbyyy tttyyypppeee

HHHeeellldd-d-fffooorr-r-TTTrrraaadddiiinnnggg ssseeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss (((HHHFFFTTT)))

HHHeeelllddd---tttooo---mmmaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy ssseeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss (((HHHTTTMMM))) 4.8

FFFeeedddeeerrraaalll GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss

DDDeeebbbeeennntttuuurrreeesss aaannnddd CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee DDDeeebbbttt
IIInnnssstttrrruuummmeeennntttsss

AAAvvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee---fffooorrr---sssaaallleee SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss (((AAAFFFSSS)))

FFFeeedddeeerrraaalll GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss
- Market Treasury Bills 

- Government of Pakistan Guaranteed  
425,000 - 425,000

/sdnoBnatsikaPfotnemnrevoG-

OOOvvveeerrrssseeeaaasss GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss

FFFuuullllllyyy pppaaaiiiddd---uuuppp OOOrrrdddiiinnnaaarrryyy SSShhhaaarrreeesss:::

DDDeeebbbeeennntttuuurrreeesss aaannnddd CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee DDDeeebbbttt IIInnnssstttrrruuummmeeennntttsss ///
UUUnnniiitttsss

NNNIIITTT uuunnniiitttsss
PPPrrreeefffeeerrreeennnccceee ssshhhaaarrreeesss

IIIInnnnvvvveeeessssttttmmmmeeeennnntttt iiiinnnn SSSSuuuubbbbssssiiiiddddiiiiaaaarrrryyyy CCCCoooommmmppppaaaannnniiiieeeessss

IIIInnnnvvvveeeessssttttmmmmeeeennnntttt iiiinnnn AAAAssssssssoooocccciiiiaaaatttteeeessss aaaannnndddd
JJJJooooiiiinnnntttt VVVVeeeennnnttttuuuurrrreeee

IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt aaattt cccooosssttt

ehtnitnemriapmi/noitunimidrofnoisivorP
value of investments  including 

- (3,870,384)
 

45,622,408 714,039 246,336,447

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of held for 
- 65

 Deficit on revaluation of available for sale  
- (1,319,526)

 
TTToootttaaalll iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss aaattt mmmaaarrrkkkeeettt vvvaaallluuueee 222244444444,,,,333300002222,,,,999944447777 777711114444,,,,000033339999 222244445555,,,,000011116666,,,,999988886666

Net Investment
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8.2 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss bbbyyy ssseeegggmmmeeennntttsss NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

seitiruceStnemnrevoGlaredeF
- Market treasury bills  268,801,827 115,621,316

323,367,12633,808,07sdnobtnemtsevninatsikaP-
000,524000,524sdnobdeetnaraugnatsikaPfotnemnrevoG-

- Government of Pakistan bonds / Sukuk 111,905,8202,590,61)oruE/ralloDSU(/
990,534,01660,584,9seitiruceStnemnrevoGsaesrevO

serahSyranidrOpu-diapylluF
277,496,1080,505,2seinapmocdetsiL-
639,067830,167seinapmocdetsilnU-

stinU/stnemurtsnItbeDetaroproCdnaserutnebeD
915,503,5147,462,6seitirucesdetsiL-
773,835,47778,032,713.8seitirucesdetsilnU-

NIT units  11,113 11,113
000,002000,002serahsecnereferP
542,063,5195,096,55.8seinapmocyraidisbusnitnemtsevnI
020,285,5970,231,46.8ynapmocerutnevtniojdnasetaicossanitnemtsevnI
138,602,052059,014,204

Provision for diminution / impairment in the value of investments including
7.8setaicossa (1,996,585) (3,870,384)

744,633,642563,414,004tnemtsevniteN
56)154,1(seitirucesgnidartrofdlehfonoitaulavernosulprus/)ticifeD(
)625,913,1()544,374(2.91seitiruceselasrofelbaliavafonoitaulavernoticifeD
689,610,542964,939,993

8.3 This includes investment in the Variable Rate Subordinated Loan Notes issued by Habib Allied International Bank Plc, UK 
(Subsidiary) amounting to Rs. 3,868.065 million(US $ 43 million) (2010: Rs. 2,828.104)(US $ 33 million) . These notes are
perpetual and are repayable either at the option of the Bank or five years after receipt of repayment notice from the note 
holder. The Financial Services Authority (FSA) approval is required prior to repayment. Interest is payable on a six monthly
basis at 6 month LIBOR + 5.5% to LIBOR + 5.75%.

8.4 The market value of investment classified as HTM and investment in listed associates and joint venture is as follows:

DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr 333111,,, 222000111111 DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr 333111,,, 222000111000
BBBooooookkk vvvaaallluuueee MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt BBBooooookkk vvvaaallluuueee MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt

vvvaaallluuueee vvvaaallluuueee
---------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))------------------------------------------------

- Investment classified as held-to-maturity 44,261,697 43,304,571 8,332,307 6,990,663
 - Investment in listed associates and joint venture 3,095,848 4,857,766 2,685,902 6,861,508

 
222000111111 222000111000

8.5 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn sssuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrriiieeesss (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

438,931,2438,931,2)%5.09:0102(%5.09gnidloH-clPknaBlanoitanretnIdeillAbibaH
441,653884,686denwoyllohw-gnoKgnoH,detimiLlanoitanretnIecnaniFbibaH

Habib Bank Financial Services (Private 005,23005,23denwoyllohw-detimiL)
899,993000,004denwoyllohw-detimiL)etavirP(egnahcxEycnerruCLBH
000,001000,001denwoyllohw-detimiLtnemeganaMtessALBH

HBL Income Fund 58.71% (2010: 685,937685,937detsil-)%76.45
181,842181,842detsil-)%23.67:0102(%12.39dnuFtessAitluMLBH
200,443,1200,443,1detsil-)%41.28:0102(%74.28dnuFkcotSLBH
542,063,5195,096,5
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
8.6 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee cccooommmpppaaannnyyy (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

detsiL-)%02:0102(%02gnidloH-lapeN,detimiLknaBnayalamiH
.8/1.6.8)%82.6:0102(liNgnidloH-airegiN,clPBHPknaB

J
J

detsilnU-)%64.21:0102(%55.1gnidloH-dnuFtekraMyenoMLBH
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund detsilnU-%80.46gnidloH-

detsilnU-%41.69gnidloH-dnuFkcotScimalsILBH
detsilnU-%82.99gnidloH-dnuFbuSytiuqEnoisnePLBH

1.2.6.8
detsilnU-%43.69gnidloH-dnuFbuStbeDnoisnePLBH

detsilnU-%62.79gnidloH-dnuFbuStekraMyenoMnoisnePLBH
detsilnU-%39.99gnidloH-dnuFbuSytiuqEnoisnePcimalsILBH

HBL Islamic Pension Debt detsilnU-%39.99gnidloH-dnuFbuS

8.6.1 During August 2011, the assets and liabilities of Bank PHB have been transferred by Central Bank of Nigeria to a newly formed
Bank, Keystone Bank Limited under new management and the Board. The banking license of Bank PHB has been revoked,
therefore, the Bank has written off its investment in Bank PHB. 

 

8.6.2 The Bank has significant influence in Diamond Trust Bank Limited, Kyrgyz Investment and Credit Bank, Jubilee General 
Insurance Company Limited and Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited because of Aga Khan Fund for Economic
Development's holding (Parent of Bank).

8.6.2.1 During the year the Bank has subscribed for units of these funds. Currently, the holding of the Bank is high due to initial 
investments which are expected to go down with sale of units. Accordingly, these investments have been accounted for as
investment in associates under IAS 28. 

 

8.6.3 The investments have been tested for impairment under the policy of the Bank as given in note 4.12 and provision has been
made where required and disclosed in note 8.7.

8.6.4 SSSuuummmmmmaaarrryyy ooofff fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnfffooorrrmmmaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff
aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss aaannnddd jjjoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee cccooommmpppaaannnyyy

222000111111
BBBaaassseeeddd ooonnn ttthhheee

fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ssstttaaattteeemmmeeennntttsss
aaasss ooonnn

AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss EEEqqquuuiiitttyyy RRReeevvveeennnuuueee PPPrrrooofffiiittt ///
(((lllooossssss)))

---------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------

222000111000
BBBaaassseeeddd ooonnn ttthhheee

fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ssstttaaattteeemmmeeennntttsss
aaasss ooonnn

AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss EEEqqquuuiiitttyyy RRReeevvveeennnuuueee
PPPrrrooofffiiittt ///
(((lllooossssss)))

---------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------

Diamond Trust Bank Limited, Kenya June 30, 2010 80,687,182 70,884,325 9,802,857 3,864,156 1,310,830
 Himalayan Bank Limited, Nepal   July 16, 2010 52,858,090 48,474,926 4,383,164  3,673,539 609,916

Kyrgyz Investment and Credit Bank December 31, 2009 8,991,854 7,075,475 1,916,379 923,933 270,727
Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited September 30, 2010 9,986,776 9,432,444 554,332 26,483 70,539
 Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited September 30, 2010 7,959,237 5,316,316 2,642,921  2,174,403 219,659
HBL Money Market Fund September 30, 2010 350,926 5,353 345,573  13,657 3,044
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8.6.5 IIInnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeeddd uuunnndddeeerrrtttaaakkkiiinnngggsss --- aaasss pppeeerrr ssstttaaatttuuuttteee CCCooosssttt HHHooollldddiiinnnggg CCCooosssttt HHHooollldddiiinnnggg

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) %%% (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) %%%

First Women Bank Limited   63,300 19.34%  63,300 26.78%
 Khushali Bank 300,000 17.60%  300,000 17.60%
 363,300 363,300

8.6.5.1 The Bank does not have significant influence over these entities due to influence of the Government / major shareholders. Accordingly 
these investments are accounted for as normal investments. 

 
8.7 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn hhheeelllddd aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt dddiiimmmiiinnnuuutttiiiooonnn iiinnn vvvaaallluuueee ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
The balances disclosed in note 8.1 are stated net of specific provision held.
The analysis of total provision held is as follows: 

 
730,747,3483,078,3ecnalabgninepO
156,4767,931ten-raeyehtrofegrahC

Impairment loss on shares (net) or change 226,483958,637setaicossafoeulavni
372,983626,678ten-egrahclatoT

)336,262(-secnavdaotrefsnarT
)392,3()934,557,2(1.6.8ffonettirwtnuomA

-410,5tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
483,078,3585,699,11.7.8ecnalabgnisolC

8.7.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff tttyyypppeee aaannnddd ssseeegggmmmeeennnttt

HHHeeellldd-d- -MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy ssseeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss
stnemurtsnItbeDetaroproCdnaserutnebeD-

AAAvvvaaaiiilllaaabbbllleee---fffooorrr---sssaaallleee SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss
- Fully paid-up ordinary shares 

seinapmocdetsiL-
seinapmocdetsilnU-

stnemurtsnItbeDetaroproCdnaserutnebeD-
serahsecnereferP-

- Units
AAAssssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

8.8 Investments held for maintaining the liquidity requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan amounted to Rs. 111,394 million as 
at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 100,739 million). 

 
8.9 Investments include Rs. 519.958 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 544.701 million) pledged with State Bank of

Pakistan and National Bank of Pakistan against TT/DD discounting facilities and demand loan facilities.

8.10 Investments include Rs. 9.567 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 10.610 million) pledged with the Controller of
Military Accounts in lieu of Regimental Fund Accounts being maintained at various branches of the bank.

8.11 Investments include strategic investments amounting to Rs. 6,208.819 million as at December 31, 2011 (2010: Rs. 5,926
million) under BPD circular letter No. 16 of 2006 dated August 1, 2006.

8.12 Information relating to investments including credit ratings in shares of listed and unlisted companies, redeemable capital
and bonds, required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements by the State Bank of Pakistan, is given in Annexure "I"
and is an integral part of these financial statements.

8.13 The comparative figures have been re-arranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.

ttoo
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NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
9. AAADDDVVVAAANNNCCCEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

.cte,secnanifgninnur,stiderchsac,snaoL
917,019,383natsikaPnI
434,915,45natsikaPedistuO
351,034,834

Net investment in finance lease - 557,991,33.1.9natsikaPni

Bills discounted and purchased (excluding Government treasury bills):   
382,021,9natsikaPnielbayaP
785,766,22natsikaPedistuoelbayaP
078,787,13

Provision against non-performing )812,914,83(4.9secnavda
065,899,434

FFFuuullllllyyy ppprrrooovvviiidddeeeddd nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ccclllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd aaasss
lllooossssss fffooorrr mmmooorrreee ttthhhaaannn fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss

386,725,21natsikaPnI
)386,725,21(6.9noisivorP

-

9.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss

9.1.1 In local currency    

In foreign currency including foreign currency financing by domestic
 branches amounting to Rs. 20,045.548 million (2010: Rs. 26,424.400 million)

837,357,203)raeyenootpurof(mrettrohS2.1.9
228,442,231)raeyenorevorof(mretgnoL
065,899,434

9.1.3 NNNeeettt iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennnttt iiinnn fffiiinnnaaannnccceee llleeeaaassseee 222000111111 222000111000
NNNooottt lllaaattteeerrr NNNooottt lllaaattteeerrr LLLaaattteeerrr ttthhhaaannn
ttthhhaaannn ooonnneee TTToootttaaalll ttthhhaaannn ooonnneee ooonnneee aaannnddd TTToootttaaalll

yyyeeeaaarrr yyyeeeaaarrr llleeessssss ttthhhaaannn
fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

9.2 Advances include Rs. 51,313.510 million (2010: Rs. 46,677.077 million) which have been placed under non-performing status,
other than those accounts classified as loss and fully provided for more than five years which have been placed in separate
category as referred to in note 9.3 as detailed below:

NNNooottteee 222000111111
CCCaaattteeegggooorrryyy ooofff NNNooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn rrreeeqqquuuiiirrreeeddd aaannnddd hhheeelllddd NNNeeettt nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss
ccclllaaassssssiiifffiiicccaaatttiiiooonnn DDDooommmeeessstttiiiccc OOOvvveeerrrssseeeaaasss TTToootttaaalll DDDooommmeeessstttiiiccc OOOvvveeerrrssseeeaaasss TTToootttaaalll DDDooommmeeessstttiiiccc OOOvvveeerrrssseeeaaasss TTToootttaaalll

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn
Other assets especially   

GGGeeennneeerrraaalll ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn 999...222...222

LLLaaattteeerrr ttthhhaaannn
ooonnneee aaannnddd
llleeessssss ttthhhaaannn
fffiiivvveee yyyeeeaaarrrsss
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Annexure “II”.
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10.5 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff dddiiissspppooosssaaalll ooofff fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss

The information relating to disposal of fixed assets in aggregate having book value exceeding Rs. 250,000 or cost exceeding Rs. 
1 million (whichever is lower), are required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements by the State Bank of Pakistan is
given in Annexure “III” and is an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
10.6 At December 31, 2011 carrying value of properties and equipment retired from active service and held for disposal purposes 

amounted to Rs. 142.998 million (2010: Rs. 154.291 million). The cost / valuation of fully depreciated properties and equipment  
that are still in the Bank's use, as at the above date, amounted to Rs. 4,450.289 million (2010: Rs. 4,023.830 million).

222000111111 222000111000
11. DDDEEEFFFEEERRRRRREEEDDD TTTAAAXXX AAASSSSSSEEETTT NNNooottteee (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

DDDDeeeedddduuuuccccttttiiiibbbblllleeee tttteeeemmmmppppoooorrrraaaarrrryyyy ddddiiiiffffffffeeeerrrreeeennnncccceeeessss oooonnnn
543,860,1stnemtsevnitsniaganoisivorp-

- provision against doubtful debts & 665,759,6teehsecnalab-ffo
079,002OTIehtfo)5(43.cesrednukcabnettirwseitilibail-
828,2642.91stnemtsevnifonoitaulaver-
592,530,1srehtotsniaganoisivorp-
400,527,9

TTTaaaxxxaaabbbllleee ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ooonnn
)876,988(stessadexif-

NNNeeettt dddeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttaaaxxx aaasssssseeettt rrreeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd bbbyyy ttthhheee BBBaaannnkkk

094,483
699,441,6
613,711
505,561
994,279
608,487,7

)615,728(

11.1 MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt iiinnn ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ddduuurrriiinnnggg ttthhheee yyyeeeaaarrr

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee aaasss RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd BBBaaalllaaannnccceee aaasss RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd RRReeecccooogggnnniiissseeeddd BBBaaalllaaannnccceee aaasss
aaattt JJJaaannnuuuaaarrryyy iiinnn ppprrrooofffiiittt iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy aaattt DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr iiinnn ppprrrooofffiiittt iiinnn eeeqqquuuiiitttyyy aaattt DDDeeeccceeemmmbbbeeerrr
111,,, 222000111000 ooorrr lllooossssss 333111,,, 222000111000 ooorrr lllooossssss 333111,,, 222000111111

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiibbbllleee ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ooonnn
- provision against investments  908,508 159,837        - 1,068,345 (683,855)   - 384,490
 - provision against doubtful debts & off-

699,441,6-)075,218(665,759,6-429,414246,245,6teehsecnalab
- liabilities written back under sec. 34(5) of  

613,711-)456,38(079,002-)291(261,102OTIeht
- provision against others   1,103,187 (67,892) - 1,035,295 (62,796) - 972,499
 - on revaluation of investments  370,251        - 92,577 462,828  - (297,323) 165,505
 TTTaaaxxxaaabbbllleee ttteeemmmpppooorrraaarrryyy dddiiiffffffeeerrreeennnccceeesss ooonnn
- fixed assets    (953,160) 75,822 (12,340) (889,678) 62,162 - (827,516)

 8,172,590 582,499 80,237 8,835,326 (1,580,713) (297,323) 6,957,290



12. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

239,596,51ycnerruclacolnideurccapu-kram/emocnI
588,446ycnerrucngierofnideurccapu-kram/emocnI

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepay  660,272,1stnem
ahabarumtsniagasecnavdA 57,686 

 349,020,8)snoisivorpsselstnemyap(noitaxatecnavdA
3.2.33snalptifenebdenifedmorfelbavieceR -

389,73dnahnospmatsdnayrenoitatS
303,551emocnideurccA
669,9682.21tcartnocegnahcxengierofdrawrofnoniagdesilaernU

tekram(smialcfonoitcafsitasnideriuqcastessagniknab-noN
582,965,2)noillim122.808,2.sR:0102(noillim734.800,2.sReulav
374,165,4tisnartnigniraelC/ertneCgnivaSlanoitaNmorfelbavieceR

PBSmorfelbavieceR -
704,03elbaviecerdnediviD
364,724*stessagniknabnonrehtO
618,655srehtO
802,009,43
)247,124(1.21stessarehtotsniagadlehnoisivorP

193,127,41
471,808
881,424,1

-
781,814,01
080,36
736,14
459,161
059,451,1

031,118,1
290,003,11
148,853,1
811,13
378,724
491,305
908,522,44
)684,482(

* Non banking assets on which buy back option period has not yet expired.

12.1 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt ooottthhheeerrr aaasssssseeetttsss

377,325247,124ecnalabgninepO
224,501)378,111(raeyehtrofegrahC/)lasreveR(
)748,802()105,92(ffoetirW

493,1811,4tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
247,124684,482ecnalabgnisolC

12.2 Unrealised loss on foreign exchange contracts amounting to Rs. 870.376 million (2010: Rs. 385.633 million) has been 
grossed up from unrealised gain on foreign exchange contracts and shown as part of other liability.

13. BBBIIILLLLLLSSS PPPAAAYYYAAABBBLLLEEE

305,623,9114,780,31natsikaPnI
642,844190,708natsikaPedistuO
947,477,9205,498,31

14. BBBOOORRRRRROOOWWWIIINNNGGGSSS

799,614,23354,167,72natsikaPnI
633,310,5154,359,5natsikaPedistuO
333,034,73409,417,33

14.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss

799,614,23354,167,72ycnerruclacolnI
633,310,5154,359,5ycnerrucngierofnI
333,034,73409,417,33

222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
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14.2 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff bbbooorrrrrrooowwwiiinnngggsss NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

SSSeeecccuuurrreeeddd
:rednunatsikaPfoknaBetatSmorfsgniworroB

514,515,02emehcsecnanifertropxE-
- Long term financing facility - locally manufactured an

506,422,3stcejorpdetneirotropxe-ecnanifmretgnoL-
930,417sgniworrobtnemeergaesahcrupeR
799,666,82

UUUnnnssseeecccuuurrreeeddd
natsikaPnI

000,057,34.41gniworrobyenomllacknabretnI-
natsikaPedistuO

637,3945.41stnuoccaortsonnwardrevO-
006,915,4sehcnarbsaesrevofosgniworroB-
633,310,5
633,367,8
333,034,73

791,281,81

435,477,1
-

354,161,42

000,006,3

353,807
890,542,5
154,359,5
154,355,9
409,417,33

14.3 Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under the export and export oriented projects refinance schemes of SBP are
secured by the bank's cash and security balances held by SBP. These carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.7% to 11% per
annum (2010: 8.2% to 9.5% per annum).

14.4 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.7% to 13.05% per annum (2010: 12.7% to 12.83% per annum).

14.5 Since, the Bank operates in different countries, these carry varied mark-up rates as given by the external banks of
respective countries.

222000111111 222000111000
15. DDDEEEPPPOOOSSSIIITTTSSS AAANNNDDD OOOTTTHHHEEERRR AAACCCCCCOOOUUUNNNTTTSSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

CCCuuussstttooommmeeerrrsss
761,669,681stisopeddexiF
314,128,833tnuoccagniuqehcsgnivaS
479,527,1evitarenumer-stnuoccatnerruC
483,364,971evitarenumer-non-stnuoccatnerruC
839,679,607

FFFiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll iiinnnssstttiiitttuuutttiiiooonnnsss
695,813,9stisopedevitarenumeR
306,377,4stisopedevitarenumer-noN
991,290,41
731,960,127

15.1 PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff dddeeepppooosssiiitttsss

796,452,495ycnerruclacolnI
In foreign currencies {including foreign currency deposits of domestic

044,418,621})noillim759.381,05.sR:0102(noillim345.433,07.sRfosehcnarb
731,960,127

856,789,542
870,864,883
850,496,1
872,518,222
270,569,858

562,192,11
062,250,5
525,343,61
795,803,578

786,626,027

019,186,451
795,803,578

16 SSSUUUBBB---OOORRRDDDIIINNNAAATTTEEEDDD LLLOOOAAANNN

The Bank has obtained loan from "International Finance Corporation" (IFC) amounting to US $ 50 million (2010: US $ 50
million). The principal amount is repayable in four equal half yearly installments commencing from the year 2013 to 2014. 
Interest is payable on bi - annual basis commencing from December 2007 at LIBOR + 1.75%. The loan is unsecured and
subordinated as to payment of principal and interest to all other indebtness of the bank (including deposits). The loan may
not be prepaid or repaid before maturity without the prior written approval of the State Bank of Pakistan. The Bank is not
exposed to significant exchange risk as the loan forms part of the Bank's foreign currency net open position.



NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
17. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR LLLIIIAAABBBIIILLLIIITTTIIIEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Mark-up / return / interest payable 726,400,11ycnerruclacolni
619,443ycnerrucngierofnielbayaptseretni/nruter/pu-kraM
385,942stisopedytiruceS
306,294,3sesnepxedeurccA
336,583stcartnocegnahcxengierofdrawrofnossoldesilaernU
483,62sdnedividdemialcnU
108,22elbayapdnediviD
521,195,18.2.33secnesbadetasnepmoc'seeyolpmerofnoisivorP

Provision for post retirement medi 903,261,23.2.33stifeneblac
408,512,11.71snoitagilboteehsecnalab-ffotsniaganoisivorP
139,089tnuoccatnemtsujdahcnarB
432,484stifenebtnemeriterffatsrofnoisivorP
288,0713.2.33nalptifenebdenifedotelbayaP
126,827dnuferaflewsrekrowrofnoisivorP

Unearned income
601,943dnuFansaH-e-azraQ
929,897elbayapsexatdnaseituD

Insurance payable
760,32elbayapstniopdraweR
000,5seitirucesfognidarttsniagaytilibaiL
152,107srehtO
816,179,42

17.1 PPPrrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnn aaagggaaaiiinnnsssttt oooffffff---bbbaaalllaaannnccceee ssshhheeeeeettt ooobbbllliiigggaaatttiiiooonnnsss

108,132,1ecnalabgninepO
141,44raeyehtrofegrahC/)lasreveR(
)107,66(ffoetirW
365,6tnemtsujdaegnahcxE
408,512,1

777,041,51
024,775
017,772
219,679,6
773,078
545,54
506,15
775,027,1
006,993,2
654,251,1
270,366,1
651,116
368,44
870,561,1

319,643
105,638

253,04
277,662
822,416
077,389,43

408,512,1
)525,86(
)681,8(
363,31
654,251,1ecnalabgnisolC

18. SSSHHHAAARRREEE CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL

18.1 AAAuuuttthhhooorrriiissseeeddd CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll

222000111111 222000111000
NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr ooofff ssshhhaaarrreeesss iiinnn '''000000000

000,008,31000,008,31hcae01.sRfoserahsyranidrO000,083,1000,083,1

18.2 IIIssssssuuueeeddd,,, sssuuubbbssscccrrriiibbbeeeddd aaannnddd pppaaaiiiddd---uuuppp cccaaapppiiitttaaalll

222000111111 222000111000
NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr ooofff ssshhhaaarrreeesss iiinnn '''000000000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
000,009,6000,009,6hsacnidiapylluF000,096000,096
008,811,3086,021,4serahssunobsadeussI088,113860,214
008,810,01086,020,11088,100,1860,201,1

18.3 EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee tttrrraaannnssslllaaatttiiiooonnn rrreeessseeerrrvvveee

This comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
 

18.4 SSStttaaatttuuutttooorrryyy rrreeessseeerrrvvveeesss

Every banking company incorporated in Pakistan is required to transfer 20% of their profits to a statutory reserve until the 
reserve equals share capital, thereafter 10% of the profits of the holding company are to be transferred to this reserve.
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18.5 DDDiiivvviiidddeeennndddsss 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

The following cash dividends and bonus shares were declared and paid / issued by the Bank: 
 

008,464,5)erahsrep6.sR:0102(erahsrep5.6.sR:dnedividhsaC

Bonus share: 1 shares for every 10 shares held 910,800
 
erahsrep3.sR:dnedividhsacmiretnI

After December 31, 2011 the following dividends were proposed by the Directors for 2011. 
The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences. 

 
erahsrep4.sR:dnedividhsaC

022,215,6

402,603,3

272,804,4

860,201,1dlehserahs01yreveroferahs1:erahssunoB

19. SSSUUURRRPPPLLLUUUSSS OOONNN RRREEEVVVAAALLLUUUAAATTTIIIOOONNN OOOFFF AAASSSSSSEEETTTSSS --- nnneeettt ooofff dddeeefffeeerrrrrreeeddd tttaaaxxx
222000111111 222000111000

NNNooottteee (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

:fonoitaulavernognisirasulpruS
127,965,81.91stessadexif-
)896,658(2.91stnemtsevni-
320,317,7xatderrefedfoten-stessafonoitaulavernosulpruS

19.1 SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss ooonnn rrreeevvvaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss

348,154,91yraunaJtasastessadexiffonoitaulavernosulpruS
dezingocerseitreporps'knabfonoitaulavernosulpruS

509,251raeyehtgnirud

Surplus realised on disposal of revalued properties during th
latnemercnifotcepsernitiforpdetairporppanuotderrefsnarT

)694,911(xatderrefedfoten-raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerped
latnemercnifoytilibailxatderrefeddetaleR

)443,46(raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerped
-seitreporpdeulaverfolasopsidnoytilibailxatderrefeddetaleR

809,024,913rebmeceDtasastessadexiffonoitaulavernosulpruS

:noytilibailxatderrefeddetaler:sseL
191,3091yraunaJtasanoitaulaver-

- revaluation of bank's properties 043,21raeyehtgniruddesingocer

raeyehtgniruddegrahcnoitaicerpedlatnemercni-
transferred to profit an )443,46(tnuoccassold

781,158
127,965,8

19.2 SSSuuurrrpppllluuusss /// (((dddeeefffiiiccciiittt))) ooonnn rrreeevvvaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss

)710,651(slliByrusaerTtekraM
)706,061,1(sdnoBtnemtsevnInatsikaP
)813,142(sdnoBoruEdnakukuS
659,001seitiruceSdetsiL
030,01stinUTIN
034,721stnemtsevnIrehtO
)625,913,1(

828,264tessaxatderrefeddetaleR
)896,658(

805,903,8
)049,703(

865,100,8

809,024,9

-

)288,021(

)090,56(
)144,2(

461,390,9

781,158

)090,56(
656,387
805,903,8

528,116
)182,791(
)086,438(
)143,341(

953,6
376,38
)544,374(
505,561
)049,703(

-
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222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

20. CCCOOONNNTTTIIINNNGGGEEENNNCCCIIIEEESSS AAANNNDDD CCCOOOMMMMMMIIITTTMMMEEENNNTTTSSS

20.1 DDDiiirrreeecccttt cccrrreeedddiiittt sssuuubbbssstttiiitttuuuttteeesss --- fffiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll ggguuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeeesss

Guarantees in favour of:   
- Government 824,953
- Financial institutions 677,32
- Others   774,687,73

186,961,83

20.2 TTTrrraaannnsssaaaccctttiiiooonnn---rrreeelllaaattteeeddd cccooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnttt llliiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss

:foruovafniseetnarauG
687,446,1tnemnrevoG-
541,49snoitutitsnilaicnaniF-
332,371,82srehtO-
461,219,92

20.3 TTTrrraaadddeee---rrreeelllaaattteeeddd cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

963,921,08hsactiderC
791,520,8secnatpeccayratnemucodtiderC
703,025,41secnatpeccatiderC
378,476,201

20.4 OOOttthhheeerrr cccooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss

370,746,28

870,453
695,813
038,703,22
405,089,22

318,406,1
292,636
915,418,13
426,550,43

894,202,07
039,998,12
940,511,32
774,712,511

764,615,48stbedsadegdelwonkcatonknaBehttsniagasmialC

20.5 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrrwwwaaarrrddd llleeennndddiiinnnggg

The bank makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but none of these commitments are
irrevocable and do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn. 

 
222000111111 222000111000

20.6 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrrwwwaaarrrddd fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn aaannnddd lllooocccaaalll eeexxxccchhhaaannngggeee cccooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

581,074,87469,937,031esahcruP
436,162,87128,737,031elaS

The above commitments have maturi  .raeyenonihtiwgnillafseit

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy oooppptttiiiooonnnsss

-556,633esahcruP
-556,633elaS

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff cccrrrooossssss cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy ssswwwaaapppsss

-177,868,2esahcruP
-177,868,2elaS

CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss iiinnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff fffooorrreeeiiigggnnn aaannnddd lllooocccaaalll cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy iiinnnttteeerrreeesssttt rrraaattteee ssswwwaaapppsss

290,173155,284esahcruP
290,173108,923elaS

20.7 CCCooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss fffooorrr aaacccqqquuuiiisssiiitttiiiooonnn ooofff ooopppeeerrraaatttiiinnnggg fffiiixxxeeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss /// iiinnntttaaannngggiiibbbllleeesss
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21. DDDEEERRRIIIVVVAAATTTIIIVVVEEE IIINNNSSSTTTRRRUUUMMMEEENNNTTTSSS

21.1. PPPrrroooddduuucccttt AAAnnnaaalllyyysssiiisss
222000111111

IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee SSSwwwaaapppsss FFFXXX OOOppptttiiiooonnnsss CCCrrrooossssss CCCuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy SSSwwwaaapppsss
CCCooouuunnnttteeerrrpppaaarrrtttiiieeesss NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll

CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll***
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

WWWiiittthhh BBBaaannnkkksss fffooorrr

WWWiiittthhh ooottthhheeerrr eeennntttiiitttiiieeesss fffooorrr

TTToootttaaalll

222000111000
IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee SSSwwwaaapppsss FFFXXX OOOppptttiiiooonnnsss CCCrrrooossssss CCCuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy SSSwwwaaapppsss

CCCooouuunnnttteeerrrpppaaarrrtttiiieeesss NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll NNNooo... ooofff NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll*** CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll***

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
WWWiiittthhh BBBaaannnkkksss fffooorrr

Hedging  -        - -    - - -
Market Making 1  371,092 -    - - -

WWWiiittthhh ooottthhheeerrr eeennntttiiitttiiieeesss fffooorrr
Hedging  -        - -    - - -
Market Making 1  371,092 -    - - -

TTToootttaaalll
Hedging  -        - -    - - -
Market Making 2  742,184 -    - - -

* At the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting year.    
 
21.2. MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy AAAnnnaaalllyyysssiiisss

222000111111
RRReeemmmaaaiiinnniiinnnggg MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy NNNooo... ooofff

CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss
NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll MMMaaarrrkkk tttooo MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt

NNNeeegggaaatttiiivvveee PPPooosssiiitttiiivvveee NNNeeettt
------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------

222000111000
RRReeemmmaaaiiinnniiinnnggg MMMaaatttuuurrriiitttyyy NNNooo... ooofff

CCCooonnntttrrraaaccctttsss
NNNoootttiiiooonnnaaalll
PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll

MMMaaarrrkkk tttooo MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt

NNNeeegggaaatttiiivvveee PPPooosssiiitttiiivvveee NNNeeettt
------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------

5 to 10 years   2 742,184 (9,496) 10,396  900
2 742,184 (9,496) 10,396  900 121



21.3 During the year HBL has been granted the ADD status by SBP. Hence, it is now permissible for the Bank to undertake
market-making activities, which may include taking proprietary positions. The Bank has strengthened its Derivative
platform through acquisition of a leading international derivatives solution and skilled human resources. The derivative 
products include Foreign Currency Options (FXCO), Forward Rate Agreements (FRA), Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) and Cross 
Currency Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS), as permitted by SBP . The Bank fully understands the complexities involved and
market depth for derivatives products. Therefore, these products are offered in line with the strict criteria set in the
derivatives policy document.  

 
22. MMMAAARRRKKK---UUUPPP /// RRREEETTTUUURRRNNN /// IIINNNTTTEEERRREEESSSTTT EEEAAARRRNNNEEEDDD 222000111111 222000111000

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))
OOOnnn llloooaaannnsss aaannnddd aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss tttooo

851,485,35201,849,35sremotsuC-
303,523981,533snoitutitsnilaicnaniF-

OOOnnn iiinnnvvveeessstttmmmeeennntttsss
186,103,22987,718,63elasr-ofe-lbaliavA-
291,06999,225gnidarTr-ofd-leH-
018,374274,881,1ytirutamo-td-leH-

234,096361,607snoitutitsnilaicnanifhtiwstisopednO
672,465,2656,829,2snoitutitsnilaicnanifotsgnidnelnO
258,999,97073,744,69

23. MMMAAARRRKKK---UUUPPP /// RRREEETTTUUURRRNNN /// IIINNNTTTEEERRREEESSSTTT EEEXXXPPPEEENNNSSSEEEDDD

518,606,03684,825,73stisopeD
748,423805,987sgniworrobtnemeergaesahcruperrednudlosseitiruceS
589,916,2534,907,2sgniworrobmrettrohsrehtO
127,835858,535sgniworrobmretgnoL
863,090,43782,365,14

24. GGGAAAIIINNN OOONNN SSSAAALLLEEE OOOFFF SSSEEECCCUUURRRIIITTTIIIEEESSS --- NNNEEETTT

Federal Government Securi!es  
490,701986,003sllibyrusaerttekraM-
628,52)901,19(sdnobtnemtsevninatsikaP-
051,1510,2seitirucesrehtO-

667,451970,412serahsdetsiL
638,882476,524

25. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR IIINNNCCCOOOMMMEEE

937,070,2525,870,2segrahclatnedicnI
742,072417,433srekcolnotneR
399,61647,7stessadexifgnitarepofoelasnoniaG
390,27250,001ytreporpnotneR
691,56274,43derevocerstbeddaB
736,421446,671sgninraesuoenallecsiM
509,916,2351,237,2



A Vision Transformed into Art

A
N

N
U

A
L

R
EP

O
R

T
-2

0
11

26. AAADDDMMMIIINNNIIISSSTTTRRRAAATTTIIIVVVEEE EEEXXXPPPEEENNNSSSEEESSS NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

546,773,21190,260,413.62.cte,secnawolla,seiralaS
017,857161,685,1stifenebrehtodnanalpnoitubirtnoc/tifenebdenifedrofegrahC

Non-executive directors' 005,41007,31seef
716,41278,02noissimmocdnaegarekorB
138,271,2196,106,2.cte,yticirtcele,ecnarusni,sexat,tneR
358,857033,075,1segrahclanoisseforpdnalageL
912,324017,255snoitacinummoC
563,750,1064,241,1ecnanetniamdnasriapeR
643,444926,615gnitnirpdnayrenoitatS
469,68049,961.62noitarenumer'srotiduA
370,118246,599yticilbupdnatnemesitrevdA
249,891732,342.01noitazitromA
611,764,1499,753,13.01noitaicerpeD
929,29410,611tnemniatretnE
793,262590,333gnillevarT
530,301738,701racrotomdnaecnayevnoC
831,061944,621gniniarT
070,196339,167segrahcytiruceS
931,28326,461segrahcecnattimeR
351,593820,3524.62snoitanoD
168,404887,904segrahcgnissecorpdnanoitatnemucoD
759,572080,133srehtO
068,350,32403,731,72

26.1 AAAuuudddiiitttooorrrsss''' rrreeemmmuuunnneeerrraaatttiiiooonnn

286,3286,3eeftiduA
053,3053,3weivermiretnirofeeF
951,8951,8knaBehtfosehcnarblacolfotiduarofeeF

Special certifications / examinations an 465,5256,1secivresyrosivdayrdnusd
220,3202,3sesnepxetekcopfotuO
777,32540,02
781,36598,94sehcnarbsaesrevO
469,68049,96

26.2 The Bank operates a short term employee benefit scheme which includes cash award / special bonus for all employees. 
Under this scheme, the bonus for all Executives, including the Chief Executive Officer is determined on the basis of 
employees' evaluation and the Bank's performance during the year. The aggregate amount determined for the eligible
employees in respect of the above scheme relating to all Executives and for the Key Management Personnel of the Bank 
amounted to Rs. 601.053 million (2010: Rs. 518.883 million) and Rs. 418.043 million (2010: Rs. 370.988 million)
respectively.  

 
26.3 The bank has paid in addition to payments under the staff retirement funds, an amount of Rs. 170.181 million (2010: Rs. 

210.782 million) to the staff retrenched during the year and in previous years. 
 
26.4 Details of the donations in excess of Rs. 100,000 and above are given in Annexure IV.

26.5 BBBeeennnaaazzziiirrr EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeeesss’’’ SSStttoooccckkk OOOppptttiiiooonnn SSSccchhheeemmmeee

There is no liability of the bank to grant shares under this scheme and no impact on current or future cash flows of the 
Bank. The details of schemes are as under: 

 

Scheme’] for employees of certain State Owned Enterprises (SOEs) and non-State Owned Enterprises where GOP holds
significant investments (non-SOEs). The scheme is applicable to permanent and contractual employees who were in 
employment of these entities on the date of launch of the Scheme, subject to completion of five years vesting period by
all contractual employees and by permanent employees in certain instances.

The Scheme provides for a cash payment to employees on retirement or termination based on the price of shares of 

123



respective entities. To administer this scheme, GOP shall transfer 12% of its investment in such SOEs and non-SOEs to a 
Trust Fund created for the purpose by each of such entities. The eligible employees would be allotted units by each Trust 
Fund in proportion to their respective length of service and on retirement or termination, such employees would be 
entitled to receive such amounts from Trust Funds in exchange for the surrendered units as would be determined based on 
market price for listed entities or break-up value for non-listed entities. The shares relating to the surrendered units would
be transferred back to GOP.

The Scheme also provides that 50% of dividend related to shares transferred to the respective Trust Fund would be
distributed amongst the unit-holder employees. The balance 50% dividend would be transferred by the respective Trust 
Fund to the Central Revolving Fund managed by the Privatization Commission of Pakistan for payment to employees
against surrendered units. The deficit, if any, in Trust Funds to meet the re-purchase commitment would be met by GOP.

An employees trust to administer the scheme for Bank’s employees was formed on October 26, 2010. However, the shares
have not yet been transferred to the Trust.

The Scheme, developed in compliance with the stated GOP policy of empowerment of employees of State Owned
Enterprises, need to be accounted for by the covered entities, including the Bank, under the provisions of amended 
International Financial Reporting Standard 2 Share Based Payments (IFRS 2). However, keeping in view the difficulties that
may be faced by the entities covered under the Scheme, the SECP has granted exemption to such entities from the
application of IFRS 2 to the Scheme. Had the exemption not been granted the staff costs of the Bank for the period would
have been higher by Rs. 1,384 million, profit before taxation would have been lower by Rs. 1,384 million (earnings per 
share would have been lower by Rs. 1.26 per share) and, as the Scheme is fully funded by GOP, there would have been no
impact on retained earnings / equity of the Bank.

222000111111 222000111000
27. OOOTTTHHHEEERRR CCCHHHAAARRRGGGEEESSS (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

007,871885,77natsikaPfoknaBetatSybdesopmiseitlaneP

28. WWWOOORRRKKKEEERRRSSS WWWEEELLLFFFAAARRREEE FFFUUUNNNDDD

The Worker’s Welfare Ordinance, 1971 has been amended vide Finance Act, 2008 by virtue of which the bank is now liable 
to pay WWF @ 2% of profit before tax as per accounts or declared income as per income tax return, whichever is higher.  

 

29. TTTAAAXXXAAATTTIIIOOONNN 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

601,164,8tnerruc-raeyehtrof-natsikaProF
)291,195(derrefed-

898,496tnerruc-raeyroirp-natsikaProF
396,8derrefed-

227,078tnerruc-raeyehtrof-saesrevOroF
-derrefed-

722,444,9

For the purpose of taxation overseas include the Bank's branches in Azad Jammu & Kashmir region.

222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

29.1 RRReeelllaaatttiiiooonnnssshhhiiippp bbbeeetttwwweeeeeennn tttaaaxxx eeexxxpppeeennnssseee aaannnddd aaaccccccooouuunnntttiiinnnggg ppprrrooofffiiittt

182,750,52raeytnerrucehtroftiforpgnitnuoccA

840,077,8)%53:9002(%53@emocninoxaT

)467,311(emocnietardecudeR-
545,26PBSybdesopmiytlaneP-
893,527egrahcraeyroirP-
722,444,9

754,652,9
585,199

)699,214(
821,985

175,568
-

547,982,11

165,130,23

640,112,11

)364,141(
551,72
700,391
547,982,11raeytnerrucehtrofegrahcxaT
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29.2 The income tax returns of Habib Bank Limited have been submitted upto and including the bank’s financial year 2010. The
tax authorities have concluded the audit of years 2002 through 2010. 

 
While amending the assessment under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2006 the tax
authorities have disallowed double income tax relief relating to Azad Jammu & Kashmir (AJK) branches amounting to
Rs. 2,923 million. 

 
Management’s view is that the settlement reached, after deliberations by the technical committee formed by the Prime 
Minister and Chairman AJ&K Council, relates to the long outstanding issue of basis of computation of income in AJK. The
foreign tax credit claimed by the bank is in accordance with accounting practice and the law.

Appeal against this issue is pending at appellate stage. Although the bank has made payment of tax assessed, under
protest, no provision has been made in the financial statements for the above liability, as the management is confident 
that the eventual outcome of this issue will be in the favor of the bank. 

 
Through Finance Act, 2010 certain amendments were introduced in Seventh Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The provision for advances & off balance sheet items will now be allowed at 5% of total gross advances for consumer and
SMEs (as defined in SBP prudential Regulation). The provision for advances and off balance sheet items other than those
falling in definition of consumer & SMEs will be allowed upto 1% of such total gross advances.

As per Rule 8(A) of the Seventh Schedule, amounts provided for in tax year 2008 (December 2007) and prior to said tax 
year for doubtful debts, which were neither claimed nor allowed as tax deductible in any year shall be allowed as
deduction in tax year in which such doubtful debts are written off.

With reference to allowability of provision, the management has carried out an exercise at period end and concluded that
full deduction of provision in succeeding years would be allowed and accordingly recognized  deferred tax asset on such
provision amounting to Rs. 2.127 billion. 

 
222000111111 222000111000

30. BBBAAASSSIIICCC AAANNNDDD DDDIIILLLUUUTTTEEEDDD EEEAAARRRNNNIIINNNGGGSSS PPPEEERRR SSSHHHAAARRREEE (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of  450,316,51618,147,02knaBeht

(((NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr)))

000,860,201,1000,860,201,1serahsyranidroforebmunegarevadethgieW

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss)))

71.4128.81erahsrepsgninraedetuliddnacisaB

31. CCCAAASSSHHH AAANNNDDD CCCAAASSSHHH EEEQQQUUUIIIVVVAAALLLEEENNNTTTSSS NNNooottteee (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

388,615,18670,080,3015sknabyrusaerthtiwecnalabdnahsaC
103,099,53908,589,436sknabrehtohtiwecnalaB
481,705,711588,560,831

32. SSSTTTAAAFFFFFF SSSTTTRRREEENNNGGGTTTHHH (((NNNuuummmbbbeeerrr)))

Permanent  13,476 13,154
Others  19  18 
 Total staff strength  13,495   13,172

33. DDDEEEFFFIIINNNEEEDDD BBBEEENNNEEEFFFIIITTT PPPLLLAAANNNSSS AAANNNDDD OOOTTTHHHEEERRR BBBEEENNNEEEFFFIIITTTSSS

33.1 PPPrrriiinnnccciiipppaaalll aaaccctttuuuaaarrriiiaaalll aaassssssuuummmppptttiiiooonnnsss

The latest actuarial valuation for pension and gratuity schemes was carried out as at December 31, 2011 using the 
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method and assuming that no indexation of pension will take place. The following
significant assumptions were used for the valuation of these schemes: 

 
222000111111 222000111000

---------------------------PPPeeerrr aaannnnnnuuummm---------------------------

%31%31etartnuocsidnoitaulaV
%11%11levelyralasniesaercnifoetardetcepxE
%31%31detsevnisdnufnonruterfoetardetcepxE
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PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt PPPooosssttt---eeemmmpppllloooyyymmmeeennnttt
mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt PPPooosssttt---eeemmmpppllloooyyymmmeeennnttt
mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Charge for the year is included in administrative expenses (note 26 to the financial statements) under 'Charge for defined benefit plans
and other benefits' account head. A sensitivity analysis to estimate the impact of increase in medical costs has not been carried out and 
is not likely to have a material impact on Bank's financial statements.

33.2.2.1 It represents net impact of actuarial (gain) / loss, past service cost recognized in current period.
 
33.2.3 MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt iiinnn aaammmooouuunnntttsss

(((rrreeeccceeeiiivvvaaabbbllleee fffrrrooommm))) /// pppaaayyyaaabbbllleee
tttooo dddeeefffiiinnneeeddd bbbeeennneeefffiiittt ppplllaaannnsss

PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt PPPooosssttt---eeemmmpppllloooyyymmmeeennnttt
mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

.seitirucestbedfosesirpmocstessaehtfonoitroptnacifingisehT4.2.33

33.2.5 MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt ooofff ppprrreeessseeennnttt vvvaaallluuueee ooofff dddeeefffiiinnneeeddd bbbeeennneeefffiiittt ooobbbllliiigggaaatttiiiooonnn

PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt
PPPooosssttt---eeemmmpppllloooyyymmmeeennnttt
mmmeeedddiiicccaaalll bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss

222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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33.2.6 MMMooovvveeemmmeeennnttt ooofff fffaaaiiirrr vvvaaallluuueee ooofff ppplllaaannn aaasssssseeetttsss
PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt

222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

33.2.7 AAAccctttuuuaaalll rrreeetttuuurrrnnn ooonnn ppplllaaannn aaasssssseeetttsss PPPeeennnsssiiiooonnn GGGrrraaatttuuuiiitttyyy BBBeeennneeevvvooollleeennnttt
222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

33.2.8 OOOttthhheeerrr bbbeeennneeefffiiitttsss --- EEEmmmpppllloooyyyeeeeee cccooommmpppeeennnsssaaattteeeddd aaabbbssseeennnccceeesss

The liability of the Bank in respect of employee compensated absences as at December 31, 2011, amounted to Rs. 1,720.577  million 
(2010: Rs. 1,591.125 million). Provision for this balance is held by Bank.

The charge for the year amounting to Rs. 191.602 million (2010: Rs. 137.943 million) is included in administrative expenses (note 26 to
these financial statements) under 'Charge for defined benefit plans and other benefits' account head. 

 
34. DDDEEEFFFIIINNNEEEDDD CCCOOONNNTTTRRRIIIBBBUUUTTTIIIOOONNN PPPLLLAAANNN

34.1 PPPrrrooovvviiidddeeennnttt FFFuuunnnddd

For employees hired on or after January 1, 2002 and for those who did not opt for the Bank’s Pension scheme introduced in 1977, the 
bank operates an approved Provident Fund under which both the Bank and employees contribute at following rates: 

 
sreciffO&sevitucexEroFyralaScisaBehtfo%6

12% of the Basic Salary For Clerical Staff
.stcartnoCecivreSriehtrepsaseeyolpmElautcartnoCroF

The staff who are covered by the Bank’s Pension plan now also eligible for Provident fund benefits effective from April 04, 2005 by 
contributing 6% of the basic pay. Bank also makes equal contributions for these employees. 

 
Payments are made to the employees on retirement, death, resignation and discharge as specified in the rules of the Fund.

The total assets of the Fund were Rs. 8,410.249 million as at December 31, 2009 (2008: Rs. 7,682.228 million) as per latest available
audited financial statements. 

 
35. RRREEEMMMUUUNNNEEERRRAAATTTIIIOOONNN OOOFFF DDDIIIRRREEECCCTTTOOORRRSSS AAANNNDDD EEEXXXEEECCCUUUTTTIIIVVVEEESSS

PPPrrreeesssiiidddeeennnttt DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss EEExxxeeecccuuutttiiivvveeesss
222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The Chief Executive Officer and certain Executives are provided with free club memberships and the Chairman / Chief Executive Officer
are also provided with free use of the Bank's maintained cars in accordance with their entitlement.

In addition to the above, all executives, including Chief Executive Officer of the Bank are also entitled to certain short term employee 
benefits which are disclosed in note 26.2 to these financial statements. 

 



36. RRREEELLLAAATTTEEEDDD PPPAAARRRTTTYYY TTTRRRAAANNNSSSAAACCCTTTIIIOOONNNSSS

Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development S.A Switzerland holds 51% shares of the Bank. The bank has related party relationship with its 
subsidiaries, associated undertakings, joint venture company (refer note 8.5 and 8.6), associates of AKFED Group entities, employee
benefit schemes (refer note 4.8) of the Bank / related party, and members of the Key Management Personnel of the Bank / related party,
including both Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 

 
Banking transactions with the related parties are executed substantially on the same terms, including mark-up rates and collateral, as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and do not involve more than normal risk (i.e. under the 
comparable uncontrolled price method) other than those under terms of employment. Details of loans and advances to related parties
are given in note 9.9 to these financial statements.

Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement and other benefits schemes are made in accordance with the actuarial
valuation / terms of the contribution plan.

Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them as at the year-end were as follows: 
 

222000111111
IIInnndddiiivvviiiddduuuaaalll aaannnddd cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss rrreeelllaaattteeeddd ttthhhrrrooouuuggghhh

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss
KKKeeeyyy

MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt
PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

PPPaaarrreeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp
EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss

SSSuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrryyy
cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss

JJJoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee aaannnddd
aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------RRRsss... iiinnn 000000000------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee SSShhheeeeeettt
9,2254,601219,966stisopeD 58,027 554,076 4,768,646

-982,323---sgniworroB
970,231,4656,855,9-311,43300,915stnemtsevnI
922,871515,9-604,174196,66elbavieceRrehtO/pukraM

3,41elbayaPrehtO/pu-kraM 28 2,124 163,994 1,810 109,943
-948,866,21829,263-010,003sgnidneL/stnemecalP

655,974858,25433,226-029,71ortsoNnwardrevO
162,375----noisivorptnemriapmI

PPPrrrooofffiiittt aaannnddd LLLooossssss
175,638317,803663,02463,685529,822emocnIrehtO/tseretnI
845,182240,32901,751055,7560,293esnepxErehtO/tseretnI
604,601--397,42050,3emocnidnediviD

OOOttthhheeerrrsss
--440,301224,26832,461seicnegnitnocrehtO

008,231,92000,549055,517,3037,29007,35naidotsucsadleHseitiruceS
-512,42---ecnatpeccA

222000111000
IIInnndddiiivvviiiddduuuaaalll aaannnddd cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss rrreeelllaaattteeeddd ttthhhrrrooouuuggghhh

DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss
KKKeeeyyy

MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt
PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

PPPaaarrreeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp
EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss

SSSuuubbbsssiiidddiiiaaarrryyy
cccooommmpppaaannniiieeesss

JJJoooiiinnnttt vvveeennntttuuurrreee aaannnddd
aaassssssoooccciiiaaattteeesss

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------RRRsss... iiinnn 000000000------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BBBaaalllaaannnccceee SSShhheeeeeettt
229,893,3661,087633,158,1744,521184,799,2stisopeD

-----sgniworroB
898,529,2564,014,8-316,82270,816stnemtsevnI

-601,41-535,9380,62elbavieceRrehtO/pukraM
978,702812,3308,47307140,23elbayaPrehtO/pu-kraM

-928,690,11372,171-588,188sgnidneL/stnemecalP
107,609)402,871(409,582--ortsoNnwardrevO
021,656,2----noisivorptnemriapmI

PPPrrrooofffiiittt aaannnddd LLLooossssss
623,945452,725,132953,501,1864,551emocnIrehtO/tseretnI
180,26273,274734,531156,3348,672esnepxErehtO/tseretnI
737,58--922,92005,5emocnidnediviD

OOOttthhheeerrrsss
--012,85-693,486seicnegnitnocrehtO

014,860,41000,547004,592,3056,46007,35naidotsucsadleHseitiruceS
-----ecnatpeccA
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36.1 The donations given in note 26 of these financial statements include donations to HBL Foundation. The Foundation was formed to 
promote development and advance the welfare and well being of the people with the object of improving their quality of life. 

 
36.2 KKKeeeyyy MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt PPPeeerrrsssooonnnnnneeelll

Key Management Personnel comprises Members of Management Forum, Regional Management, Country Managers and Senior Executives:
 

222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

Managerial remuneration (includi 850,738)secnawollagn
986,71dnuftnelovenebdnatnedivorpotnoitubirtnoC
297,52lacideM
935,088

931snosrepforebmuN

298,309
333,91
522,92
054,259

741

In addition, Key Management Personnel are paid short-term employee benefits which are disclosed in note 26.2. 
 

36.3 The comparative figures have been re-arranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.

37. RRRIIISSSKKK MMMAAANNNAAAGGGEEEMMMEEENNNTTT FFFRRRAAAMMMEEEWWWOOORRRKKK

Risk taking is central to banking activity. Success in any venture in general and the banking business in particular is dependent on how well
an institution manages its risk. The main goal is to minimize risk and be proactive in efficiently identifying, assessing, measuring (as far as 
possible), monitoring and controlling risks to an organisation’s strategic advantage.

As HBL plans to continue diversifying its business and ensuring sustained growth and profitability amidst increasing competitiveness and 
challenges in the banking industry and works to implement the comprehensive risk management, capital adequacy and internal control 
standards enforced by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). To this end, the Bank has a well defined Risk Management Framework comprising 
of an effective risk management strategy, risk management structure and a policy framework.

RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt SSStttrrruuuccctttuuurrreee

The Bank’s risk management approach is underpinned by an appropriate risk management structure. This structure is represented by 
various lines of defence in order to ensure that the risks are managed effectively on an entity level:

Supervisory Level Board of Directors Board Risk Management Committee and Board Audit Committee

Management ALCO, Management Risk Committee, Credit Policy Committee, Operational 
Risk Management Committee etc.  

Risk Initiation - Operating Units/ Risk Owners All Business and Support Groups i.e. Corporate, Investment Banking,
Commercial, Retail, Treasury, IT, HR, etc.  

ecnailpmoC,puorGtnemeganaMksiRlortnoCksiR
Risk Assurance  Internal Audit and Business Risk Review

BBBoooaaarrrddd ooofff DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss (((BBBoooDDD)))

The Board provides strategic direction for effective risk management and has the ultimate responsibility for managing all material risks
that the Bank is/ may be exposed to, and for ensuring that the required human resources, culture, practices and systems are in place to 
address such risks. In discharging these responsibilities for overall risk management, the Board has established the Board Risk
Management Committee.

BBBoooaaarrrddd RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((BBBRRRMMMCCC)))

BRMC is a Board level oversight committee and is the highest risk related policy making and oversight body for all types of risks faced by 
the Bank, notably credit, market, liquidity and operational risks. It comprises of four directors of the Board (majority being non-executive)
including the Chairman of the Board. The Committee is supported by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and other executives as required. BRMC 
assists the Board in determining the strategic direction of the Bank by providing them the risk perspective.

AAAsssssseeettt &&& LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttyyy CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((AAALLLCCCOOO)))

ALCO is the focal point for defining and leading the entire asset liability management process within the Bank. In this regard, ALCO also
has responsibility for oversight of all market and liquidity risks. It is chaired by the President/CEO and has representation from all business
groups, CRO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and Head of Market Risk.

MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt RRRiiissskkk CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((MMMRRRCCC)))

Management Risk Committee is a senior management body headed by the CRO that mainly covers risks on integrated basis from an 
overall perspective of strategy, policy/ framework development, assessment/ measurement tools, MIS framework and Basel II 
implementation, whereas routine aspects in relation to such risks are managed by designated risk departments. In addition, the Bank has 
other senior management committees i.e., CPC, ALCO and ORMC to manage more specifically the credit, market and liquidity and 
operational risks respectively. 
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CCCrrreeedddiiittt PPPooollliiicccyyy CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((CCCPPPCCC)))

Credit Policy Committee, at the functional level, has the responsibility to translate the decisions about strategy into framework, policies
and standards for the origination, approval, disbursement, monitoring and reporting of credits and also to participate with the business 
line management in setting up the Bank's target portfolio profile and limits and in monitoring alignment with the risk strategies, appetite
and limits etc. approved by the competent authorities. The CPC is chaired by the CRO with the members comprising of at least one Senior
Credit Officer from Corporate Banking, Investment Banking, Commercial and Retail Lending and at least one representative each from the
Credit Policy and Credit Administration Divisions within RMG.  - The risk management function is independent of business group /
divisions. 

 
OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnaaalll RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt CCCooommmmmmiiitttttteeeeee (((OOORRRMMMCCC)))

Operational Risk Management Committee is a senior management body responsible for operational risk management within the Bank
both from the strategic as well as tactical perspectives. The Committee has representation from Risk Management Group, Operations,
Global Compliance Group and Finance, being headed by the CRO as its Chairman.  

 
RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt GGGrrrooouuuppp (((RRRMMMGGG)))

For effective implementation of the risk management framework, a dedicated function i.e. Risk Management Group operates within the 
Bank, independent from the other business units, support functions as well as the Internal Audit function. RMG is responsible to perform
the functions pertaining to development and oversight of risk strategy, policy, framework, methodology and MIS. The Group is headed by 
a designated Group Executive i.e. CRO reporting to the President but with an independent reporting line to BRMC so as to enable
reporting of all material risk issues and matters, particularly in relation to exceptional circumstances where there may be a conflict/ 
disagreement with the President.  
 
RMG has designated separate personnel/departments to cater to the following significant areas with each of them reporting to the CRO: 
 
- Credit Policy
- Credit Approvals 
- Credit Administration
- Portfolio Management
- Consumer Risk Management 
- Market & Liquidity Risk Management

The Operational Risk Management Division (ORMD) operates within Global Compliance Group (GCG) independent from the other 
business units, support functions as well as the Internal Audit function. The Head ORMD is one of the members of the Operational Risk
Committee which is chaired by the CRO. In this manner, issues and matters concerning operational risk are independently communicated
to CRO so as to enable knowledge of the Bank-wide risks. The key issues are reported to BRMC through the forum of the Operational Risk 
Committee and/ or MRC, where applicable. In addition, the Head ORMD has a dotted reporting relationship with the CRO. 

 )RRB(weiveRksiRssenisuB&tiduAlanretnI

BRR and Internal Audit provide independent assessment to the Board and the senior management of the Bank’s risk management
framework that includes policies, procedures, methodologies, reporting, and systems. 
 
CCCrrreeedddiiittt RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a borrower to meet its credit obligations in accordance with the agreed contract terms. 
Credit risk makes up the largest part of the Bank’s risk exposures. The Bank’s credit process is guided by centrally established credit 
policies, rules and guidelines continuing a close-to-the market approach with an aim to maintain a well-diversified portfolio of credit risk,
which produces a reliable and consistent return.

Credit risk policies are established by the Credit Policy Committee/ CRO and approved by the Board through the Board Risk Management
Committee. The Bank has a system of checks and balances in place around the extension of credit that are: 
 - An independent risk management function.  
 - Approval rules based on three-initial system and co-guarantor approach.  
 - An independent audit and risk review function. 
 
The Credit Risk Strategy reflects Bank’s tolerance for risk i.e. credit risk appetite and the level of expected profitability. This, as a
minimum, reflects Bank’s strategy to grant credit based on various products, economic sectors, client segments etc., target markets giving 
due consideration to risks specific to each target market.

Salient features of our credit approval process are delineated below:
- Every extension of credit to any counterparty requires approval by the personnel having credit approval authorities. 

 - All Business groups must apply consistent standards in arriving at their credit decisions. 
 - Every material change to a credit facility requires approval at the appropriate/ pre-defined level. 
 - Credit approval authority is assigned to individuals according to their qualifications and experience. 
 
Certain groups of exposures/ facilities are managed under product programs, which are approved by various levels of approving
authorities as defined in the Credit Policy Manual. Each product program contains detailed credit criteria, regulatory, compliance and
documentation requirements. 
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The Bank uses internal risk rating system to supplement the credit risk measurement procedure for all Corporate and Commercial, and 
most of the Retail exposures. All in all, over 90% of all exposures are rated. All obligor risk ratings are validated and approved by
authorized personnel belonging to both the business units and risk management function. The Bank is currently involved with external 
consultants to introduce more effective internal risk rating framework that will be aligned with the Foundation Internal Ratings Based 
(FIRB) approach of the Basel II accord.

Stress testing on the credit portfolio is performed according to the guidelines issued by SBP at defined frequency

The disbursement, administration and monitoring of credit facilities are managed by Credit Administration Departments (CAD) linked to 
various business units and operates under the CRO as part of the Risk Management Group. CAD is also responsible for collateral/
documents management. 
 
The Bank monitors its credit portfolio on continuing basis. Procedures are in place to identify, at an early stage, credit exposures for which
there may be a risk of loss. The objective of an early warning system is to address potential problems while various options may still be
available. Early detection of problem loans is a tenet of the Bank’s credit culture and is intended to ensure that greater attention is paid to 
such exposure. The Bank has an established Remedial Assets function to focus on expediting recoveries from problem credits. The 
function negotiates with problem borrowers and recommends restructuring and/ or rescheduling of stuck up loans to the senior
management. Cases where the possibilities of economically viable means of recovery are exhausted, legal proceedings are initiated. The 
Bank follows the guidelines of SBP or the Regulators under which it is operating in other countries for classification/ provisioning/ write-
off of problem loans. 
 
CCCooouuunnntttrrryyy RRRiiissskkk

The Bank has in place a comprehensive Country Risk Policy. Limits are established for Cross Border Transfer Risk (CBTR) based on the
ratings assigned by the internationally recognized rating agencies. The limit utilization is controlled at Head office level and country risk 
exposures are reported to Board Risk Management Committee at defined frequency. CBTR arises from exposure to counterparties in 
Countries other than the country where exposure is located. The Bank defines transfer risk as arising where an otherwise solvent and 
willing debtor is unable to meet it’s obligation due to the imposition of governmental or regulatory controls restricting its ability to
perform under its obligation towards its foreign liabilities.

MMMaaarrrkkkeeettt RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

It is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in market rates or prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. It 
emanates from the trading activities mainly carried out by Treasury and investments/ structural positions housed in banking book. 
 
Market risk at the Bank level is managed by the Risk Management Group under the supervision of ALCO supported by the Treasury Middle 
Office (TMO). The Bank carries a limited amount of market risk the bulk of which is located in the banking book stemming from the 
mismatches in structural assets and liabilities positions. 

 
IIInnnttteeerrreeesssttt RRRaaattteee RRRiiissskkk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment's value will change due to a change in the absolute level of interest rates i.e. the 
spread between two rates, in the shape of the yield curve, or in any other interest rate relationship. Substantial part of the Bank’s 
assets and liabilities are subject to floating rates hence are re-priced simultaneously. However, the Bank is exposed to interest rate 
risk as a result of mismatches on a relatively small part of its assets and liabilities. The major portion related to this risk is reflected in 
the banking book owing to the retail activities and investments qualifying for statutory reserve requirements. The overall potential 
impact of the mismatches on the earnings in short term and economic value of the portfolio in the long term is not material and is
being managed with in the tolerance limits approved by the Board. The Bank uses simulation and duration gap models to measure
and monitor the interest rate sensitivity on the potential earnings and the Bank’s economic value of equity.

FFFooorrreeeiiigggnnn EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee RRRiiissskkk

The Bank’s assets are typically funded in the same currency as that of the business transacted to eliminate foreign exchange 
exposure. However, the Bank is obliged to maintain a reasonable open position in various currencies resulting from the sizeable trade 
related transactions handled across the Bank. Foreign exchange risks are controlled and monitored through the limits approved by 
ALCO within the overall limit advised by SBP. The regulatory limit for foreign exchange is relatively small compared to the size of 
the Bank; hence, the risk generated through foreign exchange activities is insignificant.

End-of-the-day positions are marked to market daily according to the guidelines of SBP and sensitivity is conducted in line with the 
internal market risk policy of the Bank. The intra- day positions are managed by treasury through stop loss/ dealers limits.  

 
LLLiiiqqquuuiiidddiiitttyyy RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its cash flow obligations as they become due, because of an inability to 
liquidate assets, or to obtain adequate funding. ALCO has the responsibility for the formulation of overall strategy and oversight of the 
asset liability management. The Bank follows a comprehensive liquidity risk management policy duly approved by ALCO and the Board. 
The policy stipulates maintenance of various ratios, funding preferences, and evaluation of Bank’s liquidity under normal and crisis 
situation (stress testing). To comply with the policy, the Bank has also conducted a behavioral study on its demand deposits to evaluate 
their stickiness, which may not reflect in their maturity profile. Such evaluation forms part of the liquidity management process to
realistically project the reliance on such funding sources. As a result of close monitoring and strict policy towards reliance on core deposit, 
the Bank has been able to avoid concentration/ reliance on volatile deposit in its books. A comprehensive contingency plan to deal with 
crisis situation is also in place.
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OOOpppeeerrraaatttiiiooonnnaaalll RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt (((OOORRRMMM)))

In line with the approved Operational Risk Management Policy, Bank has instituted an Operational Risk Management Division (ORMD). 
Operational Risk Management Policy and a detailed ORM Framework has been prepared and implemented. Operational Risk Coordinators 
(ORCs) have been assigned from more than 20 departments of the Bank being responsible for implementation of the ORM Framework in 
coordination with ORMD. The Bank has been granted permission/certification by SBP to move to the more advanced approach i.e,
Alternative Standardised Approach (ASA) under Basel II with a capital floor i.e., operational risk charge under ASA should not fall below a
certain percentage of operational risk capital charge calculated under BIA for initial 3 years . Capital floors are 2011-2012 90%, 2013 80%, 
and 2014 70%. HBL is the first Pakistani bank to achieve this milestone.

The Bank’s ORM framework and practices address all the significant areas of ORM within the Bank including Risk Control Self Assessment
(RCSA), Key Risk Indicators, Operational Loss Data Management, Operational Risk Reporting, Capital Calculation etc. Detailed RCSA
exercises are conducted at regular intervals across the Bank, the results of which are continually evaluated against the losses. Operational 
loss data collection and evaluation has been underway since 2009. The Bank has also established Key Risk Indicators (KRI) and is 
monitoring them at regular intervals. Operational risk reports are regularly submitted to the senior management.

RRRiiissskkk MMMaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt aaallliiigggnnnmmmeeennnttt wwwiiittthhh BBBaaassseeelll IIIIII ppprrrooojjjeeecccttt

The Bank is one of the few financial institutions in Pakistan planning to adopt the Foundation Internal Ratings Based (FIRB) Approach for 
credit risk and Internal Models Approach (IMA) for Market Risk (Alternate Standardized Approach for operational risk has already been
adopted) under the Basel II Framework and consequently enhancing the quality of risk management processes, methodologies, systems 
and reporting. In order to undertake the Basel II initiatives in a systematic manner and in full compliance with the related requirements, 
the Bank has sought the services of an international firm. Bank's Basel II Program includes a number of aspects involving organizational 
alignments, enhancements in the existing policies, procedures, processes and controls, development of new risk frameworks, existing 
system upgrades, selection and deployment of various risk applications, development of advanced risk management tools and 
methodologies and introduction of improved risk reporting MIS. A lot of effort has already gone into aligning Bank’s risk management 
structure, policies, procedures and systems with the requirements of Basel II while the remaining initiatives are currently being 
undertaken in an integrated manner with plans for completion in due course.  
 
The Bank also realizes the criticality of quality human resource and is already in the process of augmenting the skill set by necessary 
induction and training measures to enable undertaking of planned initiatives and consistently implementing the new risk management
framework in line with Basel II. Once completed, the Bank expects to achieve a number of significant business benefits from its Basel II 
program with more robust risk management and internal control environment in line with international best practices. 
 
During the year, the Bank has embarked upon deployment of a comprehensive suite of advanced systems for Loan Origination, Credit
Administration/ Collateral Management, and Internal Risk Ratings as part of FIRB related initiatives for credit risk.

38. CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL AAADDDEEEQQQUUUAAACCCYYY

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank's guidelines on capital adequacy was as follows:-

38.1 RRReeeggguuulllaaatttooorrryyy CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll BBBaaassseee 222000111111 222000111000
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

TTTiiieeerrr 111 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll
111...111 008,810,01latipacpu-diaPylluF
111...222 829,388,91teehSecnalaBehtnodesolcsidsasevreseRlareneG
111...333 Un-appropriated / un-remitted profits (net of ac 301,121,44)ynafi,sessoldetalumuc

138,320,47
DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnnsss:::

111...444 543,44selbignatnifoeulavkooB
111...555 )tnuomaehtfo%05(snoitcudedrehtO

Investments in equity and other regulatory capital of majority owned securities  
or other financial subsidiaries not consol 192,829,2teehsecnalabehtnidetadi

636,279,2

TTToootttaaalll eeellliiigggiiibbbllleee TTTiiieeerrr 111 cccaaapppiiitttaaalll 591,150,17
SSSuuuppppppllleeemmmeeennntttaaarrryyy CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll
TTTiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll
222...111 mumixamotpu-sessolnaolrofsevreserlarenegrosnoisivorPlareneG

868,083,1stessAdethgieWksiRfo%52.1fo
222...222 226,546,3%54otpusevreseRnoitaulaveR
222...333 588,787,7sevreseRnoitalsnarTegnahcxEngieroF
222...444 101,965,2latipac1reiTelbigilelatoTfo%05fomumixamotpu-tbeddetanidrobuS

TTToootttaaalll tttiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll 674,383,51

DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnnsss:::
222...555 )2PACnodetaluclacsatnuomaehtfo%05(snoitcudedrehtO

or other financial subsidiaries not cons 192,829,2teehsecnalabehtnidetadilo
192,829,2

TTToootttaaalll eeellliiigggiiibbbllleee TTTiiieeerrr 222 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll 581,554,21

TTToootttaaalll EEEllliiigggiiibbbllleee CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll (((111+++222))) 083,605,38

086,020,11
011,859,12
646,822,25
634,702,58

864,772

344,316,3
119,098,3

525,613,18

016,808
478,878,3
685,542,8
419,897,1
489,137,41

344,316,3
344,316,3
145,811,11

660,534,29
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38.2 RRRiiissskkk---WWWeeeiiiggghhhttteeeddd EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll RRReeeqqquuuiiirrreeemmmeeennntttsss RRRiiissskkk WWWeeeiiiggghhhttteeeddd AAAsssssseeetttsss
NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000 222000111111 222000111000

CCCrrreeedddiiittt RRRiiissskkk ------------------------------------------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------------
nosmialC

CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll aaadddeeeqqquuuaaacccyyy rrraaatttiiiooo

TTToootttaaalll eeellliiigggiiibbbllleee rrreeeggguuulllaaatttooorrryyy cccaaapppiiitttaaalll hhheeelllddd 38.1 92,435,066 83,506,380  
 

TTToootttaaalll rrriiissskkk wwweeeiiiggghhhttteeeddd aaasssssseeetttsss 38.2 610,077,214 608,474,200  
 

CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll aaadddeeeqqquuuaaacccyyy rrraaatttiiiooo 111555...111555%%% 1133..7722%%

38.3 TTTyyypppeeesss ooofff EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss aaannnddd EEECCCAAAIII'''sss uuussseeeddd

EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss JJJCCCRRR---VVVIIISSS PPPAAACCCRRRAAA MMMOOOOOODDDYYYsss SSSTTTAAANNNDDDAAARRRDDD
&&& PPPOOOOOORRR

EEECCCAAA SSSCCCOOORRREEESSS

s'ESP
sknaB

Corporates   
Sovereigns and GOP other than PKR

38.4 CCCrrreeedddiiittt EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss sssuuubbbjjjeeecccttt tttooo SSStttaaannndddaaarrrdddiiissseeeddd aaapppppprrroooaaaccchhh

222000111111 222000111000
EEExxxpppooosssuuurrreeesss RRRaaatttiiinnnggg AAAmmmooouuunnnttt DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnn NNNeeettt AAAmmmooouuunnnttt DDDeeeddduuuccctttiiiooonnn NNNeeettt

CCCaaattteeegggooorrryyy OOOuuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg CCCRRRMMM eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee OOOuuutttssstttaaannndddiiinnnggg CCCRRRMMM eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee
---------------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))------------------------------------------------ ---------------------------------(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------

--



38.5 CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll mmmaaannnaaagggeeemmmeeennnttt

The Bank’s lead regulator State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as  a whole. In addition the Bank's 
branches outside Pakistan are also required to follow capital requirements applicable in respective countries.

In implementing current capital requirements, SBP requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed ratio of 10% total capital to total risk-
weighted assets. The Bank calculates requirements for market risk in its trading portfolios based upon the methodology provided by SBP 
which takes account of specific and general market risk, capital charge for interest rate risk and equity price risk using the maturity method.  

 
:sreiteerhtotnidesylanasilatipacyrotalugers’knaBehT

- Tier I capital, which includes ordinary share capital, capital and other reserves except exchange translation reserve, minority interest, and
retained profit.  

 
- Tier II capital includes revaluation surplus, exchange translation reserve, subordinated debt and impairment allowances not kept against 

identified debts. The revaluation surplus is allowable as tier II capital upto 45% of the reserve. Subordinated debt is limited to 50% of 
Tier I capital.

- Tier III supplementary capital consists of short term subordinated debt solely for the purpose of meeting a proportion of the Capital
requirements for market risks. The bank currently does not have any Tier III capital. 

 
.latipacIreiTotdetimilsilatipacIIIdnaIIreiTfolatoT

Banking operations are categorised as either trading book or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified 
requirements that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. 

 
The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business.  

 
The Bank and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year.

 
On and off-balance sheet assets in the banking book are broken down to various asset classes for calculation of credit risk. Ratings for assets 
are applied using various ECAI's and aligned with appropriate risk buckets. Collaterals if any, are used as an outflow adjustment. Risk weights
notified, are applied at net adjusted exposure. Collaterals used include: Government of Pakistan guarantees for advances and investments in 
PSE / GoP, deposits / margins, lien on deposits, saving certificates and lending of securities (repo & reverse repo).

39. CCCUUURRRRRREEENNNCCCYYY RRRIIISSSKKK 222000111111
AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss OOOffffff---bbbaaalllaaannnccceee NNNeeettt

ssshhheeeeeettt iiittteeemmmsss cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy
eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee

------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

988,479,36)729,754,21(113,972,957721,217,538eepuRnatsikaP
800,310,5611,853,5612,314,49801,860,49ralloDsetatSdetinU
677,461,2988,817,3498,510,01187,164,8dnuoPniatirBtaerG
088,983,8969,109,3277,036,62386,811,13mahriDEAU
854,9)617,121(550,1922,231neYesenapaJ
859,286,2)545,032(816,489,21121,898,51oruE
126,912,91)687,861(291,470,95995,264,87seicnerruCrehtO
095,454,101-850,993,269846,358,360,1

222000111000
AAAsssssseeetttsss LLLiiiaaabbbiiillliiitttiiieeesss OOOffffff---bbbaaalllaaannnccceee NNNeeettt

ssshhheeeeeettt iiittteeemmmsss cccuuurrrrrreeennncccyyy
eeexxxpppooosssuuurrreee

------------------------------------------------------------ (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

931,528,35896,283,8585,430,826620,774,376eepuRnatsikaP
)953,343()077,145,11(571,181,37685,973,48ralloDsetatSdetinU
651,610,2272,615,1774,480,9163,485,9dnuoPniatirBtaerG
432,430,8639,528,2849,117,32642,029,82mahriDEAU
)715,92()989,852(201,08475,903neYesenapaJ
323,734,2566,845091,048,31848,827,51oruE
367,485,32)218,274,1(591,595,94077,256,47seicnerruCrehtO
937,425,98-276,725,797114,250,788
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The maturity and repricing profile and effective rates are stated in notes 40 and 41 respectively.     
 

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short-term in nature or in the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently repriced.

43. CCCOOONNNCCCEEENNNTTTRRRAAATTTIIIOOONNN OOOFFF CCCRRREEEDDDIIITTT AAANNNDDD DDDEEEPPPOOOSSSIIITTTSSS

43.1 CCCooonnnccceeennntttrrraaatttiiiooonnn ooofff cccrrreeedddiiittt rrriiissskkk

Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 1,016,104.345 million, financial assets which were subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 999,257.478
million. The Bank's major credit risk is concentrated in the textile sector.

The following financial assets are guaranteed by the Federal / overseas Governments or State Bank of Pakistan / other Central Banks and
enterprises owned / controlled by the Government:

222000111111
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

GGGuuuaaarrraaannnttteeeeeeddd bbbyyy ttthhheee GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt ooofff PPPaaakkkiiissstttaaannn
stnemtsevnI

secnavdadnasnaoL
elbaviecerpu-kraM

FFFiiinnnaaannnccciiiaaalll aaasssssseeetttsss rrreeeccceeeiiivvvaaabbbllleee fffrrrooommm eeennnttteeerrrppprrriiissseeesss ooowwwnnneeeddd /// cccooonnntttrrrooolllllleeeddd bbbyyy GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt
secnavdadnasnaoL

natsikaPfoknaBetatSmorfelbaviecerstessalaicnaniF
natsikaPfoknaBlanoitaNmorfelbaviecerstessalaicnaniF

elbaviecerpu-kraM

stnemnrevoGsaesrevOybdeetnarauG
sknablartnecrehtomorfelbaviecerstessalaicnaniF

362,782,553
060,821,13
740,405,3
073,919,983

979,142,24
382,604,74
126,476,41
155,001
434,324,401

079,274,21
641,842,72
029,360,435

43.2 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt bbbyyy ccclllaaassssss ooofff bbbuuusssiiinnneeessssss

222000111111

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss
CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt



222000111000

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss
CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

Chemical and pharmaceuticals 24,517,638 5.18 5,744,531 0.80  7,704,472 4.51
00.1049,517,189.0567,390,738.6079,033,23ssenisubirgA
35.9074,272,6185.0715,271,456.71671,165,38elitxeT
11.1252,888,150.0258,48380.3220,065,41tnemeC
96.0454,381,180.0918,97536.0135,299,2raguS
91.0964,52321.0772,78884.0771,672,2stnemragrehtaeldnaseohS

Automobile and transportation equipment 7,393,736 1.56 2,352,831 0.33  2,891,860 1.69
83.32709,629,9316.0611,424,424.3078,691,61laicnaniF

-23372.0817,219,171.0249,518ecnarusnI
Electronics and electrical appliances 13,673,347 2.89 5,638,670 0.78  2,386,675 1.40
Production and transmission of energy 49,557,161 10.47 10,893,967 1.51 12,363,888 7.24

93.0589,27635.0507,497,373.0667,757,1lacideM&noitacudE
79.0811,556,117.0945,321,527.3474,816,71noitacinummoceleT
54.0268,47720.0557,45107.0994,103,3gnihsilbup&gnitnirP
03.0880,80562.0126,778,106.0794,928,2noitcurtsnoC

-318,110.0408,4860.0691,762gniyrrauq&gniniM
75.1250,086,241.0987,920,125.1208,602,7segarevebdnaoccabot,dooF

Public / Government - note 43.2.1 85,840,591 18.13 107,912,401 14.97  52,979,203 31.03
22.4420,412,783.5076,877,8380.9831,179,24edartliater&elaselohW
38.0965,214,121.0638,93847.1654,442,8deilladnalateM
81.0622,00398.06720,170,93446.6118,814,13laudividnI
01.0002,37170.0137,68482.0478,903,1yriaddnaelttac,gnimraF

Trust funds and non profit organization 1,325,141 0.28 16,967,757 2.35  7,633        -
22.9622,717,5144.8924,268,0625.4369,054,12srehtO
00.001817,657,07100.001731,960,12700.001877,714,374

43.2.1 PPPuuubbbllliiiccc /// GGGooovvveeerrrnnnmmmeeennnttt ssseeeccctttooorrr
222000111111

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss
CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt
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222000111000

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss
CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

Chemical and pharmaceuticals - - 408,599 0.38   - -
67.3554,989,125.1311,346,191.46591,101,55ssenisubirgA

---79--tnemeC
----61.0585,141raguS

Automobile and transportation equipment 9,543,557 11.12 2,824,538 2.62 889,548 1.68
--01.2163,962,215.1711,492,1laicnaniF

10.0391,383.7238,869,7--ecnarusnI
Production and transmission of energy 9,869,277 11.50 21,714,052 20.12 5,814,293 10.97

50.0027,5246.22172,624,4241.0143,911lacidem&noitacudE
10.0974,315.2421,017,260.0156,55noitacinummoceleT

--20.0058,12--gnihsilbup&gnitnirP
--50.0769,8530.0000,03noitcurtsnoC

Foods, tobacco & beverages        - - 342    - - -
60.0019,1347.0399,49703.1647,911,1deilladnalateM

Farming, cattle and dairy - - 92    - - -
58.87365,277,1498.2037,311,357.1000,005,1ecnefeD
12.1653,14613.3278,375,3--gnippihsdnastroP
04.3686,708,127.33865,383,6342.8221,660,7srehtO
00.001302,979,2500.001104,219,70100.001195,048,58

222000111111

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd
cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt
43.2.2 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt bbbyyy ssseeeccctttooorrr

36.23608,002,6562.61332,913,24159.51040,073,37tnemnrevoG/cilbuP
73.76997,250,61147.38463,989,23750.48777,395,683etavirP
00.001506,352,27100.001795,803,57800.001718,369,954

222000111000

AAAdddvvvaaannnccceeesss DDDeeepppooosssiiitttsss CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss aaannnddd
cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

(((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) PPPeeerrrccceeennnttt

30.13302,979,2579.41104,219,70131.81195,048,58tnemnrevoG/cilbuP
79.86515,777,71130.58637,651,31678.18781,775,783etavirP
00.001817,657,07100.001731,960,12700.001877,714,374

43.3 DDDeeetttaaaiiilllsss ooofff nnnooonnn---pppeeerrrfffooorrrmmmiiinnnggg aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss aaannnddd ssspppeeeccciiifffiiiccc ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss bbbyyy ccclllaaassssss ooofff bbbuuusssiiinnneeessssss ssseeegggmmmeeennnttt

222000111111 222000111000
CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss

hhheeelllddd hhheeelllddd
--------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------

949,115699,546slacituecamrahPdnalacimehC
064,498,1637,651,3ssenisubirgA
400,833,41924,593,81elitxeT
750,007822,007tnemeC
583,883406,234raguS
091,652011,213stnemragrehtaeldnaseohS
157,892,1637,813,1tnempiuqenoitatropsnartdnaelibomotuA
844,992,1844,992,1laicnaniF
127,944,2046,108,2secnailppalacirtcelednascinortcelE
716,097,1279,808,1ygrenefonoissimsnartdnanoitcudorP
957957lacideM&noitacudE
754,162754,162noitacinummoceleT
461,551705,991gnihsilbup&gnitnirP
538,266901,814,1noitcurtsnoC
328,324200,524gniyrrauq&gniniM
013,243594,344segarevebdnaoccabot,dooF
243,270,4519,637,4edartliater&elaselohW
405,006210,176deilladnalateM
933,803,1726,524,2laudividnI
426,101028,542yriaddnaelttac,gnimraF
471,5471,5noitazinagrotiforpnondnasdnuftsurT
734,671,4103,279,4srehtO
053,830,73770,776,64

741,565739,885
144,247,1492,405,3
671,553,71005,332,02
192,190,1662,462,2
748,323686,953
250,941363,371
814,745,1349,409,1
513,484698,797
442,646,2217,008,2
379,840,2544,150,2

--
953,162953,162
662,991991,402
089,799408,683,1
858,534412,725
785,084828,725
971,871,5795,046,5
815,498614,219
919,398365,649
007,101882,803
005,2005,2
840,917,4007,619,5
818,811,24015,313,15
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222000111111 222000111000
CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc CCClllaaassssssiiifffiiieeeddd SSSpppeeeccciiifffiiiccc
aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss aaadddvvvaaannnccceeesss ppprrrooovvviiisssiiiooonnnsss

43.3.1 SSSeeegggmmmeeennnttt bbbyyy ssseeeccctttooorrr hhheeelllddd hhheeelllddd
--------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------

516,162,53243,009,44979,342,14166,460,05etavirP
537,677,1537,677,1938,478948,842,1tnemnrevoG/cilbuP
053,830,73770,776,64818,811,24015,313,15

44. SSSEEEGGGMMMEEENNNTTT DDDEEETTTAAAIIILLL WWWIIITTTHHH RRREEESSSPPPEEECCCTTT TTTOOO BBBUUUSSSIIINNNEEESSSSSS AAACCCTTTIIIVVVIIITTTIIIEEESSS

222000111111
RRReeetttaaaiiilll

bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg
CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee ///
cccooommmmmmeeerrrccciiiaaalll

bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg

TTTrrreeeaaasssuuurrryyy IIInnnttteeerrrnnnaaatttiiiooonnnaaalll
bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg
gggrrrooouuuppp

HHHeeeaaaddd
oooffffffiiiccceee ///
sssuuuppppppooorrrttt
ssseeerrrvvviiiccceeesss

TTToootttaaalll

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn mmmiiilllllliiiooonnn))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

222000111000
RRReeetttaaaiiilll

bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg
CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee ///
cccooommmmmmeeerrrccciiiaaalll

bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg

TTTrrreeeaaasssuuurrryyy IIInnnttteeerrrnnnaaatttiiiooonnnaaalll
bbbaaannnkkkiiinnnggg
gggrrrooouuuppp

HHHeeeaaaddd
oooffffffiiiccceee ///
sssuuuppppppooorrrttt
ssseeerrrvvviiiccceeesss

TTToootttaaalll

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn mmmiiilllllliiiooonnn))) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

019,54632435,3575,31763,44)208,51(lanretxE-emocnitseretniteN

Inter segment revenue - net  47,105 (36,369) (12,555)        - 1,819        -

940,1177130,2261,2876,2101,4emocnidednuf-noN

959,65231,2565,5281,3676,01404,53emocnipu-kram-nondnatseretniteN

Total expenses including provision (excluding impairment) 12,457 6,531 145 4,716 7,668 31,517

583125-)631(--stnemtsevnitsniagatnemriapmI

-)977,8(227981113,1755,6tsocevitartsinimdatnemgesretnI

209,13)095(834,5891248,7410,91noisivorpgnidulcnisesnepxelatoT

Net income before tax 16,390 2,834 2,984 127  2,722 25,057

 Segment assets (gross)  105,022 430,553 204,722 165,003 24,464 929,764

776,6408280,01-829,72785,8snaolgnimrofrep-nontnemgeS

Segment provision required including general provision 6,636 22,726 498 8,707 4,144 42,711

350,788886,811270,39677,9753,501061,065ytiuqegnidulcniseitilibailtnemgeS
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45. TTTRRRUUUSSSTTT AAACCCTTTIIIVVVIIITTTIIIEEESSS

The Bank is not engaged in any significant trust activities. However, Habib Bank Limited acts as security agent for arrangement and 
distribution of the term finance certificates and also engages in investment portfolio services as custodian on behalf of its customers. 

 
46. GGGEEEOOOGGGRRRAAAPPPHHHIIICCCAAALLL SSSEEEGGGMMMEEENNNTTT AAANNNAAALLLYYYSSSIIISSS

222000111111
PPPrrrooofffiiittt bbbeeefffooorrreee

tttaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn
TTToootttaaalll aaasssssseeetttsss
eeemmmpppllloooyyyeeeddd

NNNeeettt aaasssssseeetttsss
eeemmmpppllloooyyyeeeddd

CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss
aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss

222000111000
PPPrrrooofffiiittt bbbeeefffooorrreee

tttaaaxxxaaatttiiiooonnn
TTToootttaaalll aaasssssseeetttsss
eeemmmpppllloooyyyeeeddd

NNNeeettt aaasssssseeetttsss
eeemmmpppllloooyyyeeeddd

CCCooonnntttiiinnngggeeennnccciiieeesss
aaannnddd

cccooommmmmmiiitttmmmeeennntttsss
--------------------------------------------------------- (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))---------------------------------------------------------

171,898,831837,366,35553,705,657746,236,32natsikaP
Asia Pacific (includi 947,255)aisAhtuoSgn 47,738,719  11,836,300 9,350,586

337,85eporuE 10,362,322  6,918,155 4,212,844
995,001aciremAhtroN 3,984,490 1,633,210 1,579,758
921,807tsaEelddiM 55,269,349  10,945,894 15,548,612
158,652srehtO 12,517,596  3,854,862 1,166,747
)724,252(BHPknaBnossoltnemriapmI 672,580 672,580 -

817,657,071937,425,98114,250,788182,750,52

47. IIISSSLLLAAAMMMIIICCC BBBAAANNNKKKIIINNNGGG BBBRRRAAANNNCCCHHH --- BBBAAALLLAAANNNCCCEEE SSSHHHEEEEEETTT

Financial figures of the Islamic Banking Branch, which are included in these financial statements, are as follows:

NNNooottteee 222000111111 222000111000

The commitment in respect of letters of credit of Islamic Banking branch of Habib Bank Limited amounted to Rs. 69.376 million
(2010: Rs. 50.966 million). 
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.tnemeergaahabaruMrednudlosstessastneserpersihT1.74

.tnemeergaharajIrednusremotsucotnevigstessadexifstneserpersihT2.74

222000111111 222000111000
48. IIISSSLLLAAAMMMIIICCC BBBAAANNNKKKIIINNNGGG BBBRRRAAANNNCCCHHH --- PPPRRROOOFFFIIITTT AAANNNDDD LLLOOOSSSSSS AAACCCCCCOOOUUUNNNTTT (((RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000)))

222000111000
sss iiinnn '''000000000)))

50. DDDAAATTTEEE OOOFFF AAAUUUTTTHHHOOORRRIIISSSAAATTTIIIOOONNN FFFOOORRR IIISSSSSSUUUEEE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on February 24, 2012.
 

51. GGGEEENNNEEERRRAAALLL

51.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised format for financial statements of banks issued by the
State Bank of Pakistan through BSD Circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006.

R. Zakir Mahmood Moez Ahamed Jamal Ahmed Jawad Sajid Zahid
President and Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
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Details of Domestic Investments - Unconsolidated Annexure I
For the year ended December 31, 2011
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366,714

Rate of Interest /
Profit
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A Vision Transformed into Art
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DDDeeessscccrrriiippptttiiiooonnn OOOrrriiigggiiinnnaaalll cccooosssttt AAAccccccuuummmuuulllaaattteeeddd
dddeeeppprrreeeccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn BBBooooookkk vvvaaallluuueee SSSaaallleee ppprrroooccceeeeeedddsss MMMooodddeee ooofff dddiiissspppooosssaaalll

PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff bbbuuuyyyeeerrr

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------RRRuuupppeeeeeesss iiinnn '''000000000---------------------------------------------------------------------------

Assets having cost of less
than Rs. 1 million and book
value of less than Rs.250,000

3,371 - 41 SALE
1,124 - 14 SALE
3,921 - 41 SALE
1,539 - 14 SALE
1,592 - 14 SALE
1,592 - 14 SALE
1,592 - 14 SALE
1,592 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,952 - 14 SALE
1,539 - 14 SALE
1,583 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
2,421 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE Ali Nawaz Traders
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
2,515 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,539 - 14 SALE
1,954 - 14 SALE
1,938 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,353 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
2,457 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,922 - 14 SALE
1,744 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,317 - 14 SALE
1,937 - 14 SALE
1,901 - 14 SALE
1,317 - 14 SALE
1,317 - 14 SALE
1,317 - 14 SALE
1,050 - 30 SALE
1,512 - 2 SALE

KHALID BROTHERS 1,277 - 3 SALE
9900,,668844 9900,,668844 - 771111

84,770 304 84,466 62,500 SALE Mount Fuji Textile
60,128 - 60,128 50,000 SALE Faz International

3,506 212 3,294 3,300 SALE Mohammad Akbar
390 - 390 400 SALE Aurangzeb Khan

114488,,779944 551166 114488,,227788 111166,,220000

1,908 1,908 - 815 Auction Shahbaz A Malik 
4,119 4,119 - 1,378 Tender Bhaugeerutty
3,081 3,081 - 217 Negotiation Lazar Younes
7,673 7,673 - 2,584 Negotiation Omni Cars Agent
1,317 1,317 - 413 Tender Makeen Ashraf Makki

1,080 700 380 787 Insurance claim Jubilee General Insurance Co. Ltd1,289 256 1,033 1,102 Insurance claim
2200,,446677 1199,,005544 11,,441133 77,,229944

316,079 307,964 8,115 41,347
557766,,002244 441188,,221188 115577,,880066 116655,,555522

3,371
1,124
3,921
1,539
1,592
1,592
1,592
1,592
1,952
1,952
1,952
1,952
1,952
1,952
1,539
1,583
1,937
1,901
1,901
2,421
1,901
1,901
1,901
1,901
1,901
1,901
2,515
1,937
1,539
1,954
1,938
1,901
1,353
1,937
2,457
1,937
1,922
1,744
1,937
1,937
1,317
1,937
1,901
1,317
1,317
1,317
1,050
1,512
1,277

Furniture & Fixtures

Land & Building

Motor Vehicles

Details of Disposal of Operating Annexure III
Fixed Assets - Unconsolidated
As at December 31, 2011
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Donations were not made to any donee in which Habib Bank Limited, Directors or their spouses had any personal interest at the time of donation.

Details of Donations of Rs. 100,000 and above Annexure IV
For the year Ended December 31, 2011



Shareholding 
No. of Shareholders 

From To 
Shares Held Percentage 

16,301  1 100 335,826 0.0305 
87,953  101 500 15,175,675 1.3770 

2,853  501 1,000 2,073,974 0.1882 
1,700  1,001 5,000 3,196,253 0.2900 

164  5,001 10,000 1,147,239 0.1041 
59 10,001 15,000 714,968 0.0649 
30 15,001 20,000 527,986 0.0479 
23 20,001 25,000 521,876 0.0474 
11 25,001 30,000 305,213 0.0277 
6 30,001 35,000 192,664 0.0175 
7 35,001 40,000 262,204 0.0238 
8 40,001 45,000 332,507 0.0302 
5 45,001 50,000 243,153 0.0221
2 50,001 55,000 106,934 0.0097 
4 55,001 60,000 226,786 0.0206 

10 60,001 65,000 630,123 0.0572 
2 65,001 70,000 134,655 0.0122 
2 70,001 75,000 147,900 0.0134 
4 75,001 80,000 307,490 0.0279 
3 80,001 85,000 248,506 0.0225
1 85,001 90,000 85,200 0.0077 
1 90,001 95,000 92,551 0.0084 
1 95,001 100,000 100,000 0.0091 
2 100,001 105,000 204,901 0.0186 
2 110,001 115,000 220,521 0.0200 
3 120,001 125,000 372,076 0.0338 
3 125,001 130,000 381,225 0.0346 
1 135,001 140,000 137,940 0.0125 
1 145,001 150,000 146,894 0.0133 
1 160,001 165,000 162,250 0.0147 
2 170,001 175,000 349,117 0.0317
1 190,001 195,000 190,070 0.0172 
1 195,001 200,000 199,650 0.0181 
1 200,001 205,000 203,931 0.0185 
1 255,001 260,000 259,208 0.0235 
1 260,001 265,000 264,580 0.0240 
1 265,001 270,000 268,620 0.0244 
1 270,001 275,000 272,454 0.0247 
1 280,001 285,000 280,759 0.0255 
1 290,001 295,000 293,299 0.0266 
1 315,001 320,000 319,279 0.0290 
1 330,001 335,000 333,145 0.0302 
1 350,001 355,000 351,458 0.0319
1 420,001 425,000 420,750 0.0382 
1 445,001 450,000 450,000 0.0408 
1 475,001 480,000 477,459 0.0433 
2 530,001 535,000 1,063,017 0.0965 
1 560,001 565,000 564,630 0.0512
1 590,001 595,000 592,458 0.0536 
1 720,001 725,000 724,702 0.0658 
1 755,001 760,000 757,038 0.0687 
1 890,001 895,000 892,863 0.0810 
1 950,001 955,000 952,689 0.0864 
1 995,001 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.0907 
1 1,045,001 1,050,000 1,048,924 0.0952 
1 1,435,001 1,440,000 1,435,258 0.1302 
1 1,495,001 1,500,000 1,496,625 0.1358 
1 1,620,001 1,625,000 1,623,951 0.1474 
1 2,315,001 2,320,000 2,319,067 0.2104 
1 2,895,001 2,900,000 2,897,198 0.2629 
1 5,770,001 5,775,000 5,770,198 0.5236 
1 10,330,001 10,335,000 10,330,986 0.9374 
1 25,415,001 25,420,000 25,416,446 2.3063 
1 447,455,000 447,460,000 447,458,001 40.6017
1 562,050,001 562,055,000 562,054,680 51.0000

109,200  1,102,068,000 100.0000

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2011 A
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Particulars Share Holders Shareholding Percentage 

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties 
Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited 1 592,458 0.0538
Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited 1 1,048,924 0.0952
HBL Stock Fund 1 952,689 0.0864
HBL Multi Asset Fund 1 124,677 0.0113

National Investment Trust 1 7,309 0.0007

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their Spouse and  
minor Children 

R.Zakir Mahmood C.E.O  1 259,367* 0.0235

Executives 50 591,507 0.0537 
 

Public Sector Companies & Corporations 1 159 0.0000

Banks, DFI & NBFI 13 11,111,918 1.0083

Insurance Companies 13 1,695,793 0.1539

Modarabas & Mutual Funds 14 6,901,311 0.6262

General Public 

Local 108,173 23,728,898 2.1531

Foreign 738 1,086,100 0.0986

Others 157 3,673,686 0.3333

Government of Pakistan 4 35,750,442 3.2439

Foreign Companies 29 5,030,081 0.4564

Holding 10% and Above 

State Bank of Pakistan 1 447,458,001 40.6017

Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development 1 562,054,680 51.0000

109,200 1,102,068,000  100.0000

* 259,208 shares issued under Staff Retention Incentive Scheme

Category of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2011



A Vision Transformed into Art

A
N

N
U

A
L

R
EP

O
R

T
-2

0
11

157

Notice is hereby given that 70th Annual General Meeting of Habib Bank Limited will be held on Saturday, March 24,
2012 at 9.00 a.m. at the HBL Auditorium, Ground Floor, Habib Bank Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad to transact the
following business:

OOOOrrrrddddiiiinnnnaaaarrrryyyy BBBBuuuussssiiiinnnneeeessssssss::::

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts (consolidated and unconsolidated) of the Bank for the year 
ended December 31, 2011, together with the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditor thereon.

2. To appoint Auditors for the term ending at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their 
remuneration. The retiring Auditors Ernst & Young, Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 
3. To approve payment of a Final Cash Dividend of Rs. 4/- per share, i.e., 40%, to those who are Shareholders as at 

close of business on March 16, 2012, in addition to the 30% Interim Cash Dividend (i.e., Rs. 3 per share) already 
paid, as recommended by Directors. 

 
4. To elect 7 Directors of the Bank, as fixed by the Board of Directors of the Bank under the provisions of Section 

178 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, for a period of 3 years, commencing from March 27, 2012. The retiring 
Directors are:

i. Mr. Sultan Ali Allana
ii. Mr. R. Zakir Mahmood

iii. Mr. Moez Ahamed Jamal
iv. Mr. Sajid Zahid  
v. Mr. Ahmed Jawad

vi. Mr. Mushtaq Malik 
vii. Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan

SSSSppppeeeecccciiiiaaaallll BBBBuuuussssiiiinnnneeeessssssss::::

5. To authorise the issuance of Bonus Shares in proportion of 10 shares for every 100 shares held, that is at the rate 
of 10%, to those Shareholders whose names appear in the register of members at close of business on March 16, 
2012 and to approve the disposal of fractional shares created out of the issuance of bonus shares.

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to approve an increase in the authorised capital of the Company from Rs. 13.8
billion to Rs. 30 billion by the creation of 1,620 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each and to accordingly amend
Article V of the Memorandum of Association.

The aforesaid amendment shall be implemented once all regulatory approvals are in place.

7. To re-confirm the remuneration/fee payable to the newly elected Non-Executive Directors and Chairman of the 
Bank on the same terms and conditions as earlier approved in the 68th Annual General Meeting held on March 27,
2010.

A Statement of Material Fact under Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance 1984 relating to the aforesaid
Special Business to be transacted at the said Annual General Meeting is attached.

AAAAnnnnyyyy OOOOtttthhhheeeerrrr BBBBuuuussssiiiinnnneeeessssssss::::

8. To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair. 
 

By the Order of the Board

March 2, 2012        Nausheen Ahmad
Karachi           Company Secretary  

Notice of Annual General Meeting



NNNOOOTTTEEESSS

1) The Share Transfer Books of the Bank will be closed and no transfer will be accepted for registration from
March 17, 2012 to March 24, 2012 (both days inclusive).

2) A Member, entitled to attend, speak and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint another person as 
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall have such rights, as 
respects attending, speaking and voting at the General Meeting as are available to the Member.  Proxy Forms, 
in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank not less than 48 hours before
the Meeting. The proxy for an individual shareholder needs to be a Member of the Bank.

3) Members are requested to notify us immediately of any change in their Registered Address currently available
with us.

4) The Office of the Registrar of the Bank is located at Messrs THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., Ground Floor, State 
Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi. 

 
5) Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their computerized national identity cards (CNIC) to the

Company are requested to send the same at the earliest. 
 
CCCDDDCCC AAAccccccooouuunnnttt HHHooollldddeeerrrsss wwwiiillllll fffuuurrrttthhheeerrr hhhaaavvveee tttooo fffooollllllooowww ttthhheee uuunnndddeeerrr mmmeeennntttiiiooonnneeeddd ggguuuiiidddeeellliiinnneeesss aaasss lllaaaiiiddd dddooowwwnnn iiinnn CCCiiirrrcccuuulllaaarrr 111
dddaaattteeeddd 222666 JJJaaannnuuuaaarrryyy 222000000000 iiissssssuuueeeddd bbbyyy ttthhheee SSSeeecccuuurrriiitttiiieeesss aaannnddd EEExxxccchhhaaannngggeee CCCooommmmmmiiissssssiiiooonnn ooofff PPPaaakkkiiissstttaaannn:::

AAA... FFFooorrr AAAtttttteeennndddiiinnnggg ttthhheee MMMeeeeeetttiiinnnggg:::

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original National Identity Card (NIC), or original passport at the time of attending 
the meeting. CDC Account Holders are also requested to bring their CDC participant ID numbers and
account number. 

 
ii) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature

of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting. 
 
BBB... FFFooorrr AAAppppppoooiiinnntttiiinnnggg PPPrrroooxxxiiieeesss:::

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement (note 2 above). 

 
ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC numbers shall be 

mentioned on the form. 
 

iii) Attested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form. 

 
iv) The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. 

 
v) In the case a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen 

signature of the proxy holder shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company. 



AAAgggeeennndddaaa IIIttteeemmm ––– 555 ––– IIIssssssuuueee ooofff BBBooonnnuuusss SSShhhaaarrreeesss

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Financial result of the Bank justifies the issuance of Bonus Shares in the
ratio of 10 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held, that is, at the rate of 10%, to those Shareholders
whose names appear in the register of Members at the close of business on March 16, 2012. A certificate of free

The Directors of the Company are not directly or indirectly, personally interested in this business except to the
extent of their shareholding in the Company. 
 
Accordingly, it is proposed to consider and pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RRREEESSSOOOLLLVVVEEEDDD TTTHHHAAATTT:::

1. Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each be issued as Bonus Shares and that the said shares be allotted as fully paid
Ordinary Shares to the Members of the Bank whose names appear on the Register of Members as at the close 
of business on 16 March 2012 in the proportion of 10 Bonus Shares for every 100 Shares held that is, at the
rate of 10%, and that such Bonus Shares shall rank pari passu as regards dividends and in all other respects 
with the existing Ordinary Shares of the Bank.     

2. In the event of any Member becoming entitled to a fraction of a share, the Directors be and are hereby
authorized to consolidate all such fractions and sell the shares so constituted on the Stock Market and to pay 
the proceeds thereof to the Members entitled to the fraction in proportion to their respective entitlements 
and to add the value of such fractional entitlements to the dividend amount payable to each such Member.

3. For the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing, the Directors be and they are hereby authorized to do and
cause to be done all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary and to settle any question or difficulties
that may arise in regard to the allotment and the distribution of the said Bonus Shares and in regard to
fractional entitlements and the sale of the consolidated shares and the distribution of the sale proceeds of
the consolidated shares to those entitled to fractional entitlements, as they think fit. 

 
AAAgggeeennndddaaa IIIttteeemmm ––– 666--- IIInnncccrrreeeaaassseee iiinnn AAAuuuttthhhooorrriiissseeeddd CCCaaapppiiitttaaalll aaannnddd iiinnn ttthhhiiisss rrreeegggaaarrrddd AAAmmmeeennndddmmmeeennnttt iiinnn MMMeeemmmooorrraaannnddduuummm ooofff
AAAssssssoooccciiiaaatttiiiooonnn ooofff ttthhheee BBBaaannnkkk

The present authorised capital of the Bank is Rs. 13,800,000,000 (Rupees thirteen billion, eight hundred million) 
divided into 1,380,000,000 (one billion, three hundred eighty million) Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each. The Directors 
of the Bank have recommended in their Board Meeting held on February 24, 2012 that the authorised capital of the
Bank be increased to Rs. 30,000,000,000 (Rupees thirty billion) divided into 3,000,000,000 (three billion) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees ten) each so as to facilitate issuance of further shares in the future. For this purpose the
Board of Directors have recommended that the Members consider and pass the following Resolution at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting as an Ordinary Resolution with or without modification, addition or deletion: 
 

RESOLVED that the authorised capital of the Bank be and is hereby increased to Rs. 30,000,000,000 (Rupees
thirty billion) by the creation of 1,620 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, such new shares to rank pari 
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank and that Article V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“The Capital of the Company is Rs. 30,000,000,000 (Rupees thirty billion) divided 
into 3,000,000,000 (three billion) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.”

The aforesaid amendment shall be implemented once all regulatory approvals are in place.

reserves has been issued by the Auditors.

Statement of Material Facts
Under Section 160 (1) (b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 A
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AAAgggeeennndddaaa IIIttteeemmm ––– 777 ––– DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss RRReeemmmuuunnneeerrraaatttiiiooonnn

As per SBP Prudential Regulation G-1 paragraph C2 Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman may receive a
reasonable and appropriate remuneration / fee from the Bank, the scale of which is to be approved by the
Shareholders on a pre or post facto basis. The Shareholders are required to re-confirm the remuneration / fee for the 
newly elected Non-Executive Directors and Chairman, in the same terms as earlier approved by the Shareholders at 
the 68th Annual General Meeting held on March 27, 2010 (Particulars as Annexure-A hereto) and to pass the
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or without modification, addition or deletion: 
 

RESOLVED that the Shareholders approve the payment of remuneration/fee to the Chairman and Non-
Executive Directors of Habib Bank Limited elected at the 70th Annual General Meeting held on March 24, 
2012 and any persons or persons appointed in place of any such Directors, the particulars of which are
attached as Annexure ‘A’ hereto. 

 
TheThe DiDirreeccttoorrss ooff thethe BBaannkk hhaavvee nnoo inintteererestst inin thethe aabboovvee ssppeecciialal bbuusinsinesesss anandd/o/orr rreesolsoluuttiioonnss tthhatat wwooululdd neeneedd aa fufurrthetherr
ddiisscclloosusurree..

AAAnnnnnneeexxxuuurrreee AAA

IIInnn rrreeessspppeeecccttt ooofff AAAgggeeennndddaaa IIIttteeemmm 77

PPPaaarrrtttiiicccuuulllaaarrrsss ooofff RRReeemmmuuunnneeerrraaatttiiiooonnn///FFFeeeeee fffooorrr NNNooonnn---EEExxxeeecccuuutttiiivvveee DDDiiirrreeeccctttooorrrsss /// CCChhhaaaiiirrrmmmaaannn

(1) Board fee of Rs 200,000 per Board meeting attended and Rs. 100,000 per Committee meeting attended. In 
addition, travel costs and per diem will be applicable for the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman as per
Bank policy. 
 
(2) The Non-Executive Directors will be entitled to travel and per diem for travel within and outside the country for
Bank related work/purposes will be as per Bank’s travel policy approved by the Board. 
 
(3) The Chairman of the Bank will also be entitled to receive/avail fully maintained Bank cars, appropriate security for
self and family; health insurance for self and family, life insurance/endowment coverage, medical coverage for self 
and family in Pakistan and/or abroad; utilities and house maintenance; house rent allowance as per prevailing market
rates.

(4) Travel and all related expenses, entertainment expenses including club subscriptions for the Chairman of the
Board of HBL will be as per the Bank’s approved policy.  
 
(5) The Chairman will also be provided with appropriate office premises by the Bank and support staff for carrying 
out his duties in his capacity as the Chairman of the Bank. 
 
(6) For Board meetings and/or Board Committee meetings held outside Pakistan the Non-Executive Directors 
including the Chairman will be entitled to travel expenses for self and spouse plus hotel expenses, meals, incidentals 
either on actuals or alternatively will receive per diem of USD 1,500 per day. 
 
(7) Directors liability insurance for all Directors as determined by the Board.

The Shareholders may note that the aforesaid was approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of 
March 27, 2010.  
 
The Shareholders are further informed that the aforesaid particulars will be attached to the Shareholder’s resolution 
proposed to be passed at the Annual General Meeting of Habib Bank Limited to be held on Saturday, March 24, 2012 
at 9:00 am in Islamabad.

 
By the Order of the Board

March 2, 2012        Nausheen Ahmad
Karachi           Company Secretary  



The Annual General Meeting of Habib Bank Limited will be held on Saturday, 24 March 2012 at 9:00 a.m. at the Auditorium,
Ground Floor, Habib Bank Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

Kindly bring this slip duly signed by you for attending the Meeting.

Company Secretary

Shareholder No. ___________________________ __________________________ 
 Signature

NNNooottteee:::

i) The signature of the shareholder must tally with the specimen signature on the Company’s record.

ii) Shareholders are requested to hand over duly completed admission slips at the counter before entering the meeting 
premises. 

 
CCCDDDCCC AAAccccccooouuunnnttt HHHooollldddeeerrrsss /// PPPrrroooxxxiiieeesss /// CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss:::

a) The CDC Account Holder / Proxy shall authenticate his identity by showing his / her original Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting. 

 
b) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee

shall be produced at the time of the Meeting (unless it has been provided earlier).

TTThhhiiisss AAAdddmmmiiissssssiiiooonnn SSSllliiippp iiisss NNNooottt TTTrrraaannnsssfffeeerrraaabbbllleee...

Admission Slip
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I/We

of

being member(s) of Habib Bank Limited holding  

ordinary shares hereby appoint

of or failing him/her 

of     who is / are also member(s) of Habib Bank Limited as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and
vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on March 24, 2012 and at any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2012

Signed by the said  

In the presence of  1.

2.

Folio / CDC Account No. 

 

IIImmmpppooorrrtttaaannnttt:::

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, 4th Floor, Habib Bank
Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.  
 

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation may appoint a person 
who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the
Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid. 

 
FFFooorrr CCCDDDCCC AAAccccccooouuunnnttt HHHooollldddeeerrrsss /// CCCooorrrpppooorrraaattteee EEEnnntttiiitttiiieeesss:::

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

ii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

Signature on 
Revenue Stamp of
Appropriate Value 

This signature should agree 
with the specimen
registered with the

Company.

Form of Proxy
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